
A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29 
3TN on THURSDAY, 17 MARCH 2005 at 11:30 AM and you are 
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 
 
 

 Contact 
(01480) 

  
 APOLOGIES   

 
 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 24th February 2005. 
 

Miss C Harris 
388234 

2. YOUNG PERSONS HOUSING STRATEGY  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

 

 To consider the adoption of a Young Persons Housing Strategy for 
2005-2007. 
 
[A copy of the draft Strategy has been appended separately to the 
agenda]. 
 

J Collen 
388220 
S Plant 
388220 

3. REVIEW OF THE HOUSING REGISTER AND NOMINATIONS 
POLICY  (Pages 9 - 12) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Housing Services outlining the 
implications of the Housing Register policy and seeking approval for 
proposed amendments to that policy. 
 
[A copy of the Policy and proposed procedures has been 
appended separately to the Agenda]. 
 

J Collen 
388220 
S Plant 
388240 

4. COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY  (Pages 13 - 14) 
 

 

 To consider the draft Community Safety Strategy for 2005 – 2008. 
 
[A copy of the draft Strategy has been appended separately to the 
agenda]. 
 

Ms S Hansen 
388341 

5. EQUALITY AND INCLUSION STRATEGY AND RACE EQUALITY 
SCHEME  (Pages 15 - 38) 

 

 

 To consider the adoption of a revised and enhanced Equality and 
Inclusion Strategy and an updated Race Equality Scheme. 
 

I Leatherbarrow 
388005 

L Clewes 
388032 

6. EAST OF ENGLAND PLAN - CONSULTATION ON THE DRAFT 
REGIONAL SPATIAL STRATEGY FOR THE EAST OF ENGLAND  
(Pages 39 - 42) 

 



 
 
 To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services setting out the 

significant elements of the East of England Plan and seeking approval 
for the content of representations to be made to the Regional 
Assembly. 
 

Ms C Bond 
388435 

7. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME  (Pages 43 - 72) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services on the first 
Local Development Scheme for Huntingdonshire and seeking approval 
for its submission to the Secretary of State. 
 

M Bingham 
388431 

8. ST IVES WEST URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK AND 
MASTERPLAN  (Pages 73 - 102) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services on consultation 
responses to the St Ives West Urban Design Framework and the 
adoption of the revised Framework, as Interim Planning Guidance. 
 

C Surfleet 
388476 

9. ANGLIAN HOUSE, HUNTINGDON URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK 
AND MASTERPLAN  (Pages 103 - 114) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services on consultation 
responses to the draft Urban Design Framework for Anglian House, 
Huntingdon and the adoption of the revised framework as Interim 
Planning Guidance. 
 

C Surfleet 
388476 

10. CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH BIOLOGICAL 
RECORDS CENTRE  (Pages 115 - 118) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services requesting 
approval to the proposed establishment of a Peterborough Biological 
Records Centre. 
 

Ms J Wilkinson 
388432 

11. WASTE PFI UPDATE AND RECYCLING BUDGET  (Pages 119 - 
122) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Environment and Transport on 
developments in Cambridgeshire County Council’s application for 
Private Finance Initiative credits to support future waste disposal 
arrangements in the County. 
 

R Preston 
388340 

12. CAR PARKING CHARGES  (Pages 123 - 132) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Environment & Transport on the 
outcome of consultation on proposals to increase charges for car 
parking. 
 

R Preston 
388340 

13. PUBLIC CONVENIENCES ADVISORY GROUP  (Pages 133 - 136) 
 

 

 To receive the report of the Public Conveniences Advisory Group 
held on 2nd February 2005. 

 
 

R Preston 
388340 

14. MEDIUM TERM PLAN - REQUESTS FOR RELEASE OF FUNDING  
(Pages 137 - 156) 

 

 



 
 To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services requesting the 

release of funding for MTP Schemes. 
 

S Couper 
388103 

15. CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS - COUNCIL TAX AND NON DOMESTIC 
RATES  (Pages 157 - 158) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Revenue Services seeking 
approval to introduce credit card payments for Council Tax and Non 
Domestic Rates. 
 

J Barber 
388105 

16. LEISURE CENTRES:  LINE UPGRADES FOR I.T NETWORK  
(Pages 159 - 160) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the ICT Services Manager. 
 

D Ward 
388117 

17. REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION  (Pages 161 - 162) 
 

 

 In conjunction with the Annual Review of the Council’s Constitution, to 
consider a report by the Head of Administration. 
 

Ms C Deller 
388007 

18. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC   
 

 

 To resolve:- 
 

that the public be excluded from the meeting as the business to 
be transacted contains exempt information relating to terms 
proposed for a contract for the acquisition of property and the 
supply of goods and services. 

 

 

19. HEADQUARTERS AND OTHER ACCOMMODATION  (Pages 163 - 
190) 

 

 

 To receive a report of the meeting of the District Council Headquarters 
and other Office Accommodation Members’ Advisory Group held on 
18th February 2005. 
 
[A copy of the Executives Briefing Paper is appended separately 
to the agenda]. 
 
(The comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels will follow). 
 

A Roberts 
388009 

20. HUNTINGDON HIGH STREET: ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPROVEMENTS PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE  (Pages 191 - 192) 

 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Environment & Transport seeking 
approval to the use of non-traditional procurement arrangements, i.e. 
not involving any of the tendering options provided for in the Council’s 
Code of Procurement for the Huntingdon High Street Environmental 
Improvements. 
 

R Preston 
388340 

  
 
 
 

 

 Dated this 8th day of March 2005  



 
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

 

Please contact Miss C Harris, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No. 01480 
388234, /e-mail:  if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to 
tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information 
on any decision taken by Cabinet. 

 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports or 

would like a large text version or an audio version please contact the  
Democratic Services Manager and we will try to accommodate your needs. 

 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the 
Meeting Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via 
the closest emergency exit and to make their way to the base of the flagpole in 
the car park at the front of Pathfinder House. 

 
 



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held on the Council 

Chamber, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN 
on Thursday, 24 February 2005 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor D P Holley - Chairman 
   
  Councillors I C Bates, Mrs J Chandler, 

N J Guyatt, Mrs P J Longford, 
Mrs D C Reynolds, T V Rogers and 
L M Simpson 

   
 APOLOGY: An apology for absence from the meeting 

was submitted on behalf of Councillor 
R L Clarke 

   
   
 
 

134. MINUTES   
 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 3rd February 2005 
were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
135. CONEYGEAR PARK AND IMPROVEMENTS TO OPEN SPACE: 

OXMOOR, HUNTINGDON   
 

 Further to Minute No. 03/191 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 
22nd April 2004, the Cabinet was acquainted with progress in 
implementing improvements to the green spaces in Oxmoor, 
Huntingdon. Executive Councillors were reminded of earlier decisions 
in relation to the creation and development of Coneygear Park, 
neighbourhood gardens and doorstep greens as essential elements 
of the Oxmoor Action Plan. With regard to the development of 
neighbourhood gardens and doorstep greens, the report outlined the 
steps which had been taken to engage with local residents to improve 
local open spaces and having been informed that the construction 
work on Coneygear Park was scheduled to commence in June 2005 
with Phase I being completed in September 2005, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the content of the report now submitted be noted. 

 
136. TRAVEL PLAN 2005 - 2010   

 
 The Cabinet received a report by the Head of Environment and 

Transport (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) to which 
was appended a proposed travel plan for the District Council for the 
period 2005 – 2010. In considering the Plan, together with statistical 
information on employee travel data, which had been submitted to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel for Planning and Finance on 8th 
February 2005, the Cabinet 
 

Agenda Item 1

1



RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that the District Council travel plan for the period 2005 

– 2010 as annexed to the report now submitted be 
approved for consultation; 

 
 (b) that the consultation arrangements as set out in 

paragraph 4.3 of the report now submitted, be 
approved; and 

 
 (c) that the outcome of the consultation and Action Plan 

be reported to a future meeting. 
 

137. SUPPORTING PEOPLE STRATEGY 2005 - 2010   
 

 Having considered a report by the Head of Housing Services (a copy 
of which is appended in the Minute Book) outlining the content of an 
updated Supporting People Strategy and in recording its 
apprehension with regard to the estimated shortfall in Government 
funding to address the perceived needs in delivering housing – 
related support services in Cambridgeshire in the period 2005 - 2010, 
the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that, on the understanding that the facility will be 

available later to consider tailoring implementation of 
the Strategy to match available resources the updated 
Supporting People Strategy for the period 2005 – 2010 
be approved; 

 (b) that the supporting people resource allocation for 
Cambridgeshire for 2005/06 and the projected 
reductions in available budget allocations be noted; 
and 

 (c) that the apprehension of the Cabinet in relation to the 
shortfall in Government funding for housing - related 
support services in Cambridgeshire be conveyed to the 
Local Government Association and members of 
Parliament for the Huntingdon and North West 
Cambridgeshire Constituencies. 

 
138. COUNCIL FUNDING OF MANDATORY DISABLED FACILITIES 

GRANTS   
 

 Further to Minute No. 04/41 consideration was given to a report by 
the Head of Housing Services (a copy of which is appended in the 
Minute Book) outlining the overall take-up of Disabled Facility Grants 
in the first three quarters of 2004/05 and the Government’s 
contribution towards funding of the grants for 2005/06. Members 
noted that 184 DFGs had been processed to-date in 2004/05 at a 
cost of £993,000 and that it was projected that this would rise to 254 
DFGs by the end of the year at an estimated cost of £1,366,000. 
While it was anticipated that the supplementary estimate approved by 
Cabinet on 2nd September 2004 would be sufficient to meet the cost 
of DFG’s in the remainder of the current financial year, Executive 
Councillors expressed concern at the continuing reduction in 
Government funding of the grants, whereupon it was  

2



 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that the content of the report now submitted be noted; 

and 
 (b) that a further monitoring report be submitted to a future 

meeting setting out the overall position at the end of 
the current financial year. 

 
 

139. WORKING WITH THE HSC AND HSE TO CHANGE ATTITUDES 
AND CULTURE IN HEALTH AND SAFETY ENFORCEMENT   

 
 With the aid of a report by the Head of Environmental Health Services 

(a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the Cabinet was 
acquainted with a proposed statement of intent for the ‘Local 
Authorities and Health and Safety Executive Working Together’ 
strategic programme.  The strategic programme had been 
commissioned as one of a range of initiatives established to deliver a 
strategy for work place health and safety in Great Britain to 2010 and 
beyond. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that the statement of intent for the ‘Local Authorities 

and Health and Safety Executive Working Together’ 
strategic programme be endorsed; and 

 
 (b) that the Executive Councillor for Public Health and 

Community Safety (or in her absence her nominee) be 
authorised to sign a copy of the statement of intent on 
behalf of the District Council. 

 
140. TREASURY MANAGEMENT: INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE   

 
 A report by the Head of Financial Services was submitted (a copy of 

which is appended in the Minute Book) which reviewed the respective 
levels of performance achieved during the quarter 1st April – 31st 
December 2004 by external fund managers in the matter of 
investment of the Council’s capital receipts. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the contents of the report now submitted be noted. 

 
141. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

 
 RESOLVED 

 
 that the public be excluded from the meeting because the 

business to be transacted contains exempt  information 
relating to terms proposed in the course of negotiations for the 
acquisition of land. 

 
142. ACQUISITION OF LAND AT HOUGHTON ROAD, ST. IVES   

 
 (Councillor I C Bates declared a personal interest in the 

3



following matter by virtue of his membership of Cambridgeshire 
County Council) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report by the Head of Housing Services (a 
copy of which is appended in the annexe to the Minute Book) seeking 
approval to the proposed acquisition of land comprising circa 7.9 
acres or thereabouts at Houghton Road, St. Ives from 
Cambridgeshire County Council. The land had been allocated in the 
Local Plan Alteration for residential purposes. 
 
Having been acquainted by the Head of Housing Services with the 
possibility that the County Council might either offer the land to the 
District Council for immediate sale on to a Registered Social Landlord 
(“RSL”) or direct to an RSL nominated by the District Council, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 (a) that an exception to the District Council’s Code of 

Procurement be not approved in this case and that 
three RSL’s be invited to submit their proposals for 
development of the land; 

 
 (b) that Cambridgeshire County Council be invited to offer 

the land directly to an RSL nominated by the District 
Council failing which and, subject to satisfactory 
resolution of the issue of stamp duty payable, terms be 
negotiated for the acquisition of the land by the District 
Council for the sale onto an RSL as described in the 
report now submitted; 

 
 (c) that  if required, a supplementary capital estimate 

equivalent to the purchase price of the land and any 
related costs be approved; and 

 
(d) that in the event the land is acquired by the District 

Council for sale onto an RSL –  
• the Chief Executive, after consultation with the 

Leader of the Council be authorised to approve 
terms for the transactions; and 

• the availability of a capital receipt from the sale of 
the land to an RSL and the consequential 
absence of any financial impact on the District 
Council be noted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

4



 

   
 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 1 MARCH 2005 
(SERVICE DELIVERY & RESOURCES) 
CABINET 

 
17 MARCH 2005 

COUNCIL 13 APRIL 2005 
  
 
 

YOUNG PERSONS HOUSING STRATEGY 2005-07 
(Report by the Head of Housing Services) 

 
 
1. PURPOSE  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to consult members on and seek approval 

for the adoption of the Young Persons Housing Strategy 2005-2007 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The Young Persons Housing Strategy sits beneath the council’s 

overarching Housing Strategy and considers the needs of this specific 
client group.  Housing Authorities are encouraged by the Office of the 
Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) to develop Young Persons Housing 
Strategies and are regarded as a model of good practice.  This is the 
first one produced by the council.  The strategy forms part of the 
information used when Government Offices and the Housing 
Corporation make their assessment of each authority’s efficiency and 
effectiveness in meeting housing need, and is also part of the evidence 
considered by the Audit Commission in its CPA assessment of the 
authority. 

 
2.2 The strategy considers: 
 

♦ the national and local policy framework, including legislative 
framework, within which young persons services operate; 

♦ demand for housing and related support services from 
young people, including where there are gaps in the 
information available; 

♦ comments received from young people as part of a 
consultation exercise as to what services they would like to 
see provided;  

♦ the current supply of housing and support services available 
for young people in the district; and 

♦ analyses the gaps between supply and demand. 
 
2.3 The number of young people applying for help with housing, either as 

homeless or through the Housing Register, far outstrips the supply of 
suitable affordable housing.  The strategy considers how the private 
sector can help meet some of this demand, as an alternative to the 
social rented sector, although affordability is an issue where a young 
person below 25 years of age is reliant on help through the Housing 
Benefit system.   

 

Agenda Item 2

5



 

2.4 Previous research carried out as part of the district’s Housing Needs 
Survey, in 2002, estimated the annual requirement for each size of new 
housing based on affordability levels.  The research recognised that 
affordability is an issue for many people trying to access the private 
sector.  Considering the affordability of housing based on income levels 
it estimated the need for an additional 383 social rented one-bedroom 
properties per year.  This would include provision to meet the need of 
single young people requiring this type of accommodation.  
Supplementary planning guidance on housing mix was subsequently 
issued to help provide a broad range of housing that reflects the needs 
of the district.  

 
2.5 Following on from the supply and demand analysis the strategy identifies 

further issues arising.  These include the diminishing Supporting People 
budget that provides revenue funding for the housing related support 
services that young people access.  These can include simple and 
effective services such as staff support within supported housing 
schemes.  

 
2.6 The strategy goes on to consider other interventions that the council 

may make, such as the provision of mediation services and improved 
partnership working with other agencies to help with the prevention of 
homelessness.  These lead into actions that form the basis of the 
strategy’s action plan.  

 
2.7 Consultation on the strategy is currently on-going with a range of 

stakeholders, as listed in the strategy.  Any material comments made by 
consultees, that may alter the drafting of the strategy, will be input into 
the process of member consultation as and when known. 

 
2.8 The strategy, with a covering letter, has been sent to all elected 

members of the District Council.  It has been sent out in advance of the 
meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel, Cabinet and Council to 
allow members to digest the content and to raise any comments with 
members of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel, Cabinet or for clarification 
direct to the Head of Housing Services prior to consideration at Council. 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 The strategy identifies the extent of the shortfall between young people 

hoping to access affordable housing and the level of supply of this type 
of housing.  Those young people unable to resolve their own housing 
difficulties in the private sector are likely to turn to the council for help.  
The council has a duty to provide all with advice and assistance 
appropriate to their particular circumstances.  Some will be owed a 
further duty to help directly with housing if they come within the priority 
categories contained within the homelessness legislation.  It is, 
therefore, important that the council: 

 
♦ continues to provide a comprehensive housing advice 

service, with a proactive approach to preventing 
homelessness wherever possible; 

♦ ensures that adequate levels of temporary housing are 
available for those young people faced with homelessness; 

♦ ensures sufficient permanent affordable housing is available, 
particularly to help meet our statutory responsibilities; and 

6



 

♦ ensure that appropriate support services are in place for 
young people to help sustain them in their home and so 
prevent homelessness. 

 
3.2 The strategy’s action plan highlights the priority areas where work will be 

progressed.  The key areas include: 
♦ Progressing partnership working to improve joint systems 

and procedures, to achieve more effective preventative 
homelessness services.  In particular this will be through 
involvement in the multi-agency review of services for 
vulnerable children and young people; 

♦ Investigating the need for additional supported housing for 
young people, including direct access accommodation.  This 
will include consideration on the most appropriate model of 
provision where a need is demonstrated; and 

♦ Working with Registered Social Landlords to increase the 
provision of tenancy support services where a need is 
demonstrated.  In the light of year-on-year cuts through the 
Supporting People budget this may involve developing joint 
commissioning of services with partner agencies where 
appropriate. 

 
3.3 The development of more effective preventative services through 

partnership working will be achieved through existing resources.  The 
potential resource implications of this strategy are: 

 
♦ The grant funding required to maximise the development of 

new affordable housing within the district; 
♦ The capital funding required to increase the provision of 

supported housing, including direct access housing, for 
young people.  This will depend upon the outcome of future 
research into whether there is a need for increased 
provision; and 

♦ The revenue funding of support services for young people, 
whether these are attached to specific supported housing 
schemes, or tenancy support services for young people in 
the district’s general housing stock.  Again, this will depend 
upon the outcome of future research into need.  It may, 
however, be affected by cuts in the Supporting People 
budget.  Where this is the case, options on the joint 
commissioning of services will be investigated.  

 
3.4 Any additional resources required will be considered as part of the 

Council’s Medium Term Plan. 
 
4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
4.1 The council is faced with a level of demand for temporary and 

permanent social housing from young people that far exceeds the 
supply.  Given that Huntingdonshire is a high demand area for social 
housing and that supply is unlikely to ever match demand, the council 
has an important role to play in: 

♦ preventing homelessness amongst young people wherever 
possible, for example through timely and effective advice, 
and the provision of mediation services; 

7



 

♦ prioritising those young people in greatest need of housing 
through the Housing Register where homelessness cannot 
be prevented; 

♦ maximising all new affordable housing opportunities, and in 
particular the right mix of property sizes in order to address 
need; and 

♦ ensuring that support services that meet the needs of young 
people are maintained, and developed where appropriate, in 
the context of a diminishing Supporting People budget. 

 
4.2 The Young Persons Housing Strategy is a supporting strategy to the 

Housing Strategy and forms part of the policy framework.  Under the 
Council’s constitutional arrangements, this strategy requires approval by 
the Council. 

 
5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 Members are invited to consider the Strategy at Scrutiny Panel on 1 

March 2005 and Cabinet on 17 March 2005, prior to its consideration at 
Council on 13 April 2005. 

 
5.2 Council is asked to approve the Young Persons Housing Strategy 

2005-07. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Preventing Youth Homelessness - ODPM - Sept 2003 
 
 
Contact 
Officers: 

Jon Collen, Housing Needs & Resources Manager 
 01480 388220 

 Steve Plant, Head of Housing Services 
 01480 388240 

  
  
 

8



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SERVICE DELIVERY & RESOURCES)  

1 MARCH 2005 

 
CABINET 

 
17 MARCH 2005 

 

REVIEW OF THE HOUSING REGISTER AND NOMINATIONS POLICY 
(Report by the Head of Housing Services) 

  
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To report on the implications of the Housing Register policy and points 

system, introduced in September 2003 and seek approval for 
amendments to that policy. 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 The Housing Register policy and points system was reviewed in 2003 

and introduced in September of that year.  When approving the new 
policy, Cabinet resolved that the effect of the change be monitored and a 
report submitted so that the success of the amendments may be 
reviewed and any recommendations for change determined.   

 
2.2 Members were involved in the review at an early stage so that they had 

the opportunity to make recommendations and influence the 
development of the new policy.  Councillors Baker, Banerjee, Barnes, 
Chandler, Elliot, Hansard, Powell and Reynolds were involved in this 
process.  

 
2.3 The review considered three areas of the policy; firstly, who should be 

accepted onto the Register; secondly, the various types of housing need 
and which should be prioritised for assistance with housing through the 
Register; and thirdly, the policy relating to matching different household 
sizes to property types and sizes. 

 
2.4 The objective of the review was to ensure that those households in 

greatest need are assisted with housing.  Although there were several 
minor changes to the policy that would not have such a significant 
impact on the allocation of housing, there were two main areas that 
might.  These were: 

(a) the increase in the priority awarded for overcrowding; and 
(b) the increase in the priority awarded for existing housing 

association tenants wishing to move to smaller 
accommodation. 

 
 Increase In The Priority Awarded For Overcrowding 
 
2.5 Members wanted applicants living in overcrowded conditions to have the 

opportunity to be housed through the Register.  The concern was that 
the majority of family accommodation was offered to homeless 
households due to their priority as a result of the council’s statutory 
duties under the homelessness legislation.  It was also recognised that 
the previous priority system did not award a sufficient priority to families 
having children that then needed to move to larger accommodation.  
This policy had a particular impact on existing housing association 
tenants who were unable to move when their household size increased.  

Agenda Item 3

9



 

The housing that they occupied would, therefore, not become available 
for other households needing to move into smaller accommodation.    

 
2.6 The new policy addresses these concerns by awarding an increasing 

level of priority the longer a household has to live in an overcrowded 
situation.  This change affected a significant number of people that are 
considered to be overcrowded and therefore have a high level of 
housing need.  Approximately 25% of the 3000 households on the 
Register are considered to be overcrowded.   

 
2.7 This policy is considered a success as the priority of overcrowded 

households on the Register is seen to be increasing.  Officers have 
begun to see families that have lived in overcrowded situations for 
longer periods of time receiving offers through the Register.  Under the 
previous policy this would not have been possible due to the lack of 
priority awarded to their circumstances.     

 
 Increase In The Priority Awarded For Housing Association Tenants 

Wishing To Move To Smaller Accommodation 
 
2.8 The new policy saw an increase in the priority awarded to existing 

housing association tenants wishing to transfer to a smaller property.  
This policy amendment is considered a success as these applicants are 
now in a position on the Register where they are able to transfer.  The 
policy allows the best use of under-occupied social rented housing stock 
where people are willing to move to smaller housing by releasing larger 
housing for other households needing family sized accommodation.   

 
 Other Policy Changes 
 
2.9 The new Register policy has been in operation for over a year.  There 

are a small number of changes required, although the majority of these 
are minor amendments that do not affect who is eligible for housing or 
how applications are prioritised.  There are though two following 
suggested amendments that will have an impact on how the priority of 
applicants is calculated: 

 
(a) Points awarded where the applicant does not have access to a 

living room, for example in a shared house where the living 
room is used as an extra bedroom.  This was not included in 
the original review of the policy.  It is recommended that an 
applicant who does not have access to a living room should be 
awarded additional priority over an applicant that does. 

  
(b) The overcrowding assessment to be based on a maximum of 

two children, beneath the age of 8 years, sharing a bedroom.  
The policy currently allows a maximum of four children, 
beneath the age of 8 years, to occupy a larger bedroom.  It is 
felt that this is unrealistic in many circumstances.  It is 
therefore recommended, in line with the policy to award higher 
levels of priority where overcrowding exists, to base 
overcrowding assessments on a maximum of two children, 
beneath the age of 8 years, being able to share a bedroom. 

10



 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 The suggested amendments to the policy can be easily achieved.  The 

amendments will allow a greater level of fairness when prioritising 
households on the Register.  It will affect only a small number of 
applicants.   

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
4.1 The new policy has been successfully implemented.  Members’ main 

aims of increasing the priority of overcrowded households and those 
under-occupying housing association properties have been achieved.  
The full effects of the policy change relating to overcrowding will develop 
as overcrowded household see their priority increase year on year.  The 
policy to allow under-occupying tenants to move more easily will help in 
releasing larger family housing for those newly developing families.   

 
4.2 Minor amendments are suggested to the policy, as highlighted above 

and in the attached policy document.  These are in line with the general 
thrust of the new policy and can be easily implemented to add a greater 
degree of fairness to the priority system. 

 
5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 That Scrutiny Panel: 

(a)  note that the previous amendments to policy are achieving 
their aims; and  
(b)  comment on the proposed revisions to policy prior to its 
submission to the Cabinet. 

 
5.2 That Cabinet endorse and adopt the proposed amendments to the 

Housing Register and Nominations Policy, subject to the consideration 
of comments from the Scrutiny Panel   

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Huntingdonshire District Council’s Housing Register & Nominations Policy  
 
Review of the Housing Register & Nominations Policy Report – Cabinet 17 
April 2003 
 
Contact 
Officers: 

Jon Collen 
Housing Needs & Resources Manager 

 01480 388220 

 Steve Plant 
Head of Housing Services 

 01480 388240 

 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  
 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
PANEL (PLANNING & FINANCE) 
CABINET 

8TH MARCH 2005  
 

17TH MARCH 2005  
 
 

COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 
(Report by Head of Environment & Transport) 

 
1. PURPOSE  
 
1.1 To present the draft Community Safety Strategy for approval.  
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires Community Safety 

Partnerships to publish a strategy for reducing crime and disorder in 
their local area every three years. The latest strategy is due to be 
published by April 2005 to cover the coming three-year period to 
2008.  

 
2.2 The strategy has been drawn up following a process of auditing crime 

and disorder and consultation with the public.  The strategy sets outs 
some key priorities and sets targets for reducing the crime and 
disorder problems highlighted by the audit and consultation.  

 
 
3. THE COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY  
 
3.1 The overall aim of the strategy is to promote safer communities 

through working in partnership. The strategy sets out six key priorities 
listed in paragraph 4 below. Targets have been set under each priority 
and these will be monitored and reviewed by the Community Safety 
Partnership to ensure adequate progress is being made.  

 
3.2 The strategy will be implemented through a number of working groups 

based on the priority themes. The community will be involved through 
the area based community safety task groups which will meet twice a 
year and will give the public a chance to raise any crime and disorder 
concerns and find out about progress made against strategy targets in 
their area. 

 
3.3 The draft Huntingdonshire Community Safety Strategy for 2005-2008 

is attached at Annex A. At the time of writing a number of the targets 
are stilled being worked on by the Crime Research Team and will be 
added before the strategy is published. 

  

Agenda Item 4

13



 
 
4 STRATEGY PRIORITIES 
 
4.1 The priorities for the new Community Safety Strategy are as follows 

(in no particular order of priority): 
  

♦ The reduction of violence against the person 
 

♦ The reduction of vehicle crime. 
 
♦ To tackle and put in place actions to reduce anti-social behaviour 
 
♦ The reduction of shop theft in Huntingdon and other market towns 
 
♦ To reduce the harm caused by drug and alcohol misuse 

 
♦ The reduction of dwelling burglary in hotspot areas including 

Huntingdon East and Huntingdon North wards 
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is  
 

  recommended that the Panel and Cabinet approve the 
Community Safety Strategy for 2005 - 2008. 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Crime and Disorder Audit 
Location 3rd floor Pathfinder House 
File ref - Huntingdonshire Crime and Disorder Audit 2004 
 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Sonia Hansen 
Development and Community Manager 

  01480 388341 
 

 
  
 

14



CABINET         17th MARCH 2005 
 
 

EQUALITY AND INCLUSION STRATEGY 
AND RACE EQUALITY SCHEME 

(Report of the Head of Policy) 
 
1.  INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to provide an opportunity for the Cabinet 

to consider and comment on a revised and enhanced Equality and 
Inclusion Strategy, together with an updated Race Equality 
Scheme. 
 

1.2  The Strategy and Scheme are intended to provide a framework 
and common approach to equality in the way the Council achieves 
its priority of providing high quality services that meet the needs of 
local people and effective community leadership. 
 

1.3 The Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Service Delivery & Resources) have 
considered the Strategy and Race Equality Scheme and made minor 
changes which are reflected in the appended document. 
 

2.  SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
2.1  In 2002 the Council adopted an Equality Strategy, supported by an 

action plan. A Race Equality Scheme also was endorsed, which 
set out how the Council intended to meet the general duty of 
promoting equal opportunity, good race relations and preventing 
discrimination. 
 

2.2  Since then there have been changes in relevant legislation and 
regulations and new good practice and guidance have been 
published. The Council is also required to review its Race Equality 
Scheme every three years. Accordingly, a comprehensive review 
of the Strategy has been carried out. 
 

2.3  At the same a social inclusion policy has been drafted to help 
combat pockets of exclusion across the District. In view of the 
similarity of objectives, the inclusion policies have been 
incorporated into a combined Equality and Inclusion Strategy. 
 

2.4  The attached Strategy and Scheme have been designed to meet 
statutory requirements and good practice; they also extend the 
Council’s approach beyond minimal standards in order to support 
its priorities as a service provider and community leader. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

15



3.  RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1  The Cabinet is invited to submit comments on and otherwise to 

recommend to Council adoption of the appended Equality and 
Inclusion Strategy and updated Race Equality Scheme. 

 
 
 
Background Papers 
Equality Strategy, Draft Social Inclusion Strategy, Race Equality Scheme, 
May 2002; Available from the Head of Policy 
 
 
Contact Officers 
Ian Leatherbarrow, Head of Policy ��01480 388005 
Ian.Leatherbarrow@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 
Louise Clewes, Policy Officer ��01480 388032 
Louise.Clewes@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 
 

16



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DRAFT  
Equality & Inclusion Strategy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Pathfinder House 
St Mary's Street 
Huntingdon 

 
November 2004 

d i s t r I c t   c o u n c i l
 

 

17



 

 
Equality & Inclusion Strategy 
 
Contents 

                                  Page number 
1. Introduction 2 
2 About Huntingdonshire 2 
3. Outcomes 4 - 6 
 
Appendix 1: Responsibilities 
Appendix 2: Action Plan 2003/2004  
Appendix 3: Audit Commission Performance Indicators  
Appendix 4: Definitions 
Appendix 5: Outline of the law relating to equality 
 
Further information 
For further information or clarification about the Council's Equality 
& Inclusion Strategy or if you would like to make any comments 
please contact: 
 
Louise Clewes, Policy Officer, 01480 388032 
Louise.Clewes@huntsdc.gov.uk  
 
 
If you would like a copy or a translation of this document, a 
large text version or an audio version, please contact us on 
01480 388032 and we will try to accommodate your needs.  
 
The strategy is freely available from our website 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk  
 
  

18



 

Policy Division 2

 
1. Introduction  
 
The council recognises that some people do not have equal access to our 
services or information about them. To ensure fairness and equity in the 
provision of our services, some services may need to be developed to meet 
different needs. 
 
The council also recognises that discrimination or exclusion cannot always 
be dealt with as a single issue.  Different strands, particularly those relating 
to race, disability, age, religious beliefs, sexual orientation, rural isolation, 
gender and deprivation, may combine to cause inequality and social 
exclusion.   
 
To meet our priorities of providing high quality services and effective 
community leadership the council understands that: 

• Huntingdonshire is made up of many different communities 
• some communities have greater or different needs than others 
• equality does not mean doing the same for everyone 
• to make progress we must target resources to meet the greatest 

needs 
• we cannot afford to ignore communities with fewer needs, and 

everyone needs to feel involved. 
  
 
The purpose of this strategy is to provide a framework and common 
approach to deal with equality and social inclusion.   
 
 
2. About Huntingdonshire  
 
Huntingdonshire is a large rural district, which covers an area of 
approximately 910 square kilometres. Nearly 157,000 people live in the 
district, with about 45% of the population living in the 4 market towns of 
Huntingdon, Ramsey, St Ives and St Neots. 
 
Overall we do not have a high proportion of people from a black or minority 
ethnic background (BME) or have high levels of deprivation or social 
exclusion. We know that, generally: 

• the local economy is strong 
• unemployment is low 
• educational attainment is above the national average (based on 

pupils obtaining 5 or more GCSE’s grades A-C) 

19



 

Policy Division 3

• income is above the national average (but below the regional 
average) 

• our houses are in a good condition 
• there are low levels of crime. 
• most local people are in good health  
• the numbers of claimants for Incapacity Benefit or Severe 

Disablement Allowance is below the national average.  
 
More detailed information from the 2001 Census and other research 
indicates that: 
 

• nearly 22% of the population are aged 15 or under 
• nearly 6% of the population are aged 75 or over 
• over the next 15 – 30 years, Huntingdonshire will have a larger 

proportion of its population in the 65+ age group, and there will be 
more people over 75 due to longer life expectancy 

• a small proportion of the population (2.85%) are from ethnic minority 
communities including Black African, Black Caribbean, Indian, 
Pakistani, Bangladeshi and Chinese 

• 93% of the population was born in the UK 
• of the 63,062 households in the district, 24% are one-person 

households 
• of the 63,062 households in the district, just over 14% have no 

vehicle 
• 1% of people of working age are unemployed, 11% of the population 

is retired and 2.9% are permanently sick or disabled 
• nearly 24% of the population have no qualifications, however, 20% of 

the population have a degree or higher qualification 
• 4.3% of households are without central heating, only 0.2% are 

without a bath or shower and 3.5% of households are overcrowded. 
 
Against this background the council accepts the need to undertake further 
work to be able to understand the diversity of needs within the district and 
how deprivation and social exclusion affects small sections of our 
communities.  
 
 
3. Outcomes 
 
It is a council priority to deliver high quality services to our communities.  To 
achieve this we must ensure that we understand the diverse needs of local 

20



 

Policy Division 4

people, that our services meet those needs and that they are provided in a 
fair and accessible way.   
 
Providing leadership in our communities is also one of the Council’s 
priorities.  An important part of this leadership role is to promote equality, 
inclusion and the benefits that come from understanding and valuing 
diversity in our communities.   
 
To contribute towards meeting these priorities this strategy identifies two 
outcomes that we need to achieve and two measures that will tell us how 
successful we are — 
 
 
Outcome Measure 
That our services are provided in 
ways that meet diverse local needs 

% of local people who believe that 
council services meet their needs 

That the council is recognised for 
promoting equality and inclusion in 
communities. 

% of local people who believe that 
the council promotes equality and 
inclusion in their community. 

 
 
To achieve these outcomes we will establish a programme of actions to 
develop and improve the way we –  
 
Consult & engage with our communities 
To ensure that we understand the diversity of the needs of local people, we 
will:  

• use appropriate methods of communication and consultation to 
engage with different communities and individuals 

• use national and local data, particularly from other local authorities 
and community or voluntary agencies to increase our understanding 
of local need 

• use information from our established complaints procedure.   
 
Plan & deliver services 
To ensure that our services are available to all that need them and are 
delivered in an appropriate way we will: 

• use the information from listening, consulting and engaging with our 
communities to plan and deliver services 

• avoid discrimination when designing, delivering or charging for 
services 

• ensure that when new and existing policies are developed their 
impact upon equality & inclusion will be considered 

21



 

Policy Division 5

• seek to ensure that information about services is published widely 
and in ways that will help local people to use them 

• continue to assess and review ways of making services more 
accessible 

• frequently review access arrangements to Council premises 
• seek to ensure that our partners adopt the same approach to equality 

and social inclusion 
• ensure equality and inclusion is incorporated into our procurement 

arrangements. 
 
Support our communities 
To ensure that we promote equality and inclusion in our communities we 
will: 
• ensure that our communities have access to and information about our 

services 
• consult, when relevant, local people in planning for our services  
• support democratically elected representatives to support communities 

and individuals 
• ensure that council policies do not discriminate directly or indirectly 

against any groups in our community 
• identify and address unmet needs and gaps in services where 

appropriate 
• promote activity in community based organisations 
• identify socially excluded groups and develop measures to promote 

inclusion 
• ensure that community and welfare rights information is easily available  
• engage and support voluntary, community, charitable organisations and 

social enterprises. 
 
 
Develop & support employees 
To ensure that our employees and employment practices contribute to the 
outcomes of this strategy we will: 

• maintain a separate equal opportunities employment policy, which 
promotes equality and diversity in our workforce 

• develop our employees to help them promote equality and inclusion 
in our communities 

• identify clear responsibilities for equality within the council (Appendix 
1) 

• provide guidance to help employees ensure that policies, strategies 
and plans are fair  

• help employees to recognise and prevent discrimination  

22



 

Policy Division 6

• allocate resources for improving equality and social inclusion 
practices 

• help employees comply with the requirements of all relevant 
legislation and good practice guidance. 

 
Monitor & evaluate our performance  
To ensure we are making progress we will:  

• monitor our performance against Best Value Performance Indicators 
(BVPI’s) and local measures 

• report performance on equalities & inclusion indicators as part of the 
council’s comprehensive performance management framework 

• use the Equality Standard, and Race Equality Assessments to collect 
and publish evidence of good practice throughout the council. 

 
 
 

23



 

Policy Division 7

Appendix 1 
Responsibilities 
 
All Councillors, employees and others who work on behalf of the council 
have a duty to implement the outcomes of this strategy through the action 
plan.  Particular responsibilities include: 
 
Councillors  
Councillors will support this strategy and work towards the promotion of 
equalities and social inclusion in all council and community activities. 
 
Chief Executive  
The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the implementation of the 
Equality & Inclusion Strategy for the council as a whole.  
 
Directors 
Directors have a duty to promote the Equality & Inclusion Strategy 
throughout their directorates. They also have responsibility for the 
implementation, review, monitoring and performance of any equality 
schemes (e.g. disability and gender checklists etc) or requirements specific 
to a service that fall within their directorate. 
 
Services 
Heads of service, activity managers and team leaders are responsible for  
implementing the strategy in the day-to-day delivery of their service, 
including the collection of data. 
 
Employees 
All employees have a responsibility to implement the strategy and work 
towards the provision of services that meet the goals and objectives of the 
policy. Appropriate training will be provided to help employees achieve this. 
 
Head of Policy 
The Head of Policy will ensure that the Strategy is reviewed and 
maintained on a 3 yearly basis, and will evaluate and verify performance 
data that has been provided. 
 
Contractors  
When a contractor carries out any function on behalf of the council will be 
expected to conform to relevant equality legislation.

24



Po
lic

y 
D

iv
is

io
n 

 
8

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

  
   

   
 

 
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

00
4/

20
05

 
 

C
ou

nc
il 

ou
tc

om
es

 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
&

 
In

cl
us

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 
ou

tc
om

es
 

M
ea

su
re

s 
Ta

rg
et

s 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
&

 
In

cl
us

io
n 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
ct

io
ns

 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

  

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
    K

ey
 b

eh
av

io
ur

s 
    C

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
 

th
at

 m
ee

t l
oc

al
 

ne
ed

s 
    A

cc
es

si
bl

e 
se

rv
ic

es
  

        Th
at

 o
ur

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 

w
ay

s 
th

at
 

m
ee

t d
iv

er
se

 
lo

ca
l n

ee
d 

         %
 o

f l
oc

al
 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 

be
lie

ve
 th

at
 

co
un

ci
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 
m

ee
t t

he
ir 

ne
ed

 

         To
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ba
se

lin
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

af
te

r t
he

 
an

nu
al

 
su

rv
ey

 
(M

ar
ch

 –
 

M
ay

 0
5)

 

To
 p

la
n 

&
 

de
liv

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
        To

 d
ev

el
op

 
&

 s
up

po
rt 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
     To

 m
on

ito
r &

 
ev

al
ua

te
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

 

P
ro

du
ce

 p
ol

ic
y 

st
at

em
en

ts
 o

n 
ag

e,
 g

en
de

r, 
di

sa
bi

lit
y,

 ru
ra

l i
nc

lu
si

on
, s

ex
ua

l o
rie

nt
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
lig

io
us

 b
el

ie
f  

 P
ro

du
ce

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
on

 c
le

ar
 p

rin
t, 

&
 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
tra

ns
la

tio
n 

 To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
of

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 k
ey

 c
or

po
ra

te
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 a
re

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 d

iff
er

en
t f

or
m

at
s 

 R
ev

is
e 

D
D

A
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 fo

r H
D

C
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
 Pr

ov
id

e 
di

ve
rs

ity
 &

 e
qu

al
ity

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
 P

ro
vi

de
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 &
 c

as
e 

st
ud

ie
s 

to
 h

el
p 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
(fo

r t
he

 a
bo

ve
 p

ol
ic

y 
st

at
em

en
ts

) 
 P

ro
du

ce
  g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 d

iff
er

en
t f

ai
th

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
di

st
ric

t 
 P

ro
du

ce
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 d

at
a 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 e

th
ni

ci
ty

 
 To

 w
or

k 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
e 

E
qu

al
ity

 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

 To
 p

ro
du

ce
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

fo
r s

ta
ff 

to
 h

el
p 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

St
an

da
rd

 fo
r l

oc
al

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
 To

 a
ss

es
s 

co
un

ci
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

&
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
St

an
da

rd
 fo

r 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
 A

ss
es

s 
co

un
ci

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 o
ur

 R
ac

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
Sc

he
m

e 
 

A
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

05
 

  A
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

05
 

 20
07

/0
8 

  Ap
ril

 2
00

6 
 D

at
e 

to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 

 6 
co

ur
se

 p
er

 
ye

ar
 

 Ap
ril

 2
00

6 
  Ap

ril
 2

00
5 

  Se
pt

em
be

r 2
00

5 
  Ac

hi
ev

e 
Le

ve
l 1

 
by

 2
00

6 
 Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
5 

   Ap
ril

 2
00

6 
   B

y 
en

d 
M

ar
ch

 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

   H
ea

d 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

  Al
l 

  H
ea

d 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

 H
ea

d 
of

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t &
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
H

ea
d 

of
 P

er
so

nn
el

 
  H

ea
d 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
  H

ea
d 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
  H

ea
d 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
 

  Al
l 

  H
ea

d 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

   H
ea

d 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

& 
 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
  H

ea
d 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 

25



Po
lic

y 
D

iv
is

io
n 

 
9

 

C
ou

nc
il 

ou
tc

om
es

 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
&

 
In

cl
us

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 
ou

tc
om

es
 

M
ea

su
re

s 
Ta

rg
et

s 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
&

 
In

cl
us

io
n 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
ct

io
ns

 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

  

C
om

m
un

ity
 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

     M
an

ag
in

g 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 

     G
oo

d 
re

pu
ta

tio
n 

      Th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 fo
r 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
eq

ua
lit

y 
&

 
in

cl
us

io
n 

in
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 

      %
 o

f l
oc

al
 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 

be
lie

ve
 th

at
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

pr
om

ot
es

 
eq

ua
lit

y 
&

 
in

cl
us

io
n 

in
 

th
ei

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

      To
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ba
se

lin
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

af
te

r t
he

 
an

nu
al

 
su

rv
ey

 
(M

ar
ch

 –
 

M
ay

 0
5)

 

To
 s

up
po

rt 
ou

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

          To
 c

on
su

lt 
&

 
en

ga
ge

 w
ith

 
ou

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t f

or
 c

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
   D

D
A

 &
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

   R
es

ea
rc

h 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f s
oc

ia
l 

ex
cl

us
io

n 
in

 H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 

 P
ro

vi
de

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 c
om

m
un

ity
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
in

 Y
ax

le
y 

an
d 

R
am

se
y.

 
     P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f g

ra
nt

 a
id

 to
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 w

ho
 m

ee
t t

he
 

D
is

tri
ct

 C
ou

nc
ils

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

rit
er

ia
. 

 S
up

po
rt 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 F

or
um

  
 In

vo
lv

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 Y

ou
ng

 P
er

so
n’

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 

S
tra

te
gy

 
 C

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
 o

f B
M

E
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 to

 
in

fo
rm

 th
e 

B
M

E
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

 In
vo

lv
e 

ol
de

r p
eo

pl
e 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

O
ld

er
 

P
er

so
n’

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 

 C
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

D
iv

er
si

ty
 F

or
um

 p
ro

je
ct

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

& 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t w
ith

 
B

M
E

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
 To

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

‘m
ak

in
g 

ch
an

ge
s 

fo
r t

he
 

fu
tu

re
’ L

oc
al

 P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
(L

P
S

A
)  

pr
oj

ec
t. 

20
06

/7
 

   D
at

e 
to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 
  Ap

ril
 2

00
6/

7 
  Y

ax
le

y 
(o

n-
go

in
g)

 
R

am
se

y 
re

-
op

en
s 

af
te

r r
ef

it 
M

ay
 0

5 
  O

n-
go

in
g 

 
   O

n-
go

in
g 

  D
at

e 
to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 
 D

at
e 

to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 

 D
at

e 
to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 
 Au

tu
m

n 
20

05
 

   D
at

e 
to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 
 

P
ol

ic
y/

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
&

 
P

er
so

nn
el

  
 H

ea
d 

of
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t &

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

 H
ea

d 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
  H

ea
d 

of
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

     H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
  H

ea
d 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
 H

ea
d 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 

   H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 
  H

ea
d 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 

  H
ea

d 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
   H

ea
d 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 

  

26



Po
lic

y 
D

iv
is

io
n 

 
10

 

    A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

  
 

   
   

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 - 
Eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

B
VP

I 
In

di
ca

to
r 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
02

/0
3 

A
ct

ua
l 

20
03

/0
4 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
03

/0
4 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
04

/0
5 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
05

/0
6 

C
om

m
en

ts
  

2a
 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f t

he
 E

qu
al

ity
 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r L
oc

al
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t t

o 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 c
on

fo
rm

s 

Le
ve

l 1
 

Le
ve

l 1
 

Le
ve

l 1
 

Le
ve

l 1
 

Le
ve

l 1
 

 

2b
 

Th
e 

du
ty

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

ra
ce

 
eq

ua
lit

y 
ch

ec
k 

lis
t s

co
re

 
 N

/A
 

 68
%

 
 63

%
 

 68
%

 
 74

%
 

 H
D

C
 a

re
 in

 th
e 

to
p 

qu
ar

til
e 

 

15
6 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
ou

nc
il 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
pe

n 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

 
w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

pu
bl

ic
 a

re
as

 a
re

 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r a
nd

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 

 6%
 

 6%
 

 12
%

 
 12

%
 

 12
%

 
To

p 
qu

ar
til

e 
20

04
/0

6 
is

 6
4%

  
H

D
C

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
6%

 (w
hi

ch
 is

 e
qu

al
 to

 1
 

bu
ild

in
g)

 in
 2

00
4/

05
.  

O
ur

 p
oo

r 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 is
 d

ue
 to

 m
an

y 
bu

ild
in

gs
 

be
in

g 
ol

d 
an

d 
to

o 
co

st
ly

 to
 m

ak
e 

al
te

ra
tio

ns
. 

17
4 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f r
ac

ia
l 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
re

co
rd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 

 0.
6 

 1.
2 

 0 
 0 

 0 
Th

is
 re

la
te

s 
to

 w
he

re
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
(c

us
to

m
er

) f
ee

ls
 th

at
 H

D
C

 h
as

 
di

sc
rim

in
at

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 th

em
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

17
5 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f r
ac

ia
l 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
th

at
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 
fu

rth
er

 a
ct

io
n 

 10
0%

 
 10

0%
 

 10
0%

 
 10

0%
 

 10
0%

 
 

    

27



Policy Division 

 11

Appendix 4 
Definitions  
 
The Council recognises that it is important to be guided by national definitions 
of discrimination and harassment and the terms used in this strategy have 
been defined below.   
Not all of the terms defined below have been used in this strategy however it 
was decided that because some of these terms are often used without 
explanation in other documents or reports, it would be useful to provide a 
definition of them here. 
 
 
Consultation 
Asking for views on policies or services from staff, colleagues, service-users, 
general public or representatives from our communities. Different 
circumstances call for different types of consultation. For example, 
consultation includes public meetings, focus groups, surveys and 
questionnaires, and meeting with experts. 
 
Deprivation  
People can be said to be deprived if they lack the types of diet, clothing, 
housing, household facilities and fuel, and environmental, educational, 
working and social conditions, activities and facilities which are customary. 
People are in poverty if they lack the resources to escape deprivation 
(Townsend 1979) 
Deprivation refers to unmet need, which is caused by a lack of resources of all 
kinds not just financial 
 
Discrimination  
Discrimination can be both direct and indirect and that it can occur in many 
ways. The council considers discrimination to be broadly defined as: 
To discriminate is to treat a person more or less favourably on the basis of 
race, colour, nationality or ethnic origin, religion, culture, gender, disability, 
age or sexual orientation, or other such category that is irrelevant to the 
individual's right to receive fair and equal treatment.  
Discrimination on the basis of race, nationality, colour, ethnic origin, gender, 
age and disability is unlawful. Direct discrimination is deliberate. Indirect 
discrimination is where an act or failure to act, intentionally or inadvertently, 
has a disproportionate impact on an individual or a particular group. 
 
Diversity  
No legal or universally agreed definition for diversity exists. Diversity has not 
replaced equality but has added a further layer of understanding to the 

28



Policy Division 

 12

statutory obligations about race, gender and disability. Diversity is about 
improving how people can work together by valuing people’s differences and 
similarities.  
 
Institutional discrimination 
The Stephen Lawrence Inquiry Report (Macphereson, 1999) found that 
institutional discrimination could affect the way organisations operate and the 
way services are provided. Institutional discrimination is defined as ‘the 
collective failure of an organisation to provide an appropriate and professional 
service to people because of their colour, culture, ethnic origin, gender, 
disability or age. It can be seen or detected in processes, attitudes and 
behaviour which amount to discrimination though unwitting prejudice, 
ignorance, thoughtlessness and stereotyping which disadvantage on the 
grounds of ethnicity, gender, disability or age.’ 
 
Definition of Disability 
The Disability Discrimination Act (1995) provides the following definition of 
disability: 
‘A disabled person has physical or mental impairment which has a substantial, 
long-term, adverse effect on their ability to carry out normal day to day duties’ 
 
Ethnic monitoring 
A process for collecting, storing and analysing data about individuals' ethnic 
(or racial) background to see whether all groups are fairly represented.  
 
Functions 
The full range of activities carried out by a public authority to meet its duties. 
 
Policies 
Policies are the sets of principles or criteria that define the different ways in 
which an organisation carries out its role or functions and meets its duties. 
Policies also include formal and informal decisions made in the course of their 
implementation.  
 
Poverty  
People are in poverty if they lack the resources to escape deprivation, in other 
words a lack of money or material possessions. Townsend (1979) describes 
poverty as ‘individuals, families and groups can be said to be in poverty if they 
lack the resources to obtain the types of diet, participate in the activities and 
have the living conditions and amenities which are customary, or at least 
widely encouraged or approved in the societies to which they belong’. 

29



Policy Division 

 13

A family can also be defined as being in poverty if their income is 60% lower 
than the average local earnings. What about savings & capital? 
 
Procurement  
Procurement relates to any process or action carried out by the council that 
results in the obtaining of goods or services. 
 
Race equality duty 
This term is used to refer to both the general duty and, where appropriate, the 
specific duties, placed on public authorities under section 71(1) of the Race 
Relations Act 1976, as amended and the Race Relations Act 1976 (Statutory 
Duties) Order 2001 & Race Relations Act 1976 (Statutory Duties) (Scotland) 
Order 2002.  
 
Race equality impact assessment 
This is a systematic way of finding out how a proposed policy is likely to affect 
the promotion of race equality.  
 
Race equality scheme 
Most public authorities bound by the general duty have a specific duty to 
produce a race equality scheme. This is a document setting out how the 
public authority plans to meet its statutory duties under section 71(1) of the 
Race Relations Act 1976 and in particular articles 2 (2) and 2 (3) of the Race 
Relations Act 1976 (Statutory Duties) Order 2001 & articles 2 (3) and 2 (4) of 
the Race Relations Act 1976 (Statutory Duties) (Scotland) Order 2002.   
 
Racial group 
A group of people defined by race, colour, nationality and ethnic or national 
origins. All racial groups are protected from unlawful racial discrimination.  
 
Racism 
This term is used to describe a range of ideas and attitudes, used to justify 
placing (a) particular racial group(s) in an inferior position to another. The 
Race Relations Act (1976) defines ‘a racial group’ as a group of persons 
defined by skin colour, race, nationality or ethnic or national origins. These 
negative attitudes often result in discriminatory or oppressive behaviour 
The Act defines direct racial discrimination as: 

• treating one person less favourably than another on racial grounds. 
Direct discrimination is unlawful under the Race Relations Act 1976. 
This definition can be expanded to include other forms of discrimination 
such as age, disability and gender. 

The Act defines indirect racial discrimination as: 

30



Policy Division 

 14

• that a rule or condition which is applied equally to everyone can be met 
by a considerably smaller proportion of people from a particular racial 
group 

• the rule is to their disadvantage  
• and the condition or rule cannot be justified on non-racial grounds.  

All three conditions must apply. Again this definition can be expanded to 
include other forms of discrimination such as age, disability and gender.  
 
Definition of Racial Harassment: 
Racial harassment is unwanted conduct of a racial nature, or other conduct 
based on race affecting the dignity of women and men. 
 
Definition of a Racist Incident: 
Recommendation 12 of the Stephen Lawrence enquiry defines a racist 
incident as;  

• any incident, which is perceived to be racist by the victim or any other 
person. 

 
Sexism 
The Sex Discrimination Act 1975 declares that is it unlawful to treat a person 
more or less favourably than another on the grounds of sex. It is also unlawful 
to apply a requirement or condition, which discriminates against women 
because they are less able to comply with it than men are (or vice versa). The 
same protection applies to married people. 
It is also unlawful, in certain circumstances, to treat a person less favourably 
than another on the grounds that he or she intends to undergo, is undergoing 
or has undergone gender reassignment (sex change). 
 
Sexuality  
This term refers to the general preference of people. It is preferable to the 
alternative term ‘sexual orientation’. 
 
Social Exclusion 
Social exclusion is a term used to refer to the experience of specific 
communities, neighbourhoods, families and individuals. They will have either, 
a combination of linked problems (such as unemployment, poor skills, low 
income, poor housing, high crime, ill health, cycles of early pregnancy, family 
breakdown and isolation) or particular characteristic (such as minority ethnic 
backgrounds, being in care, old age, drug dependency or abuse, mental 
illness or a disability). This may mean that their quality of life is significantly 
disadvantaged compared with the opportunities available to the majority. 
Social Inclusion encompasses all activities to combat social exclusion. 

31



Policy Division 

 15

Appendix 5 
Outline of the law relating to equality & inclusion 
The council has statutory obligations to promote equalities through the 
following key pieces of legislation: 

• Disability Discrimination Act (1995) 
• Race Relations Act 1976 and its amendment of 2000 
• Sex Discrimination Act 1975 
• Human Rights Act 1998 
• Anti-discrimination in employment directive 
• UN convention on the rights of the child  

 
The council also has responsibilities to address specific aspects of equal 
opportunities or discrimination through other pieces of legislation  
 
The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (DDA) 
The DDA introduces measures aimed at ending discrimination on the grounds 
of disability. The Act’s provisions include employment, access to goods, 
services and facilities, and the buying and renting of land or property. The Act 
is being introduced on a staggered basis. 
 
The Race Relations Act 1976, The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000  
The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000 came into force in April 2001 and 
strengthens the 1976 Act. It arose in part due to the Stephen Lawrence 
Inquiry and has been targeted at the public sector. It places a new duty on all 
public authorities to eliminate discrimination, promote racial equality and 
promote good race relations. 
 
Sex Discrimination Act 1975  
The Sex Discrimination Act 1975 (SDA) prohibits sex discrimination against 
individuals in the areas of employment, education, and the provision of goods, 
facilities and services and in the disposal or management of premises. It also 
prohibits discrimination in employment against married people. The SDA 
applies to women and men of any age, including children. 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 
The Human Rights Act came into force in October 2000. The Act allows 
people to claim their rights under the European Convention on Human Rights 
(ECHR) in all UK courts and tribunals instead of going to the European Court 
in Strasbourg. The Act requires all public authorities in the UK to act in 
compliance with the Convention rights and has many implications for local 
government activity. 
 

32



Policy Division 

 16

Anti-Discrimination in Employment Directive (Religious belief & sexual 
orientation and age) 
The Anti-Discrimination in Employment Directive sets out a general framework 
for equal treatment in employment and occupation. One of the aims of this 
Directive is to outlaw discrimination against people at work on the grounds of 
their religion or belief or sexual orientation 
The provision relating to sexual orientation and religion or belief came into 
effect in the UK in December 2003. It is now be unlawful for any employer to 
discriminate against employees and potential employees because of their 
religion, because of their beliefs or because of their sexuality.  
The approach taken to implement these provisions will largely mirror the 
existing sex discrimination and race discrimination legislation. 
Definitions 

o Sexual orientation includes orientation towards the same sex, the 
opposite sex or both sexes. 

o Religion or belief is defined as, ‘any religion, religious belief, or similar 
philosophical belief. This excludes ‘any philosophical or political belief 
unless that belief is similar to a religious belief’. Factors to take into 
account when defining a religious belief include: 

• Collective worship, or 
• Clear belief system, or 
• Profound belief affecting way of life, or work view 

Similar provisions relating to age and employment must be implemented by 2 
December 2006. The council also has responsibilities to promote equal 
opportunities on the grounds of age through working to the standards set out 
in the Government Statutory Code of Guidance on Age Discrimination in 
Employment (DFEE 1999) and in advance of the European Union Directive on 
eliminating age discrimination, when age discrimination in employment and 
vocational training will become unlawful on 1st October 2006 
 
 
UN Convention on the Rights of the Child 
The UK signed up to this convention in December 1991. it sets out 42 articles 
that define basic rights that all young people under the age of 18 years are 
entitled to. States that are party to the convention are obliged to develop and 
undertake all actions in light of the best interests of the child. Particular 
relevant articles to the work of a local authority are articles 9, 12, 15, 16, 19, 
23 & 31. 
 
 
 
 
 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



Equalities Strategy: Race Equality Scheme 1

Huntingdonshire District Council 
 

Race Equality Scheme 
Introduction 
 
The Council has a duty to promote race equality. We are also committed to eliminating discrimination and 
promoting equality of opportunity and good race relations. This scheme describes how we intend to fulfil 
this positive commitment and to meet our duty. 
 
Functions and Policies 
 
We have identified our functions and formal policies and given them a priority depending on their relevance 
to race equality. We will use this review (appended) as a programme to assess all our functions over the 
next three years, as follows –  

Year Priority 
2005/06 1 
2006/07 2 
2007/08 3 

 
By functions we mean the full range of the Council’s activities and services provided in accordance with our 
duties and powers.  
 
By policies we mean formal and informal decisions, procedures, plans, strategies and objectives about how 
we carry out our duties and use our powers. 
 
Strategic Aims for Race Equality 
Our Corporate plan – Growing Success - recognises that: 

• Huntingdonshire is made up of many different communities; 
• some communities have greater or different needs than others; 
• equality doesn’t mean doing the same for everyone; 
• to make progress we must put more resources to meet the greatest needs; 
• we can’t afford to ignore communities with fewer needs; and 
• everyone needs to feel involved. 

 
Our Equality & Inclusion Strategy formalises our commitment to race equality in providing high quality 
services and effective community leadership. 
We intend to do this, through -  

• planning and delivering services 
• monitoring and evaluation 
• consultation and engagement 
• developing & supporting employees 
• supporting our communities 

 
Planning and delivering our services 
 
We will ensure that information about the Council and our services is available to all sections of our 
communities and that services are accessible to everyone. To do this we will –  

• consider access to information and services when assessing and monitoring services 
• make sure our staff have the necessary skills, information and understanding to provide services 

and information equally and fairly 
• ask local communities what services and information they need and how they want them provided. 

 
Monitoring and evaluation 
 
In a three year cycle we will make a detailed assessment of all our functions and policies, both formal and 
informal, to ensure that, where relevant, the way that we carry out those functions –  

• eliminates racial discrimination 
• promotes equality of opportunity; and 

35



Equalities Strategy: Race Equality Scheme 2

• promotes good relations between persons of different racial groups. 
 
Specifically, we will continue to examine each function and policy according to the priority given to it to 
identify whether there is evidence that they are affecting racial groups differently. To do this we will – 

• use ethnic monitoring to collect and analyse information about people’s racial and ethnic origins to 
assess fair access to and use of services 

• use national guidance and definitions to inform our assessments 
• use historical data, including any available evidence, complaints or public concerns, survey and 

research findings, ethnic data and census results or general or specific research to assess the 
effectiveness of our services in promoting race equality 

• compare our policies and the way we carry out our functions with other local authorities and public 
bodies. 

We will monitor and analyse our policies and functions for any adverse impact on the promotion of race 
equality. We will use a range of methods to do this - 

• statistical analysis of ethnic data 
• satisfaction surveys analysed by racial group 
• random or targeted surveys 
• qualitative research 

 
We will use the same ethnic classification system for ethnic monitoring as that used in the 2001 Census, 
except where research is targeted at specific communities where more detailed information might be 
required. 
 
We will incorporate consideration of the duty into review programmes, including service reviews and 
performance management systems.  
 
We will use the results of assessment, consultation and monitoring to ensure we avoid or minimise adverse 
impacts on race equality and race relations. The information will be used to understand and meet the needs 
of different racial groups and to make new arrangements or change arrangements so that our policies and 
the way we carry out our functions promote race equality. Any new arrangements or changes we make will 
be relevant to the nature of the policy or function and its possible effect on the public, particularly any racial 
group. 
 
Consultation and engagement 
 
We will undertake clear, representative and proportionate consultation, using a range of appropriate 
methods. Specifically we will try to engage people from different racial or ethnic communities to ensure that 
any new policy does not discriminate or harm good race relations.  
 
Developing and supporting our employees 
 
To help us achieve our commitments and duty we will carry out monitoring of our employees throughout 
their employment cycle – from application to leaving. This monitoring will enable us to measure the 
progress in promoting equality of opportunity and achieving a representative workforce.  
Specifically, we will –  

• collect ethnic monitoring data for existing employees, applicants for employment, for training, 
promotion, performance assessment, for staff involved in grievance or disciplinary procedures and 
for employees who leave 

• analyse the data to find any patterns of inequality or practices which might harm race relations 
• take any action necessary to remove barriers or discrimination and to promote equality of 

opportunity and good race relations 
• publish the results of our monitoring each year. 

 
The ethnic monitoring of employees will be combined with the monitoring of other data in our information 
systems to builds on current practices to promote equal opportunity.  
 
The ethnic monitoring of employees will be reported annually to the Council’s Employment Panel. 
 

36



Equalities Strategy: Race Equality Scheme 3

The Council has commissioned a training and development programme for its employees to promote an 
understanding of equality and its implications for meeting the Councils goals and objectives. The 
programme will incorporate the requirements and benefits of meeting the duty and our commitment to 
promoting race equality.  
 
Senior management and employees who will be directly responsible for this Scheme will receive additional 
specific training. 
 
The Council’s induction programme for new employees will include initial training on the importance of 
equality and specifically promoting race equality to meeting the Council’s objectives. 
 
 
Supporting our Communities 
To ensure that we promote race equality within our communities we will: 

• Support Council Members to represent and support communities and individuals 
• Identify the needs of different communities 
• Promote activity in community based organisations 
• Identify socially excluded groups and develop measures to promote inclusion 
• Ensure that community and welfare rights information is easily available 
• Engage and support voluntary, community, charitable organisations and social enterprises. 

 
Publishing Results 
 
The results of our assessments, consultation and monitoring and reviews of this scheme will be made 
available in a way that is appropriate, accessible and proportionate.  
 
A copy of the report compiled after each assessment will be available in full on our Website 
(www.huntsdc.gov.uk) or on request from the Policy Division, Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street, 
Huntingdon PE29 3TN 01480 388032. 
 
Where appropriate the Council will consider using or commissioning new methods of publication that are 
proportionate to achieving race equality. 
 
Complaints 
 
Complaints about how we are meeting our duties or other complaints about race equality will be dealt with 
through our established complaints procedure, which is available to all members of the public. 

37



38

This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
CABINET 17 MARCH 2005 
 

EAST OF ENGLAND PLAN – CONSULTATION ON THE 
DRAFT REGIONAL SPATIAL STRATEGY FOR THE EAST OF ENGLAND 

(Report by Head of Planning Services) 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report sets out the most significant elements of the East of England Plan 

(draft revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy for the East of England) issued 
for consultation in December 2004 and seeks approval for the content of 
representations to be made to the Regional Assembly. 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The draft East of England Plan was submitted to ODPM on 25 November 

2004. The letter accompanying the submission stated that the Regional 
Assembly did not believe it would be possible to deliver increased growth 
rates without significant investment in infrastructure. Following announcement 
in early December of the outcomes of the government’s spending review for 
2005-08 the Regional Assembly voted on 10 December 2004 to suspend its 
endorsement of the draft East of England Plan pending a re-examination of 
the government’s willingness to provide adequate financial support for the 
infrastructure necessary to service the anticipated level of growth.  However, 
the Regional Assembly reiterated its commitment to the public consultation on 
the draft East of England Plan to gauge the response to the development 
proposals. 

 
2.2 The consultation is due to close on 16 March 2005. Permission has been 

sought to submit our representations on 18 March to follow the decisions 
made by this meeting.  An examination in public is scheduled to start on 13 
September 2005 with final approval anticipated by autumn 2006. 

 
3. EAST OF ENGLAND PLAN PROPOSALS 
 
3.1 The key strategy of the East of England Plan proposes: 

• Employment led growth based on key economic sectors and cluster 
development 

• A stronger focus on regeneration of lagging areas 
• A 15% increase in future housing provision 
• A doubling of affordable housing output 
• A proactive approach to implementation 
• A regional transport strategy pursuing a more sustainable approach to 

future transportation planning 
 

3.2 The Plan proposes a total of 478,000 additional dwellings in the region for the 
period 2001-2021, equating to 23,900 per year.  Of these 89,300 are 
allocated to Cambridgeshire and Peterborough of which 11,200 are allocated 
to Huntingdonshire, equating to 560 per year.  To put this in context the 1995 

Agenda Item 6

39



Cambridgeshire Structure Plan allocated 820 dwellings per year to 
Huntingdonshire for 1991-2006.  Some 9,684 dwellings have been completed 
in the district between 1991 and March 2004, with 2,344 outstanding 
permissions and 2,848 dwellings allocated as at March 2004. 

 
3.3 Two particular points of controversy have arisen during the preparation of the 

Plan.  Firstly, whether an additional 18,000 dwellings requested by the 
Government could be added to increase the total allocation to 496,000.  
Detailed studies were made investigating the potential for additional growth in 
the London-Stansted-Cambridge-Peterborough corridor to increase the 
contribution to the Sustainable Communities Plan.  Secondly, the Aviation 
White Paper’s proposal for a second runway at Stansted Airport.  The 
Regional Assembly decided to not incorporate the additional 18,000 dwellings 
as they were not convinced of either the need for them, or that they could be 
provided in a sustainable manner. The Assembly also remain unconvinced of 
the economic benefit of a second runway at Stansted and consider the 
environmental impacts to be unacceptable. 

 

4. SUGGESTED REPRESENTATIONS 
 
4.1 Representations need to be made to the Regional Assembly on issues 

concerning the Plan as a whole and on specific points within the document.  
The Plan is heavily premised on the need for the Government to ensure that 
the step change in growth and housing numbers for the region as a whole is 
fully underpinned by infrastructure provision.  Although the Plan itself is not 
concerned with the financial aspects of ensuring the implementation of its 
strategy, it would seem reasonable to make representations concerning the 
necessity of adequate financial support for such infrastructure provision.   
Otherwise the step change in housing provision may not be possible which 
could result in increased pressures for growth in Huntingdonshire resulting 
from diversion of growth from more congested areas, or increased housing 
shortages. 

 
4.2 Other issues concerning the Plan as a whole on which representations need 

to be made include: 
• The excessive length of the document  
• Frequent and unnecessary repetition of PPG and PPS guidance 
• Difficulty of navigation of the Plan 
• Lack of a cohesive approach to the sub-regional elements, including 

significant repetition of strategic approaches in each section that could be 
addressed once in chapter 4. 

 
4.3 More specific issues of concern within the document include: 

• Inconsistency between policy H1 which gives housing numbers for each 
district and policy CSR2 which gives the scale of housing provision and 
distribution in the Cambridge sub-region.  CSR2 should be amended to 
allocate dwelling numbers to specific districts to facilitate implementation. 

• In policy SS13 affordable housing should respond to local needs levels, 
not set a minimum figure. 

• Para 5.114 expresses the expectation that employment development will 
also be expected to contribute towards affordable housing.  Objection 

40



should be raised to this as it is inappropriate in many parts of the region 
which already struggle to attract employment growth.  The Plan should be 
altered to suggest that this only be applied in areas where there is both 
high demand for employment development and shortages of affordable 
housing. 

• Policy E2 allocates job growth targets, including 500 jobs to the ‘rest of 
Cambs’.  These should be redirected to the two sub-regions within the 
county as the only areas left outside these two sub regions are Littleport, 
Kimbolton, Buckden and Ellington, where clearly employment growth of 
this scale is inappropriate. 

• Policy E2 sets targets for growth in jobs rather than the amount of 
employment land to be allocated.  An additional supporting section is 
required distinguishing between employment targets and employment 
land release. 

• Paragraph 6.19 concludes with the statement that “where a need is 
identified, readily available serviced strategic employment sites solely for 
warehousing and distribution will also be proposed”. This requires 
amending not only to refer to ‘need’ but also where such development can 
contribute to a sustainable pattern of distribution. 

• Policy H2 considers affordable housing and mix of housing types. It 
contains no reference to a requirement for Local Development documents 
to assess the need and provision of gypsy and travellers sites. 

• Paragraph 5.112 refers to the redevelopment of Alconbury Airfield for 
significant employment use and comments that it may be suitable for the 
successful relocation of aircraft maintenance facilities from Cambridge 
Airport. Whilst it is recognised that this is one of the options under 
consideration it is by no means clear that this would be the most 
appropriate option (or even available) or what the implications would be if 
this were to become the preferred option. Strong reservations should be 
expressed and appropriate changes sought to the text of RPS. 

 
4.4 A number of elements within the Plan are worthy of specific support, these 

include: 

• Policy SS2 which sets out the strategy of urban concentration to 2021.  It 
advocates an early review of the Plan; this review should go further than 
the suggested consideration of a major new settlement. 

• Policy H1 which sets out the level of housing provision.  The targets for 
the local area strongly focus on Cambridge city and South 
Cambridgeshire to try to provide more homes in close proximity to 
employment concentrations to reduce commuting levels. 

• CSR1 which sets out the location of housing and related development in 
the Cambridge sub-region contains a specific reference to the reuse of 
Alconbury Airfield for employment and flexibility to modify the sequence of 
land search to ensure a sustainable pattern of development in the vicinity, 
if required. 

 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 

5.1 That the Cabinet agree that representations be made to the Regional 
Assembly based on the general and specific points raised above. 

41



 
Background papers: 
East of England Plan - Draft revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy for the East 
of England (2004) 
 

Contact officer: 
Enquiries about this report should be made to Clare Bond, Principal Planner, tel: 
01480 388435 

 
 

 
 
 

42



         
 
CABINET            17 MARCH 2005 
 
 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME 
(Report by Head of Planning Services) 

 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 This report informs Cabinet of the first ‘Local Development Scheme’ 

for Huntingdonshire, and seeks approval for its submission to the 
Secretary of State. 

 
2 PURPOSE OF THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME 
 
2.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 places a duty upon 

local planning authorities to prepare a ‘Local Development Scheme’ 
(LDS), and to submit it to the Secretary of State for approval. The 
Council’s first LDS must be submitted by 28 March this year, although 
it is anticipated that it will be reviewed on a regular basis (at least 
once a year). 

 
2.2 The LDS sets out the range of statutory planning documents which 

the Council will produce under the new system. As well as informing 
the community and other stakeholders of what to expect, the LDS is 
designed to assist with project management. Both roles are 
particularly important given that the Local Development Framework 
will comprise a series of documents to be produced over time. 

 
2.3 Apart from summarising what will be produced and when, the LDS 

explains the structure of the new system, how the various documents 
interrelate and the way in which they will be produced. As such the 
LDS is expected to be a useful reference source for anyone 
interested in planning policy matters. 

 

3 CONTENT OF THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME 
 
3.1 The draft LDS is attached to this report. It contents accord with 

government advice on what the LDS should contain and the priority 
that should be given to certain documents. 

 
3.2 The ‘Core Strategy’ is being progressed first, as this will provide a 

framework for other documents and replace out-of-date policies in the 
existing Local Plan. Other priorities are the Statement of Community 
Involvement (which explains how the community will be involved in 
document production) and a Supplementary Planning Document on 
Wind Power. 

 
3.3 Informal observations on the draft LDS have been sought from the 

Government’s regional office, and may necessitate minor changes 
following its consideration by Cabinet (and prior to its formal 
submission to the Secretary of State). Cabinet’s agreement is sought 
to any such changes being made in consultation with the Executive 
Councillor for Planning Strategy. 

Agenda Item 7

43



 

4 RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 

a. Endorses the draft Local Development Scheme for submission 
to the Secretary of State; 

b. Authorises the Head of Planning Services, after consultation 
with the Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy, to make 
minor changes to the draft LDS prior to its submission, should 
this be necessary following informal consultation with Go-East. 

 
 
Background Papers: 
 
ODPM, 2004, Planning Policy Statement 12: Local Development Frameworks 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER - enquiries about this report to Dr Michael Bingham 
(Development Plans Manager), on 01480 388431. 

44



  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L o c a l  D e v e l o p m e n t  F r a m e w o r k  
 

Local Development Scheme for Huntingdonshire  
 

 
D r a f t  -  F e b r u a r y  2 0 0 5  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                               
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  

Malcolm Sharp BSc,  DipTP,  MRTPI 
Head of  P lanning Serv ices 

45



  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Further copies of this document can be obtained from: 

Planning Division, 
Operational Services Directorate, 
Huntingdonshire District Council, 
Pathfinder House, 
St Mary’s Street, 
Huntingdon, 
PE29 3TN. 
 
Telephone:  01480 388423 / 388424 
e-mail:     PlanningPolicy@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 
 
It can also be viewed on our web site at: 
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
©  Huntingdonshire District Council  2005

46



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 3 
 

 

CONTENTS 
 
 
Part A  Introduction  

1.     Purpose of this document  1

2.     A guide to the new system  1

3.     Transitional arrangements  2
  
  
Part B  Summary of framework  

4.     Structure and interrelationships  3

5.     Production programme  4

6.     The evidence base  8

7.     Sustainability appraisal and SEA  8

8.     Resources, monitoring and review  9
  
  
Part C  Document profiles  10
  
  
Appendices  

1      Terminology  20

2      Replacement of ‘saved’ policies  23

3      Supplementary planning guidance  24
 

47



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 1 
 

 

PART A    INTRODUCTION 
 
 
1.  Purpose of this document 

1.1 The Local Development Scheme (LDS) outlines the programme for preparing and 
reviewing statutory planning documents in Huntingdonshire. 

1.2  The LDS is required by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which 
introduced new types of plans for guiding land-use change, and new procedures for 
preparing them. The Local Development Framework (LDF) will replace the 
Huntingdonshire Local Plan in setting out planning policies and proposals for the area. 

1.3 The Local Development Framework will comprise a number of documents to be prepared 
over a period of time. The LDS sets out what will be produced and when, and explains 
what will happen to existing policies during the transition period. It focuses on the next 
three years, but also gives an indication of work that is proposed beyond that horizon. 

1.4 Section 2 gives a brief overview of the new system and its associated terminology, followed 
in Section 3 by an explanation of the transitional arrangements. Part B then provides a 
summary of the proposed LDF for Huntingdonshire: its overall structure (Section 4); the 
production programme (Section 5); and details of resources, monitoring and review 
arrangements (Section 6). Part C concludes with profiles of key documents in the LDF. For 
ease of reference a glossary of terms is included at Appendix 1. 

 
 
2.    A guide to the new system 

2.1  The Development Plan provides the main point of reference when planning applications 
are considered: decisions must be made in accordance with the Development Plan unless 
‘material considerations’ indicate otherwise1. 

2.2 Under the previous system of plan production the Development Plan comprised Structure 
Plans, which set out strategic planning policies, and Local Plans, which contained more 
detailed guidance. The current Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan was 
adopted in October 2003. The Huntingdonshire Local Plan was adopted in December 
1995, but was superseded in part by the Local Plan Alteration, adopted in December 2002. 

2.3 Under the new system the Development Plan will instead comprise: 

•  The Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) prepared by the East of England Regional 
Assembly;  and 

•  Development Plan Documents (DPDs) prepared by the local planning authority. 

2.4  The range of Development Plan Documents to be produced must include a Core Strategy 
(setting out the spatial framework and key policies for the area), one or more documents 
setting out site-specific allocations and a proposals map. Action Area Plans may also be 
produced for areas where more detailed guidance is needed. 

                                                           
1 Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, Section 38(6). 

48



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 2 
 

 

2.5 Supplementary Planning Guidance has in the past been used to expand upon the policies 
and proposals contained in the Development Plan. Under the new system such material 
will be known as Supplementary Planning Documents. 

2.6 A new requirement is for local planning authorities to prepare a Statement of Community 
Involvement to explain how the public and other interests will be involved in the process of 
preparing these various documents, and also in significant development control decisions. 

2.7 Development Plan Documents, Supplementary Planning Documents and the Statement of 
Community Involvement are given the generic name Local Development Documents 
(LDDs) in the new arrangements. The particular set of these documents prepared by the 
local planning authority, together with the Local Development Scheme and an Annual 
Monitoring Report, make up the Local Development Framework as a whole. It should be 
noted that both ‘Local Development Documents’ and ‘Local Development Framework’ are 
umbrella terms rather than adding to the particular collection of documents to be produced. 

2.8 A diagram showing how these various documents interrelate within Huntingdonshire is 
contained in Section 4. 

 
 
3. Transitional arrangements 

3.1 Most policies and proposals in the Structure Plan and Local Plan will remain in force until 
they are replaced by the Regional Spatial Strategy or a Development Plan Document. 
Under the new legislation existing plans are ‘saved’ automatically for three years until 
September 2007, and the Council can ask the Secretary of State to extend the life of 
particular policies or proposals beyond this period if they have yet to be replaced (and they 
remain appropriate). 

3.2 Appendix 2 shows how existing Local Plan policies will be replaced over time by the new 
DPDs. Existing supplementary planning guidance (SPG) will also continue to carry weight 
as a strong ‘material consideration’ in decisions, so long as the Local or Structure Plan 
policies to which it is linked remain in force. Appendix 3 shows what will happen to SPG as 
these ‘parent’ policies are replaced. 

3.3 ‘Interim Planning Guidance’ will continue to be prepared as and when required. This 
provides guidance for sites or areas where development is proposed, but where a specific 
allocation does not exist in the Local Plan (or an emerging DPD). Such documents do not 
form part of the Local Development Framework, but are subject to public consultation and 
will be a material consideration in decisions relating to the sites or areas concerned.   

49



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 3 
 

 

PART B   SUMMARY OF FRAMEWORK  
 
 
4.    Structure and interrelationships 

4.1  Figure 1 gives an overview of the documents that will provide the new planning policy 
framework for Huntingdonshire, and the way in which they interrelate. 

 
 
     Figure 1  Overview of the new planning policy framework 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 

Development Plan Documents 
prepared by the District Council 

 

Documents forming part of the 
Development Plan but prepared by 
other bodies  

Other documents prepared by the 
District Council (not part of the 
Development Plan) 

                N.B.  The boxes shaded yellow and turquoise will together comprise the LDF for Huntingdonshire 
                   The yellow and orange boxes are the elements that will form the Development Plan 
 
 
4.2  Within the strategic context provided by the Regional Spatial Strategy, the District Council 

intends to produce DPDs covering four areas: 

•  Core Strategy: This will provide the spatial framework for other DPDs produced by the 
Council; it will also contain policies to guide development proposals and decisions. 

•  Planning Proposals: Allocations for housing, business development and other uses. 

•  Gypsy and Traveller Sites: Allocations to meet identified needs in Huntingdonshire. 

•  Planning Contributions: Standards governing the social and physical infrastructure that 
may be required in association with new development, such as affordable housing, 
open space and transport improvements. 

4.3 A separate DPD for gypsy and traveller sites is proposed because of the urgency with 
which this issue needs to be addressed, and the particular issues involved in identifying 
appropriate sites (relating to the requirements of the travelling community and the difficulty 
of securing suitable sites within existing towns and villages). 

Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS14 for East of England) 

Development Plan Documents Minerals & 
Waste DPDs 

Proposals Map 

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement 

Supplementary 
Planning 

Documents 

Annual 
Monitoring 

Report 

Core 
Strategy 

Planning 
Proposals 

Gypsy & 
Traveller Sites 

Planning 
Contributions 

50



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 4 
 

 

4.4 The planning contributions work will result in two linked DPDs: one outlining district-specific 
requirements, and another detailing strategic needs (such as strategic open space). This 
last document will be produced on a joint basis with other authorities in Cambridgeshire. 
Separate DPDs covering minerals and waste matters will be produced by Cambridgeshire 
County Council (which is the local planning authority for minerals and waste matters). 

4.5 The spatial extent of policies and proposals contained in the DPDs (including those for 
minerals and waste) will be illustrated on the proposals map, which will be updated as and 
when individual DPDs are adopted and will itself form part of the Development Plan. 

4.6  In terms of Supplementary Planning Documents, priority will be given to guidance on the 
visual sensitivity and capacity of Huntingdonshire’s landscapes in relation to wind turbine 
development. In due course some existing documents will be updated and re-issued as 
SPDs, as detailed in Appendix 3. 

 
 
5.    Production programme 

5.1  Work to produce the documents making up the LDF will be phased over several years. 
This will make best use of resources, and also ensure that policies and proposals conform 
with principles established in the RSS and the Core Strategy DPD. 

5.2  Table 1 lists the DPDs and SPDs that will be produced (together with the Statement of 
Community Involvement) and summarises the anticipated timetable for their production. It 
also shows the ‘chain of conformity’ for each document (i.e. the relationship with higher 
levels of policy-making). The information is presented graphically in Figure 2. More detailed 
profiles of each document are contained in Part C. 

5.3 The timetable takes into account the procedures required by law, the time required for 
research and public involvement and the need for approval at key stages by Council 
Members. However the timings are indicative, as they rely upon a number of assumptions. 
Revisions to the LDS may be required if any of these assumptions do not hold true: 

a)  Staff turnover: The timetable includes a degree of flexibility to accommodate normal 
staff turnover. However, a number of vacancies over an extended period of time would 
hinder progress against targets. This is a risk due to a current shortage of qualified 
planning staff and related professionals. 

b)  Budgetary provision: It is assumed that current levels of funding for development 
plan work will continue, including the contribution made by Planning Delivery Grant (or 
any funding scheme that succeeds this). 

c)  Timing of RSS: The Core Strategy and Allocations DPDs are timed to follow key 
stages in preparing the Regional Spatial Strategy. This will allow a reasonable degree 
of certainty about the regional context when progressing local policies and proposals, 
but could be affected by any ‘slippage’ in the RSS timetable. 

d)  Level of public engagement: Based upon past experience the DPDs are likely to 
attract many representations at Preferred Options and Submission stages. The 
timetable accounts for this, but an abnormally large volume of comments at any stage 
would require some additional time for analysis and response. 

51



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 5 
 

 

e)  Examination process: The anticipated time required for arranging examinations into 
DPDs and the SCI, and for the examinations themselves and subsequent reporting 
stages, take into account advice from the Planning Inspectorate. However they could 
be affected by any changes in the availability of Inspectorate resources, or by a larger 
than expected volume of appearances at an examination. 

52



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 6 
 

 

Table 1   Production programme 
 
 

Timetable 

Document title Role & content Chain of conformity Participation 
on preferred 

options 

Submission 
to Secretary 

of State 

Adoption 

Core Strategy DPD Sets out the spatial vision, 
objectives and policies for 
managing development in the 
area 

Consistent with national 
planning guidance and in 
general conformity with 
Regional Spatial Strategy

June-July 
2005 

April 2006 April 2007 

Statement of Community 
Involvement 

Sets out the Council’s 
approach to involving the 
community in preparing 
DPDs and SPDs, and in 
determining significant 
planning applications 

Consistent with statutory 
requirements for 
involvement in DPD/SPD 
production 

October-
November 
2005 (draft 

SCI) 

April 2006 November 
2006 

Planning Proposals DPD Contains site-specific 
proposals for different forms 
of development up to 2021, 
plus policies relating to the 
overall scale and timing of 
growth  

Consistent with spatial 
framework set out in the 
Core Strategy 

February-
March 2007

September 
2007 

September 
2008 

Gypsy & Traveller Sites 
DPD 

Contains site-specific 
proposals for gypsy and 
traveller sites to meet 
identified needs up to 2021, 
plus policies relating to the 
overall scale of site provision 

Consistent with spatial 
framework set out in the 
Core Strategy 

September-
October 

2006 

February 
2007 

December 
2007 

Planning Contributions 
DPD: Local 
Requirements 

Details the district-specific 
standards for social and 
physical infrastructure that 
may be required in 
association with new 
development, including 
affordable housing and open 
space. 

Consistent with policies 
in the Core Strategy 

April-May 
2006 

November 
2006 

July 2007 

Planning Contributions 
DPD: Strategic 
Requirements 

Details the standards for 
strategic infrastructure that 
may be required in 
association with new 
development, including 
strategic transport 
improvements, education 
contributions and strategic 
open space. 

Consistent with saved 
policies in the Structure 
Plan (and, in due course, 
with the Core Strategy) 

April-May 
2006 

November 
2006 

July 2007 

Wind Power SPD Provides guidance on the 
visual sensitivity and capacity 
of Huntingdonshire’s 
landscapes in relation to wind 
turbine development. 

Consistent with saved 
policies in the Structure 
Plan (and, in due course, 
with the Core Strategy) 

June-July 
2005 (draft 

SPD) 

Not required October 
2005 

Design Guide SPD Provides guidance on the 
design process and key 
design principles for different 
forms of development 

Consistent with policies 
in the Core Strategy 

November-
December 
2006 (draft 

SPD) 

Not required May 2007 

Landscape & Townscape 
SPD 

Provides guidance on the 
distinctive qualities of 
Huntingdonshire’s landscape 
character areas and market 
towns 

Consistent with policies 
in the Core Strategy 

November-
December 
2006 (draft 

SPD) 

Not required May 2007 

 

53



H
un

ti
ng

do
ns

hi
re

 L
oc

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Sc
he

m
e  

  

 7  
     Fi

gu
re

 2
  

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
(R

S
S

14
 ti

m
et

ab
le

 s
ho

w
n 

fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n)

 
  

 
20

05
 

20
06

 
20

07
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

20
08

 
 

Ja
n 

Fe
b 

Ma
r 

Ap
r 

Ma
y 

Ju
n 

Ju
l 

Au
g

Se
p

Oc
t 

No
v

De
c

Ja
n 

Fe
b 

Ma
r 

Ap
r 

Ma
y

Ju
n 

Ju
l 

Au
g

Se
p

Oc
t 

No
v 

De
c

Ja
n 

Fe
b 

Ma
r 

Ap
r 

Ma
y

Ju
n 

Ju
l 

Au
g

Se
p

Oc
t 

No
v

De
c

Ja
n 

Fe
b 

Ma
r 

Ap
r 

Ma
y

Ju
n 

Ju
l 

Au
g 

Se
p 

RS
S1

4 f
or

 E
as

t o
f E

ng
lan

d 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
E 

 
 

 
 

 
R 

 
 

 
PC

 
 

 
 

A 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
re

 S
tra

teg
y D

PD
 

 
 

 
 

 
P 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S 

 
 

 
 

 
E 

 
 

 
 

 
A 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

ate
me

nt 
of 

Co
mm

un
ity

 In
vo

lve
me

nt 
C 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P 
 

 
 

 
 

S 
 

 
E 

 
 

 
A 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pl
an

nin
g P

ro
po

sa
ls 

DP
D 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S 
 

 
 

 
 

E 
 

 
 

 
 

A 
Gy

ps
y &

 T
ra

ve
lle

r S
ite

s D
PD

 
C 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P 

 
 

 
 

S 
 

 
 

 
E 

 
 

 
 

A 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pl
an

nin
g C

on
trib

uti
on

s D
PD

: L
oc

al 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S 

 
 

 
E 

 
 

 
A 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pl
an

nin
g C

on
trib

uti
on

s D
PD

: S
tra

teg
ic 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S 
 

 
 

E 
 

 
 

A 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

ind
 P

ow
er

 S
PD

 
 

 
 

 
 

P 
 

 
 

A 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

De
sig

n G
uid

e S
PD

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C 

 
 

 
 

 
P 

 
 

 
 

 
A 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
nd

sc
ap

e &
 T

ow
ns

ca
pe

 S
PD

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C 

 
 

 
 

 
P 

 
 

 
 

 
A 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

K
ey

 
 

P
re

-p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

ph
as

e 
- f

ro
m

 c
om

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f s
ur

ve
y 

w
or

k 
to

 s
ta

rt 
of

 p
la

n 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
C

 
C

om
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f s

ur
ve

y 
w

or
k 

 
 

P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

ph
as

e 
- s

ta
rt 

of
 p

la
n 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

to
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 (o

r a
do

pt
io

n 
in

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f S

P
D

s)
 

P
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

 o
pt

io
ns

 (o
r d

ra
ft 

S
P

D
) 

 
 

E
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
ph

as
e 

- f
ro

m
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 to

 a
do

pt
io

n 
S

 
Su

bm
is

si
on

 o
f d

ra
ft 

do
cu

m
en

t t
o 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f S
ta

te
 

 
 

 
E

 
C

om
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 e

xa
m

in
at

io
n 

 
 

Ti
m

et
ab

le
 fo

r R
S

S
14

 (R
 =

 p
an

el
 re

po
rt;

 P
C

 =
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
s)

 
A

 
A

do
pt

io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

54



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 8 
 

 

6.    The evidence base 

6.1  To ensure that the policies and proposals in the documents forming the LDF are sound, a 
number of studies and data sources will be drawn upon during their preparation. The main 
studies include: 

•  Huntingdonshire Retail Study (2001; review to be published 2005) 

•  2002 Housing Needs Survey (published 2003) 

•  Huntingdonshire Landscape & Townscape Assessment (2003) 

•  Urban Capacity Study (2003; review to be published 2005) 

•  Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2004) 

•  Peripheral Sites Study (2005 – forthcoming) 

•  Huntingdonshire Local Economy Study (2005 – forthcoming) 

•  Huntingdonshire Integrated Open Space Assessment (2005 – forthcoming) 

•  Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Traveller Needs Assessment (2005 – forthcoming) 

6.2  In addition relevant research and analysis appears in the sustainability appraisal Scoping 
Report (see below) and a background paper on settlement hierarchy issues (produced to 
accompany the initial consultation on Core Strategy options). 

 
 
7.    Sustainability Appraisal and SEA 

7.1  All DPDs and SPDs will need to undergo sustainability appraisal (SA). This is a systematic 
process carried out during plan production; its purpose is to assess the extent to which 
emerging policies and proposals will help to achieve relevant environmental, social and 
economic objectives. The SA process incorporates the ‘strategic environmental 
assessment’ (SEA) required for plans and programmes that are likely to have a significant 
effect upon the environment2. 

7.2 At each stage of DPD or SPD production a sustainability appraisal will be carried out to 
inform the consultation process, assist in refining policies and proposals and support 
submitted DPDs during the examination stage. The Council has produced a Scoping 
Report (January 2005) which identifies appropriate high-level objectives for appraising 
policies against, and examines ‘baseline’ conditions in the district. The Scoping Report has 
been designed to provide a foundation for the range of DPDs and SPDs that the Council 
intends to produce, but will if necessary be updated during the early stages of DPD or SPD 
production to ensure that the information and analysis it contains remain relevant. 

7.3 Although sustainability appraisal is required for all DPDs and SPDs, they are not subject to 
the legal requirements associated with SEA if their content or geographical scope means 
that they are unlikely to have a significant effect upon the environment. The document 
profiles in Part C indicate whether the SEA requirements are considered to apply. 

 
 
                                                           
2 SEA is mandatory in these circumstances as a result of European Directive 2001/42/EC ‘on the assessment 
of the effects of certain plans and programmes on the environment’ 

55



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 9 
 

 

8.    Resources, monitoring and review 

8.1  The District Council’s Development Plans Section (part of Planning Services) will take the 
lead in preparing all DPDs, some SPDs, the Statement of Community Involvement and the 
Annual Monitoring Report. The section can draw upon specialist skills elsewhere in the 
Council: 

•  The Implementation Section of Planning Services (see below) 

•  Policy Division (which carries out corporate monitoring and research, and undertakes 
economic development work) 

•  Housing Services Division (for inputs regarding housing policy) 

•  Environment & Transport Division (specialist advice on traffic and highways matters) 

•  Environmental Health Division (advice on air quality, noise and contaminated land) 

8.2  Advice is also obtained from Cambridgeshire County Council in relation to socio-economic 
research, transport, countryside, biodiversity and archaeology. Where expertise is not 
available from these sources, other agencies may become involved (e.g. the Environment 
Agency) or consultants are employed. The budget for Planning Services makes allowance 
for anticipated consultancy costs, as well as for the other costs involved in plan production 
(such as consultation and holding examinations). 

8.3 The Implementation Section in Planning Services offers professional advice in relation to 
urban design, conservation, landscape architecture, arboriculture and graphic design. 
Officers from that section will lead the preparation of any SPDs concerning these matters. 

8.4 The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) will provide a regular review of progress in preparing 
and implementing the documents proposed in this Local Development Scheme. It will 
relate to each financial year, with the first AMR (for 2004-05) to be published by the end of 
2005. Document production will be assessed against the milestones set out in Part C of the 
LDS, while information on the implementation of policies will relate to key targets and 
contextual indicators. In the light of this review the AMR will indicate whether any revisions 
to the Local Development Scheme are necessary. 

 

 

56



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 10 
 

 

  PART C   DOCUMENT PROFILES  
 
    

57



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 11 
 

 

CORE STRATEGY DPD 
 
Overview  

Is this a Development Plan Document? 
 
What is it for? 
 
 
What area will it cover? 
 
What documents will it conform with? 
 
 
Is SEA required? 

Yes 
 
Sets out the spatial vision, objectives and policies for 
managing development in the area. 
 
All of Huntingdonshire 
 
Consistent with national planning guidance and in 
general conformity with the Regional Spatial Strategy.
 
Yes 

 
Proposed timetable  

Preparation work commences 
 
Public participation on Preferred Options 
 
Submission to Secretary of State 
 
Pre-examination meeting 
 
Independent examination 
 
Receipt of Inspector’s report 
 
Modify submitted plan & adoption 

April 2003 
 
June-July 2005 
 
April 2006 
 
July 2006 
 
October-November 2006 
 
February 2007 
 
March-April 2007 

 
How will it be produced?  

Organisational lead 
 
 
Who will produce the document? 
 
 
Who will approve it? 
 
 
How will the community be involved? 

Head of Planning Services / Executive Member for 
Planning Strategy. 
 
The Development Plans Section of the District 
Council. 
 
The Council, prior to its submission to the Secretary 
of State. 
 
Opportunities to participate at key stages throughout 
the process, in accordance with statutory 
requirements. 

 
Monitoring & review  

Document production and implementation (once adopted) to be reviewed annually, and reported 
in the Annual Monitoring Report. 

58



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 12 
 

 

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 
Overview  

Is this a Development Plan Document? 
 
What is it for? 
 
 
 
What area will it cover? 
 
What documents will it conform with? 
 
 
Is SEA required? 

No 
 
Sets out the Council’s approach to involving the 
community in preparing DPDs and SPDs, and in 
determining significant planning applications. 
 
All of Huntingdonshire 
 
Consistent with statutory requirements for public 
involvement in planning processes. 
 
No 

 
Proposed timetable  

Preparation work commences 
 
Public participation on draft SCI 
 
Submission to Secretary of State 
 
Pre-examination meeting 
 
Independent examination 
 
Receipt of Inspector’s report 
 
Modify submitted SCI & adoption 

January 2005 
 
October-November 2005 
 
April 2006 
 
Unlikely to be required 
 
July 2006 
 
October 2006 
 
November 2006 

 
How will it be produced?  

Organisational lead 
 
 
Who will produce the document? 
 
 
Who will approve it? 
 
 
How will the community be involved? 

Head of Planning Services / Executive Member for 
Planning Strategy. 
 
The Development Plans Section of the District 
Council (with inputs from the Policy Division). 
 
The Council’s Cabinet, prior to its submission to the 
Secretary of State. 
 
Opportunities to participate at key stages throughout 
the process, in accordance with statutory 
requirements. 

 
Monitoring & review  

Document production and implementation (once adopted) to be reviewed annually, and reported 
in the Annual Monitoring Report. 

 

59



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 13 
 

 

PLANNING PROPOSALS DPD 
 
Overview  

Is this a Development Plan Document? 
 
What is it for? 
 
 
 
What area will it cover? 
 
What documents will it conform with? 
 
 
Is SEA required? 

Yes 
 
Contains site-specific proposals for different forms of 
development up to 2021, plus policies relating to the 
overall scale and timing of growth. 
 
All of Huntingdonshire 
 
Consistent with spatial framework set out in the Core 
Strategy. 
 
Yes 

 
Proposed timetable  

Preparation work commences 
 
Public participation on Preferred Options 
 
Submission to Secretary of State 
 
Pre-examination meeting 
 
Independent examination 
 
Receipt of Inspector’s report 
 
Modify submitted plan & adoption 

April 2003 
 
February-March 2007 
 
September 2007 
 
December 2007 
 
March-April 2008 
 
July 2008 
 
August-September 2008 

 
How will it be produced?  

Organisational lead 
 
 
Who will produce the document? 
 
 
Who will approve it? 
 
 
How will the community be involved? 

Head of Planning Services / Executive Member for 
Planning Strategy. 
 
The Development Plans Section of the District 
Council. 
 
The Council, prior to its submission to the Secretary 
of State. 
 
Opportunities to participate at key stages throughout 
the process, in accordance with the Statement of 
Community Involvement. 

 
Monitoring & review  

Document production and implementation (once adopted) to be reviewed annually, and reported 
in the Annual Monitoring Report. 

 

60



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 14 
 

 

GYPSY & TRAVELLER SITES DPD 
 
Overview  

Is this a Development Plan Document? 
 
What is it for? 
 
 
 
What area will it cover? 
 
What documents will it conform with? 
 
 
Is SEA required? 

Yes 
 
Contains site-specific proposals for gypsy and 
traveller sites to meet identified needs up to 2021, 
plus policies relating to the overall scale of provision. 
 
All of Huntingdonshire 
 
Consistent with spatial framework set out in the Core 
Strategy. 
 
Yes 

 
Proposed timetable  

Preparation work commences 
 
Public participation on Preferred Options 
 
Submission to Secretary of State 
 
Pre-examination meeting 
 
Independent examination 
 
Receipt of Inspector’s report 
 
Modify submitted plan & adoption 

January 2005 
 
September-October 2006 
 
February 2007 
 
May 2007 
 
July 2007 
 
November 2007 
 
December 2007 

 
How will it be produced?  

Organisational lead 
 
 
Who will produce the document? 
 
 
Who will approve it? 
 
 
How will the community be involved? 

Head of Planning Services / Executive Member for 
Planning Strategy. 
 
The Development Plans Section of the District 
Council. 
 
The Council, prior to its submission to the Secretary 
of State. 
 
Opportunities to participate at key stages throughout 
the process, in accordance with the Statement of 
Community Involvement. 

 
Monitoring & review  

Document production and implementation (once adopted) to be reviewed annually, and reported 
in the Annual Monitoring Report. 

 

61



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 15 
 

 

PLANNING CONTRIBUTIONS DPD (local) 
 
Overview  

Is this a Development Plan Document? 
 
What is it for? 
 
 
 
 
What area will it cover? 
 
What documents will it conform with? 
 
Is SEA required? 

Yes 
 
Details the district-specific standards for social and 
physical infrastructure that may be required in 
association with new development, including 
affordable housing and open space. 
 
All of Huntingdonshire 
 
Consistent with policies in the Core Strategy. 
 
Yes 

 
Proposed timetable  

Preparation work commences 
 
Public participation on Preferred Options 
 
Submission to Secretary of State 
 
Pre-examination meeting 
 
Commencement of examination 
 
Receipt of Inspector’s report 
 
Modify submitted plan & adoption 

January 2004 
 
April-May 2006 
 
November 2006 
 
January 2007 
 
March 2007 
 
June 2007 
 
July 2007 

 
How will it be produced?  

Organisational lead 
 
 
Who will produce the document? 
 
 
Who will approve it? 
 
 
How will the community be involved? 

Head of Planning Services / Executive Member for 
Planning Strategy. 
 
The Development Plans Section of the District 
Council. 
 
The Council, prior to its submission to the Secretary 
of State. 
 
Opportunities to participate at key stages throughout 
the process, in accordance with statutory 
requirements. 

 
Monitoring & review  

Document production and implementation (once adopted) to be reviewed annually, and reported 
in the Annual Monitoring Report. 

 

62



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 16 
 

 

PLANNING CONTRIBUTIONS DPD (strategic) 
 
Overview  

Is this a Development Plan Document? 
 
What is it for? 
 
 
 
 
 
What area will it cover? 
 
What documents will it conform with? 
 
Is SEA required? 

Yes 
 
Details the standards for strategic infrastructure that 
may be required in association with new 
development, including strategic transport 
improvements, education contributions and strategic 
open space. 
 
All of Huntingdonshire (and rest of Cambridgeshire) 
 
Consistent with policies in the Core Strategy. 
 
Yes 

 
Proposed timetable  

Preparation work commences 
 
Public participation on Preferred Options 
 
Submission to Secretary of State 
 
Pre-examination meeting 
 
Commencement of examination 
 
Receipt of Inspector’s report 
 
Modify submitted plan & adoption 

January 2004 
 
April-May 2006 
 
November 2006 
 
January 2007 
 
March 2007 
 
June 2007 
 
July 2007 

 
How will it be produced?  

Organisational lead 
 
 
Who will produce the document? 
 
 
Who will approve it? 
 
 
How will the community be involved? 

Head of Planning Services / Executive Member for 
Planning Strategy. 
 
Cambridgeshire Horizons (the Infrastructure 
Partnership, with inputs from member authorities) 
 
The Council, prior to its submission to the Secretary 
of State. 
 
Opportunities to participate at key stages throughout 
the process, in accordance with statutory 
requirements. 

 
Monitoring & review  

Document production and implementation (once adopted) to be reviewed annually, and reported 
in the Annual Monitoring Report. 

 

63



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 17 
 

 

WIND POWER SPD 
 
Overview  

Is this a Development Plan Document? 
 
What is it for? 
 
 
 
What area will it cover? 
 
What documents will it conform with? 
 
 
 
Is SEA required? 

No 
 
Provides guidance on the visual sensitivity and 
capacity of Huntingdonshire’s landscapes in relation 
to wind turbine development. 
 
All of Huntingdonshire 
 
Consistent with saved policies in the Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough Structure Plan (and, in due course, 
with the Core Strategy). 
 
Yes 

 
Proposed timetable  

Preparation work commences 
 
Public participation on draft SPD 
 
Adoption 

August 2004 
 
June-July 2005 
 
October 2005 

 
How will it be produced?  

Organisational lead 
 
 
Who will produce the document? 
 
 
Who will approve it? 
 
How will the community be involved? 

Head of Planning Services / Executive Member for 
Planning Strategy. 
 
The Development Plans Section of the District 
Council (technical content produced by consultants). 
 
The Council’s Cabinet. 
 
Opportunities to comment on the draft SPD, in 
accordance with statutory requirements. 

 
Monitoring & review  

Document production and implementation (once adopted) to be reviewed annually, and reported 
in the Annual Monitoring Report. 

 

64



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 18 
 

 

DESIGN GUIDE SPD 
 
Overview  

Is this a Development Plan Document? 
 
What is it for? 
 
 
What area will it cover? 
 
What documents will it conform with? 
 
Is SEA required? 

No 
 
Provides guidance on the design process and key 
design principles for different forms of development. 
 
All of Huntingdonshire 
 
Consistent with policies in the Core Strategy. 
 
Yes 

 
Proposed timetable  

Preparation work commences 
 
Public participation on draft SPD 
 
Adoption 

May 2006 
 
November-December 2006 
 
May 2007 

 
How will it be produced?  

Organisational lead 
 
 
Who will produce the document? 
 
 
Who will approve it? 
 
How will the community be involved? 

Head of Planning Services / Executive Member for 
Planning Strategy. 
 
The Implementation Section of the Council’s 
Planning Services Division. 
 
The Council’s Cabinet. 
 
Opportunities to comment on the draft SPD, in 
accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement. 

 
Monitoring & review  

Document production and implementation (once adopted) to be reviewed annually, and reported 
in the Annual Monitoring Report. 

 

65



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 19 
 

 

LANDSCAPE & TOWNSCAPE SPD 
 
Overview  

Is this a Development Plan Document? 
 
What is it for? 
 
 
 
What area will it cover? 
 
What documents will it conform with? 
 
Is SEA required? 

No 
 
Provides guidance on the distinctive qualities of 
Huntingdonshire’s landscape character areas and 
market towns. 
 
All of Huntingdonshire 
 
Consistent with policies in the Core Strategy. 
 
Yes 

 
Proposed timetable  

Preparation work commences 
 
Public participation on draft SPD 
 
Adoption 

May 2006 
 
November-December 2006 
 
May 2007 

 
How will it be produced?  

Organisational lead 
 
 
Who will produce the document? 
 
 
Who will approve it? 
 
How will the community be involved? 

Head of Planning Services / Executive Member for 
Planning Strategy. 
 
The Implementation Section of the Council’s 
Planning Services Division. 
 
The Council’s Cabinet. 
 
Opportunities to comment on the draft SPD, in 
accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement. 

 
Monitoring & review  

Document production and implementation (once adopted) to be reviewed annually, and reported 
in the Annual Monitoring Report. 

 

66



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 20 
 

 

APPENDIX 1   TERMINOLOGY 
 
 
Within each definition links to other terms are shown in italics. 
 
 
Action Area Plan A Development Plan Document setting out 

detailed policies and proposals for a small area. 
 
Adoption The point at which the final agreed version of a 

document comes into use.     
 
Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) Document produced each year to report on 

progress in producing the Local Development 
Framework and implementing its policies. 

 
Core Strategy The Development Plan Document which contains 

the overall vision, objectives and policies for 
managing development in Huntingdonshire. 

 
Development Plan The documents which together provide the main 

point of reference when considering planning 
proposals. Under the new system the 
Development Plan includes the Regional Spatial 
Strategy and Development Plan Documents. 

 
Development Plan Document (DPD) A document containing local planning policies or 

proposals which forms part of the Development 
Plan, and which has been subject to independent 
examination. 

 
Examination Independent inquiry into the soundness of a draft 

Development Plan Document (or draft Statement 
of Community Involvement), chaired by an 
Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State. 

 
Interim Planning Guidance Informal guidance for sites or areas where 

development is proposed, but no allocation exists 
in a Development Plan Document. 

 
Local Development Document (LDD) The collective term for Development Plan 

Documents, Supplementary Planning Documents 
and the Statement of Community Involvement. 

 
Local Development Framework (LDF)  The collection of documents to be produced by 

Huntingdonshire District Council that will provide 
the new planning policy framework for the district. 

 

67



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 21 
 

 

Local Development Scheme (LDS) Sets out the Council’s programme for preparing 
and reviewing statutory planning documents. 

 
Local Plan The existing document containing local planning 

policies and proposals for Huntingdonshire. 
Under the new system it will be phased out and 
replaced by Development Plan Documents. 

 
Material Considerations Factors that may be taken into account when 

making planning decisions. 
 
Preferred Options Public consultation on the intended content of a 

Development Plan Document, prior to the DPD 
itself being drafted. 

 
Proposals Map Shows the spatial extent of adopted planning 

policies and proposals affecting Huntingdonshire.  
 
Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) Plan covering the East of England as a whole, 

and setting out strategic policies and proposals 
for managing land-use change. 

 
Saved policies Policies contained within the adopted Structure 

Plan or Local Plan which remain in force pending 
their replacement by the Regional Spatial 
Strategy or a Development Plan Document. 

 
Scoping Report Report produced as the first stage of 

Sustainability Appraisal. It examines existing 
environmental, social and economic conditions in 
the district, and identifies appropriate objectives 
to appraise policies against. 

 
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) Document setting out the Council’s approach to 

involving the community in preparing planning 
documents and making significant development 
control decisions. 

 
Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Process undertaken during plan production, to 

assess the potential environmental effects of 
emerging policies and proposals. It is 
incorporated within Sustainability Appraisal. 

 
Structure Plan The existing document containing strategic 

planning policies and proposals for the county. 
Under the new system it will be phased out and 
replaced by policies in the Regional Spatial 
Strategy and Development Plan Documents. 

68



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 22 
 

 

 
Submission Point at which a draft Development Plan 

Document (or the draft Statement of Community 
Involvement) is published for consultation. At the 
same time it is submitted to the Secretary of 
State in advance of its examination.  

 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) Provides additional guidance on the interpretation 

or application of policies and proposals in the 
Local Plan or Structure Plan. Under the new 
system this will be phased out and replaced by 
Supplementary Planning Documents. 

 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) Provides additional guidance on the interpretation 

or application of policies and proposals in a 
Development Plan Document. 

 
Sustainability Appraisal Process undertaken during plan production, to 

assess the extent to which emerging policies and 
proposals will help to achieve environmental, 
social and economic objectives. It incorporates 
Strategic Environmental Assessment. 

 
 
 
 

69



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 23 
 

 

APPENDIX 2   REPLACEMENT OF ‘SAVED’ POLICIES 
 
 
This table shows how the issues addressed by existing Local Plan policies will be considered in 
preparing Development Plan Documents. For each existing policy (or group of policies) it indicates 
which DPD is likely to deal with the general subject matter. This does not mean that the existing 
policy approach will necessarily be continued, as circumstances may have changed since the 
original Local Plan policies were prepared. 

Some policies are listed as ‘not included’, meaning that their subject matter is unlikely to be 
addressed by one of the new DPDs. This is because the issues are either not relevant to 
Huntingdonshire, are covered by other policy areas or are dealt with more appropriately in other 
plans or strategies. 

Most policies in the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan will be superseded by those 
in the Regional Spatial Strategy. However, the draft RSS lists some Structure Plan policies that it 
will not replace, as they deal with relatively local issues. The table shows how these ‘saved’ 
Structure Plan policies will be considered. 

 
Policy 
area 

Where will it be 
dealt with in LDF? 

Policy 
area 

Where will it be 
dealt with in LDF? 

Policy 
area 

Where will it be 
dealt with in LDF? 

Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (continued) Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration 
LPS3 Not included R3 Contributions (local) STR1-STR6 Core Strategy 
H11-H12 Core Strategy R4-R5 Not included HL1-HL3 Allocations 
H17 Core Strategy R6 Allocations HL4-HL10 Core Strategy 
H21 Not included R7-R8 Contributions (local) AH1-AH2 Core Strategy 
H22-H35 Core Strategy R9-R10 Allocations AH3 Allocations 
H36 Not included R11 Not included AH4 Contributions (local) 
H37-H38 Core Strategy R12 Contributions (local) AH5 Core Strategy 
H39-H42 Not included R13 Core Strategy OB1 Core Strategy 
H43 Core Strategy R14 Not included OB2 Contributions (local) 
H44 Gypsies/Travellers R15-R18 Core Strategy  
E1 Core Strategy En1-En9 Core Strategy Cambs & Peterborough Structure Plan 
E2-E3 Allocations En10 Not included P1/3 Core Strategy 
E4 Not included En11-En25 Core Strategy P2/3 Allocations 
E5 Allocations En26 Not included P2/4 (part) Contributions (local) 
E6-E13 Core Strategy En27-En28 Core Strategy P4/4 Core Strategy 
E14 Not included En29 Not included P5/2 Core Strategy 
E15 Core Strategy En30 Core Strategy P7/3 Core Strategy 
S1-S4 Core Strategy En31 Not included P7/10 Not included 
S5 Not included En32 Core Strategy P8/2 Core Strategy 
S6 Allocations To1-To3 Core Strategy P8/3 Contributions (strategic) 
S7 Core Strategy To4-To5 Not included P8/6 (part) Not included 
S8 Not included To6-To11 Core Strategy P8/7 Not included 
S9-S10 Core Strategy CS1 Not included P8/9 Core Strategy 
S11 Not included CS2 Allocations P8/10 Core Strategy/Allocations
S12-S17 Core Strategy CS3-CS4 Not included P9/1 Contributions (local) 
T1-T7 Not included CS5-CS6 Core Strategy P9/2a-P9/3 Not included 
T9-T17 Not included CS7 Not included P9/4 Core Strategy/Allocations
T18-T20 Core Strategy CS8-CS9 Core Strategy P9/5 Not included 
T21-T23 Not included CS10 Not included P9/9 Core Strategy 
T24 Allocations P9/10 Not included 
T25-T27 Not included P10/3 Core Strategy/Allocations
T28 Core Strategy P10/5 Not included 
R1-R2 Core Strategy 

Note: policies in the Huntingdonshire 
Local Plan 1995 that were superseded by 
the Local Plan Alteration are not listed. P10/7 Core Strategy 

70



Huntingdonshire Local Development Scheme  
 
 

 24 
 

 

APPENDIX 3   SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE 
 
 
This table lists adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG), which will remain a material 
consideration in planning decisions until the Local Plan and Structure Plan are replaced. The table 
also shows what will happen to the SPGs once the new Core Strategy is adopted. 
 
 
Title Date How will it be dealt with in the LDF? 

Conservation Area Character Statements Various Will be retained and continue to carry weight by virtue 
of the legislation governing conservation areas1 

Cambridgeshire Landscape Guidelines 1990 Will be updated and re-issued as SPD. It will be 
produced jointly with other Cambridgeshire 
authorities, and a timetable will appear in the next 
edition of this Local Development Scheme 

External Artificial Lighting 1998 Likely to be updated and reissued as an advice note 

Trees and Development 1998 Likely to be updated and reissued as an advice note 

Shopfronts 1999 Likely to be incorporated within Design Guide SPD 

Hilton Village Design Statement 2000 Status and any future revision to be discussed with 
the Parish Council2 

Land to the East of St Neots 2000 Not required (development likely to commence before 
September 2007) 

Retention of Shops, Post Offices and 
Public Houses in Villages 

2001 Approach incorporated within Core Strategy DPD 

Holywell-cum-Needingworth Village 
Design Statement 

2003 Status and any future revision to be discussed with 
the Parish Council2 

Re-use and Redevelopment of Farm 
Buildings and Outbuildings 

2003 Some parts incorporated within Core Strategy DPD; 
design elements likely to be included in Design Guide 
SPD 

Market Housing Mix 2004 Approach incorporated within Core Strategy DPD 

Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2004 Will be updated and re-issued as SPD once the Core 
Strategy is adopted 

Huntingdonshire Landscape and 
Townscape Assessment 

2004 Will be updated and re-issued as SPD once the Core 
Strategy is adopted 

 

Notes 
1 The Council does not intend to re-publish existing conservation area character statements as 

Supplementary Planning Documents, as they are produced to accord with the requirements of separate 
legislation. The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 places a duty upon local 
planning authorities to formulate proposals for preserving and enhancing conservation areas. 

2 Although adopted by the District Council as SPG, Village Design Statements are produced by the town or 
parish council concerned. 

71



72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 
 
 
CABINET 

 
17TH MARCH 2005 

 
 

ST IVES WEST  
URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK AND MASTERPLAN 

(Report by Head of Planning Services) 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Cabinet of the responses to 

the draft St Ives West Urban Design Framework and to consider the 
Council’s response.  A revised document is recommended for adoption 
as Interim Planning Guidance (IPG). 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The three sites in question were allocated within the Huntingdonshire 

Local Plan Alteration of June 2002, taking account of the Inspector’s 
specific recommendations regarding the extent of site boundaries and 
potential housing yields. The Inspector also recommended the 
production of a comprehensive development brief for the area to protect 
the important landscape gap between St Ives and Houghton and to 
provide a framework for the residential development of these sites. This 
Urban Design Framework presents the planning policy context for the 
development of these sites and important design parameters that should 
lead forthcoming proposals. 

 
2.2 The document was released for a period of consultation by Cabinet on 

4th November 2004. This period expired on 14th February 2005. During 
this time, public exhibitions have been held in Houghton and St Ives, in 
addition to consultation with statutory organisations. Public notices were 
posted in St Ives and Houghton, and nearby properties were leafleted. 

 
2.3 The adoption of the Framework and Masterplan as Interim Planning 

Guidance is an important step towards achieving the most appropriate 
form of re-development for these important edge-of-town sites and it will 
ensure that forthcoming schemes will be of a high architectural and 
urban design quality. 

 
  
3. THE CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
3.1 45 written responses have been received from statutory agencies, local 

organisations and members of the public, containing 218 separate 
comments for consideration. A summary of the respondents and their 
comments is contained within Annex 1.  Concerns requiring a more 
lengthy response are expanded in Annex 2. If the proposed responses 
and amendments contained within Annex 1 and 2 are acceptable to 
Cabinet, they will then be incorporated into the revised, adopted 
document. 

 

Agenda Item 8

73



 

3.2 Most responses, where justified, have lead to minor text or graphic 
changes. The most significant concerns are as follows: the principle of 
development; the infilling of the landscape gap between St Ives and 
Houghton; highway congestion; the loss of greenery and 
drainage/flooding. The Council’s response to these issues is presented 
below. 

 
3.3 The principle of housing development on these three sites is already 

established by the allocation in the Local Plan Alteration 2002. The 
Council cannot therefore resist the principle. It is the intention of the 
Urban Design Framework, however, to ensure that developments 
coming forward are of the highest standard and respond to the character 
of the wider area, not least the remaining open land between St Ives and 
Houghton. 

 
3.4 The Inspector at the Local Plan inquiry, in allocating the three sites, 

noted the importance of protecting what remains of the landscape gap 
between St Ives and Houghton. Given that these sites are now allocated 
and will now come forward for housing development, it is the 
Framework’s intention to set parameters in layout and design that will 
ensure sympathetic forms of development. These include protection for 
vegetation and the appropriate positioning, density and height of built 
form to achieve suitable development on this edge of the town. 

 
3.5 Highway congestion has been raised as a concern in four principal 

respects: firstly, the overall contribution of the developments to 
increased congestion on the A1123; secondly, the likelihood of the 
developments compounding existing rat-run problems through the High 
Leys/Green Leys area; thirdly, increased access and egress to 
properties along Houghton Road; fourthly, the further impact on egress 
from Houghton village onto the A1123. In allocating these sites, the 
Secretary of State has already been satisfied that the existing highway 
infrastructure has the capacity to accommodate the additional traffic 
generated by these allocations. Looking forward, the Highway Authority 
is in the process of detailing improvement to the highway to provide 
suitable access to the sites. At the same time, it is also seeking to 
promote public transport in the form of an additional bus lane, as well as 
cycling and walking in the form of improved tracks and crossing points. 
These are intended to reduce car use. Of the other issues raised relating 
to the A14, a northern bypass and rat-running, these will not influence 
the validity of the existing allocations and some will be considered as 
part of the forthcoming Market Town Transport Strategy (MTTS) for St 
Ives. The MTTS looks strategically at the transport system in the town 
and will then prioritise funding for further improvements. These 
developments will be directly funding such improvements. 

    
3.6 Any loss of greenery in the area has the potential to dramatically alter 

local character. The Framework acknowledges the risk of vegetation 
removal associated with the formation of accesses and the widening of 
roads and seeks to minimise loss in the first instance. However, 
improvements to the road system are required to service these allocated 
sites and some impact on hedgerows and trees will be unavoidable. 
Where this is the case, the Framework makes it clear that suitable re-
planting will be required in all instances.  

 

74



 

3.7 Surface water drainage and the threat of flooding is a concern of those 
residents along Houghton Road but also those further afield who feel 
that they may be affected by run-off from the developments. This is an 
existing, known problem and discussions with the relevant authorities 
continue to ensure that current problems will not be compounded. The 
most likely outcome will comprise improvement to the drains on either 
side of Houghton Road as part of the roadworks, and suitable 
attenuation of surface water on the development sites. 

 
3.8 It should be noted that some of the principal objections raised can only 

be properly resolved at a more detailed stage. For example, although it 
is proper to raise concerns over drainage, the exact detail of drainage 
provision cannot be presented so early in the development process as 
much depends on the development form and layout. 

 
3.9 On 21st February 2005, the Development Control Panel supported the 

provisions of the Draft St Ives West Urban Design Framework. 
 
 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 That the Cabinet considers the responses to comments presented in 

Annex 1 and 2 and agrees to adopt the revised Urban Design 
Framework, incorporating the specified changes, as Interim Planning 
Guidance. 

 
4.2 That the Cabinet authorizes the Head of Planning Services to make any 

minor consequential amendments to the text and illustrations necessary 
as a result of these changes, after consultation with the Executive 
Member for Planning Strategy. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Draft St Ives West Urban Design Framework and Masterplan 
Report to Cabinet 4th November 2004 
Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration 2002 Sites 15-17 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Chris Surfleet 

Urban Design Officer 
  01480 388476 
 

75



76

This page is intentionally left blank



A
N

N
EX

 1
 

 
ST

 IV
ES

 W
ES

T 
U

R
B

A
N

 D
ES

IG
N

 F
R

A
M

EW
O

R
K

  
 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
S 

 1 
– 

ac
tio

n 
ta

ke
n 

2 
– 

no
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t 
3 

– 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

ta
ke

n 
 R

es
po

nd
en

t 
R

es
p 

no
. 

A
dd

re
ss

 
C

om
m

 
N

o.
 

C
om

m
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e 

A
ct

io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ar
tin

 P
ag

e 
1 

B
ar

fo
rd

 +
 C

o,
 1

7 
C

hu
rc

h 
S

tre
et

, S
t 

N
eo

ts
 

1 
P

ar
a 

1.
1 

re
fe

rs
 to

 te
ch

ni
ca

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
on

 
th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ga
p 

an
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 in

 s
up

po
rt 

of
 th

e 
P

er
ip

he
ra

l 
si

te
s 

st
ud

y.
 R

eq
ue

st
 c

op
y.

 

C
op

y 
of

 re
le

va
nt

 m
at

er
ia

l s
up

pl
ie

d 
3 

M
ic

ha
el

 U
tle

y 
 

2 
no

 d
et

ai
ls

 
2 

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t p

ub
lic

ity
 

E
xt

en
t o

f p
ub

lic
ity

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

 a
tta

ch
ed

 
re

po
rt.

  A
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

l o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e.
 

3 

C
llr

 C
. S

te
ph

en
s 

3 
H

D
C

 
3 

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l i
ss

ue
s 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
. S

ee
 a

nn
ex

 2
. 

1 
C

. B
ut

te
rw

or
th

 
 

4 
R

os
e 

C
ot

ta
ge

, 
Th

ic
ke

t R
oa

d,
 

H
ou

gh
to

n 

4 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 s

w
al

lo
w

 u
p 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
&

 
W

yt
on

.  
 

G
iv

en
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

es
e 

th
re

e 
si

te
s,

 th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
is

 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
to

 a
vo

id
 th

is
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

e.
 

3 

 
 

 
5 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

la
nd

 u
se

 –
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 p
er

ce
iv

ed
 v

al
ue

 o
f a

re
a.

 
Th

e 
U

D
F 

in
te

nd
s 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ith
 m

in
im

um
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ar
ea

’s
 

va
lu

e.
 

3 

 
 

 
6 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l l
aw

s,
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

be
in

g 
ov

er
rid

de
n 

N
ot

 a
cc

ep
te

d.
 T

he
 s

ite
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 w
ill 

be
 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

cr
ite

ria
. 

3 

 
 

 
7 

S
af

et
y 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 ig

no
re

d,
 w

ith
 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

us
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

Th
ic

ke
t 

N
ot

 a
cc

ep
te

d.
 T

he
 u

sa
ge

 o
f t

he
 T

hi
ck

et
 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

ut
 th

is
 w

ill 
in

cr
ea

se
 

na
tu

ra
l s

ur
ve

illa
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

 

3 

 
 

 
8 

H
ig

hw
ay

 is
su

es
 a

re
 a

 n
on

se
ns

e 
Th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
 A

ut
ho

ity
 h

av
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

an
d 

sa
fe

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 

3 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
5 

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

9 
1.

1 
ch

an
ge

 ‘t
hr

ee
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

si
te

s’
 to

 ‘t
hr

ee
 

Te
xt

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

77



C
on

tro
l M

an
ag

er
 

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ite

s’
 

 
 

 
10

 
1.

1 
ch

an
ge

 ‘w
id

er
 le

ve
l’ 

to
 ‘s

tra
te

gi
c 

le
ve

l’ 
Te

xt
 a

m
en

de
d 

1 
 

 
 

11
 

1.
1 

ch
an

ge
 ‘a

t a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 le

ve
l’ 

to
 ‘m

or
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c’

 
Te

xt
 a

m
en

de
d 

1 

 
 

 
12

 
1.

1 
ch

an
ge

 ‘i
nt

er
lin

ke
d 

w
ith

’ t
o 

‘s
up

po
rte

d 
by

’ 
Te

xt
 a

m
en

de
d 

1 
 

 
 

13
 

1.
1 

ad
d 

‘n
at

ur
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

’ t
o 

‘la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ga

p’
 

Te
xt

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
14

 
1.

3 
ad

d 
‘p

re
vi

ou
s’

 to
 ‘p

ro
po

sa
ls

’ 
Te

xt
 a

m
en

de
d 

1 
 

 
 

15
 

1.
3 

ad
d 

‘fo
r t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
’ t

o 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

D
es

ig
n 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

  
Te

xt
 a

m
en

de
d 

1 

 
 

 
16

 
2.

1 
ch

an
ge

 ‘p
ro

du
ce

d’
 to

 ‘p
ro

po
se

d’
 

Te
xt

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
17

 
5.

0 
ch

an
ge

 to
 ‘p

re
se

rv
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 g
ap

’ 
Te

xt
 a

m
en

de
d 

1 
 

 
 

18
 

5.
0 

ch
an

ge
 ‘a

de
qu

at
e’

 to
 ‘a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
’ 

Te
xt

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
19

 
5.

1 
ch

an
ge

 to
 ‘m

or
e 

cl
ea

rly
 d

ef
in

e’
 

Te
xt

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
20

 
5.

2 
ch

an
ge

 ‘g
ap

 c
an

 p
er

fo
rm

 it
s 

fu
nc

tio
n’

 to
 

‘la
nd

sc
ap

e 
se

tti
ng

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
s 

is
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
en

ha
nc

ed
.’ 

Te
xt

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

M
r a

nd
 M

rs
 

M
id

dl
ed

itc
h 

 
10

 
2 

B
ur

y 
C

lo
se

 
21

 
Lo

ss
 o

f t
re

es
 a

nd
 h

ed
ge

ro
w

s 
in

 H
ou

gh
to

n 
R

oa
d 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

. 
Th

e 
U

D
F 

se
ek

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
gr

ee
ne

ry
 a

nd
 s

ec
ur

e 
its

 m
ax

im
um

 re
te

nt
io

n.
 W

he
re

 tr
ee

 lo
ss

 
is

 u
na

vo
id

ab
le

, r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t p
la

nt
in

g 
w

ill 
be

 s
ec

ur
ed

 

3 

 
 

 
22

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

vo
lu

m
es

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
Th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l v
ol

um
es

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
w

ill 
no

t 
ex

ce
ed

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 ro

ad
 s

ys
te

m
 

in
 th

is
 a

re
a 

3 

 
 

 
23

 
B

y-
pa

ss
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 A
14

 re
qu

ire
d 

Th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 s

at
is

fie
d 

th
at

 
th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l v

ol
um

es
 o

f t
ra

ffi
c 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
by

 th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ill
 

no
t e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 ro
ad

 
sy

st
em

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a.

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
A

14
 a

re
 n

ot
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 th
is

 s
tu

dy
 

3 

S
te

ve
n 

B
ird

 
9 

1 
Fa

rm
 C

lo
se

, 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

24
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
tra

ffi
c 

on
 A

11
23

 –
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 e

as
t 

to
 w

es
t m

ov
em

en
ts

 
Th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l v
ol

um
es

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
w

ill 
no

t 
3 

78



ex
ce

ed
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 ro
ad

 s
ys

te
m

 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
 

 
 

25
 

A
cc

es
s 

fro
m

 H
ou

gh
to

n 
w

ill 
be

 e
ve

n 
ha

rd
er

 
Th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
do

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

r  
th

at
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
as

 
pa

rt 
of

 th
es

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

3 

 
 

 
26

 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

ga
p 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

pr
es

er
ve

d 
by

 
pl

ac
in

g 
3 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 in
 it

. 
N

ot
 a

gr
ee

d.
 T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f t
he

 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

is
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

th
re

e 
si

te
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f t

he
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ga
p.

 

3 

 
 

 
27

 
Fu

rth
er

 in
-fi

llin
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

lik
el

y.
 C

le
ar

 
de

cl
ar

at
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t f
ur

th
er

 s
uc

h 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ad

e.
 

It 
is

 th
e 

cl
ea

r i
nt

en
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ga

p 
th

at
 

re
m

ai
ns

 o
nc

e 
th

es
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
si

te
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

. 

3 

Jo
e 

S
la

de
 

8 
13

 V
ic

to
ria

 
C

re
sc

en
t, 

H
ou

gh
to

n 

28
 

A
cc

es
s 

on
to

 A
11

23
 fr

om
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

is
 

da
ng

er
ou

s 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

s 
un

gr
ad

in
g 

Th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
r  

th
at

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 th

es
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 

3 

 
 

 
29

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t n
ee

de
d 

to
 T

hi
ck

et
 P

at
h 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t 
3 

J.
 A

rm
st

ro
ng

 
 

7 
4 

Fa
rm

 C
lo

se
, 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
30

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

tra
ffi

c 
on

 A
11

23
 

Th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 s

at
is

fie
d 

th
at

 
th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l v

ol
um

es
 o

f t
ra

ffi
c 

w
ill 

no
t 

ex
ce

ed
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 ro
ad

 s
ys

te
m

 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 

3 

 
 

 
31

 
E

ffe
ct

 o
f w

at
er

 ru
n-

of
f 

Th
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

f w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
or

ks
 w

ill 
be

 s
cr

ut
in

is
ed

 
al

on
gs

id
e 

fu
tu

re
, d

et
ai

le
d 

pr
op

os
al

s.
 

1 

 
 

 
32

 
R

is
k 

of
 ri

bb
on

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
S

t I
ve

s 
an

d 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

Th
e 

U
D

F 
pr

om
ot

es
 th

e 
op

en
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 
of

 th
is

 a
re

a 
to

 re
si

st
 fu

tu
re

 in
-fi

llin
g 

3 

 
 

 
33

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

ris
k 

of
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 a
t S

aw
try

 W
ay

 
ju

nc
tio

n 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 p
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

de
al

 w
ith

 th
is

 
is

su
e 

– 
it 

w
ill

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

tra
ns

po
rt 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 
th

es
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 . 

3 

 
 

 
34

 
S

ug
ge

st
 o

bl
ig

at
or

y 
50

m
ph

 li
m

it 
do

w
n 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
H

ill
 to

 re
du

ce
 n

oi
se

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

Th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
r  

th
at

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 th

es
e 

pr
op

os
al

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s 

is
su

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

as
se

d 
to

 C
C

C
 fo

r t
he

ir 

3 

79



co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
M

r S
 H

am
pt

on
 

6 
16

 V
ic

to
ria

 
C

re
sc

en
t, 

H
ou

gh
to

n 

35
 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
ga

p 
w

ill
 b

e 
ru

in
ed

 b
y 

en
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t o
f t

hi
s 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 in

fil
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

Th
e 

U
D

F 
pr

om
ot

es
 th

e 
op

en
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 
of

 th
is

 a
re

a 
to

 re
si

st
 fu

tu
re

 in
-fi

llin
g 

3 

 
 

 
36

 
B

us
 la

ne
s 

w
ou

ld
 s

ca
r l

an
ds

ca
pe

 
Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
bu

s 
la

ne
 w

ill
 in

cu
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
an

d-
ta

ke
 b

ut
 it

 is
 p

la
nn

ed
 to

 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

as
 

H
ig

hw
ay

 A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 T

he
 U

D
F 

se
ek

s 
to

 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
bu

s 
la

ne
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

is
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 

3 

D
. R

 H
un

tin
gf

or
d 

11
 

H
ed

ge
fie

ld
, 

S
pl

as
h 

La
ne

 
37

 
P

ed
es

tri
an

 c
ro

ss
in

gs
 n

ee
de

d 
at

 o
th

er
 p

oi
nt

s 
al

on
g 

A
11

23
. 

Th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
r  

th
at

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

3 

M
ar

tin
 P

ag
e 

 
12

 
B

ar
fo

rd
 +

 C
o,

 1
7 

C
hu

rc
h 

S
tre

et
, S

t 
N

eo
ts

 

38
 

R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

to
 te

ch
ni

ca
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ga
p 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
om

itt
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

l h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

ny
 fo

rm
 

of
 p

ub
lic

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

or
 s

cr
ut

in
y.

  

R
ef

er
en

ce
 o

m
itt

ed
 

1 

 
 

 
39

 
P

ar
a 

1.
2 

Th
e 

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
 in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
th

re
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
si

te
s,

 e
vi

de
nt

ly
 n

ot
 th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ga
p 

its
el

f?
 

N
ot

ed
. F

ig
ur

e 
1.

2 
w

ill
 b

e 
am

en
de

d 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
w

id
er

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ga

p 
as

 p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
.  

1 

 
 

 
40

 
P

ar
a 

1.
3 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 P
er

ip
he

ra
l S

ite
s 

S
tu

dy
. 

If 
th

is
 h

as
 h

ad
 a

 b
ea

rin
g 

on
 th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

U
D

F 
th

en
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 re

fe
re

nc
es

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t 

Th
e 

pe
rip

he
ra

l s
ite

s 
st

ud
y 

is
 te

ch
ni

ca
l 

w
or

k 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

in
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

LD
F.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 to
 

th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t i
n 

th
e 

U
D

F.
 T

he
 g

en
er

al
 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
on

ly
 a

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 o
th

er
 w

or
k 

be
in

g 
un

de
rta

ke
n.

  

3 

 
 

 
41

 
P

ar
a 

2.
1 

re
fe

rs
 to

 n
et

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a.
 T

he
 

do
cu

m
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

ex
pl

ai
n 

ho
w

 th
is

 a
re

a 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

al
cu

la
te

d.
 

Th
e 

‘n
et

’ h
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

by
 th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r a

t t
he

 lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
in

qu
iry

 a
nd

 re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

ar
ea

 fo
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g.
  A

s 
su

ch
, 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 d

ec
is

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

P
la

n 
A

lte
ra

tio
n.

 

3 

 
 

 
42

 
P

ar
a 

2.
1 

re
fe

rs
 to

 d
en

si
ty

 o
n 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
G

ra
ng

e 
si

te
 a

t 2
0 

dw
/h

a.
 Is

 th
is

 re
as

on
ab

le
 

Th
e 

de
ns

ity
 s

tip
ul

at
io

n 
w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

by
 th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r a

t t
he

 lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
3 

80



gi
ve

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 h

ou
si

ng
 m

ix
 p

ol
ic

y?
 

in
qu

iry
. T

he
 fi

gu
re

 o
f 2

0 
dw

el
lin

gs
/h

a 
w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f t
he

 
si

te
. A

ny
 d

ev
ia

tio
n 

fro
m

 th
is

 fi
gu

re
 w

ou
ld

 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

co
nt

ex
t. 

 
 

 
 

43
 

P
ar

a 
2.

2 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 A

re
a 

of
 B

es
t 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

om
itt

ed
 a

s 
it 

no
 lo

ng
er

 
ex

is
ts

 in
 th

e 
S

tru
ct

ur
e 

P
la

n 
an

d 
is

 c
on

tra
ry

 to
 

ad
vi

ce
 in

 P
PS

7.
 

A
gr

ee
d.

 O
m

it 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 
1 

 
 

 
44

 
P

ar
a 

2.
2 

re
fe

rs
 to

 C
ou

nt
y 

W
ild

lif
e 

si
te

. C
an

 
w

e 
as

su
m

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r p

ub
lic

 
ac

ce
ss

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

si
te

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

W
ild

lif
e 

Tr
us

t?
 

Th
e 

gr
ap

hi
c 

in
 fi

gu
re

 4
.4

 is
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

on
ly

. N
ev

er
th

el
es

s,
 th

e 
fo

ot
pa

th
 li

nk
 

he
ad

in
g 

w
es

tw
ar

ds
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 th
e 

Th
ic

ke
t 

ha
s 

be
en

 re
-lo

ca
te

d 
to

 li
nk

 d
ire

ct
ly

 w
ith

 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
fo

ot
pa

th
. 

1 

 
 

 
45

 
P

ar
a 

2.
3 

– 
ty

po
, a

m
en

d 
‘a

ffe
st

in
g’

 to
 

‘a
ffe

ct
in

g’
 

C
or

re
ct

 e
rr

or
 

1 

 
 

 
46

 
P

ar
a 

3.
2 

– 
H

ow
 w

ill 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

a 
sp

ee
d 

lim
it 

an
d 

a 
ga

te
w

ay
 c

al
m

in
g 

fe
at

ur
e 

up
 to

 S
aw

try
 W

ay
 b

e 
se

cu
re

d?
 

Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ee

d 
lim

it 
an

d 
ga

te
w

ay
 fe

at
ur

e 
ar

e 
fo

r t
he

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

3 

 
 

 
47

 
P

ar
a 

3.
2 

– 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 b

us
 la

ne
 w

ill
 

un
do

ub
te

dl
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d.
 T

he
 in

te
nt

io
n 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
‘g

re
en

 c
or

rid
or

’ n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 It
 is

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

ed
 in

 3
.2

 
th

at
 s

om
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
w

ill 
be

 lo
st

 b
ut

 it
 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

of
 th

e 
U

D
F 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 

th
e 

gr
ee

n 
co

rr
id

or
 a

s 
m

uc
h 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 

3 

 
 

 
48

 
P

ar
a 

3.
2 

– 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e.
 If

 th
is

 c
an

 b
e 

ju
st

ifi
ed

, t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

ex
pl

ai
n 

ho
w

 it
 is

 to
 b

e 
se

cu
re

d.
  

O
m

it 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

ed
 b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
 

1 

 
 

 
49

 
P

ar
a 

4.
1 

am
en

d 
‘o

rd
in

an
ce

’ t
o 

‘o
rd

na
nc

e’
  

E
rr

or
 c

or
re

ct
ed

 
1 

 
 

 
50

 
P

ar
a 

4.
1,

 4
.2

 a
nd

 8
.1

 –
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f w
et

la
nd

 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 h
as

 n
o 

pa
rti

cu
la

r m
er

it 
as

 a
 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

 

O
m

it 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 w

et
la

nd
 

1 

 
 

 
51

 
P

ar
a 

4.
5 

an
d 

fig
ur

e 
4.

3 
– 

qu
es

tio
n 

th
e 

al
ig

nm
en

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
ot

pa
th

 fr
om

 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
to

 T
hi

ck
et

 P
at

h.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 z

ig
-z

ag
 to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
gr

ad
ie

nt
. 

Th
e 

gr
ap

hi
c 

is
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

sh
ow

in
g 

an
 

in
te

nd
ed

 p
rin

ci
pl

e,
 n

ot
 a

n 
ex

ac
t r

ou
te

  
3 

 
 

 
52

 
P

at
h 

co
ul

d 
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

W
ild

lif
e 

S
ite

.  
Th

e 
ro

ut
e 

of
 th

e 
pa

th
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 fi
gu

re
 4

.4
 

3 

81



is
 in

di
ca

tiv
e.

 T
he

 p
at

h 
co

ul
d 

ru
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

w
ild

lif
e 

si
te

 if
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t w
as

 
re

ac
he

d.
 

 
 

 
53

 
C

la
rif

y 
th

at
 a

lig
nm

en
t o

f l
in

ks
 in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
4 

ar
e 

illu
st

ra
tiv

e 
on

ly
  

A
gr

ee
d.

 T
ex

t a
dd

ed
: ‘

al
ig

nm
en

t o
f l

in
ks

 
is

 in
di

ca
tiv

e 
on

ly
’ 

1 

 
 

 
54

 
P

ar
a 

5.
2 

– 
qu

er
y 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ity

 to
 re

in
fo

rc
e 

pe
rim

et
er

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
. P

ar
a 

8.
1 

co
nt

ra
di

ct
s 

th
is

. 

A
gr

ee
d.

 T
he

re
 m

ay
 b

e 
so

m
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
re

in
fo

rc
e 

sc
re

en
in

g 
al

on
g 

th
e 

no
rth

 e
dg

e 
if 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

fo
ot

w
ay

-
cy

cl
ew

ay
 a

lig
nm

en
t a

nd
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

ne
w

 
ac

ce
ss

 ro
ad

 a
re

a.
 T

he
re

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
re

pl
ac

e 
an

y 
de

ad
, d

yi
ng

 
or

 d
an

ge
ro

us
 tr

ee
s 

el
se

w
he

re
. T

ex
t 

al
te

re
d 

to
 c

la
rif

y.
 S

ee
 a

nn
ex

 2
 

1 

 
 

 
55

 
P

ar
a 

5.
2 

– 
re

st
ric

tio
n 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
no

rth
 o

f t
he

 G
ra

ng
e 

is
 u

nr
ea

so
na

bl
e.

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
ea

st
 a

nd
 w

es
t s

ho
ul

d 
al

so
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
. T

he
 D

ire
ct

or
’s

 H
ou

se
 

co
ul

d 
be

 re
fu

rb
is

he
d 

 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 T
he

 te
xt

 d
oe

s 
no

t p
re

cl
ud

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

ea
st

 a
nd

 w
es

t, 
as

 
lo

ng
 a

s 
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 
G

ra
ng

e 
its

el
f. 

3 

 
 

 
56

 
P

ar
a 

8.
1 

an
d 

8.
2 

– 
co

nt
ra

di
ct

or
y 

st
at

em
en

ts
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f s

id
e 

w
in

gs
 o

f 
G

ra
ng

e.
 

A
gr

ee
d.

 T
ex

t a
m

en
de

d.
 S

ee
 a

nn
ex

 2
 

1 

 
 

 
57

 
P

ar
a 

8.
4 

– 
th

e 
la

nd
 to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
of

 th
e 

G
ra

ng
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ta
in

ed
 a

s 
pr

iv
at

e 
ar

ea
 

fo
r o

cc
up

an
ts

 o
f t

he
 h

ou
se

, e
ith

er
 a

s 
si

ng
le

 
or

 m
ul

tip
le

 o
cc

up
an

cy
. I

t s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

. 

A
gr

ee
d,

 b
ut

 n
o 

te
xt

 c
ha

ng
es

 n
ee

de
d 

3 

 
 

 
58

 
Fi

gu
re

 8
.4

 –
 th

is
 re

qu
ire

s 
m

or
e 

ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 T
he

 g
ra

ph
ic

s 
re

la
te

 to
 th

e 
te

xt
 b

ul
le

t p
oi

nt
s 

– 
no

 k
ey

 n
ee

de
d.

 
3 

 
 

 
 

P
ar

a 
8.

3 
– 

re
pe

at
ed

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 w
et

la
nd

 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 s

cr
ee

n 
pl

an
tin

g 
 

O
m

it 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 w

et
la

nd
 

1 

 
 

 
59

 
P

ar
a 

8.
5 

an
d 

fig
ur

e 
8.

5 
– 

no
rth

er
n 

pa
rt 

of
 s

ite
 

is
 m

or
e 

su
ite

d 
to

 h
ig

he
r d

en
si

tie
s.

 In
cr

ea
si

ng
 

de
ns

ity
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
av

en
ue

 a
nd

 th
e 

G
ra

ng
e 

is
 

at
 o

dd
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 

sp
ac

io
us

ne
ss

 in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 H
ig

h 
de

ns
ity

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 in
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f w
ay

s 
w

ith
ou

t 
re

du
ci

ng
 ‘s

pa
ci

ou
sn

es
s’

. A
s 

th
e 

illu
st

ra
tiv

e 
pl

an
 in

 F
ig

ur
e 

8.
6 

sh
ow

s,
 

la
rg

er
 b

lo
ck

s 
ca

n 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

e 
de

ns
ity

 

3 

82



w
ith

ou
t a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ov
er

al
l s

pa
ci

ou
sn

es
s.

 
M

ar
tin

 P
ag

e 
13

 
B

ar
fo

rd
 +

 C
o,

 1
7 

C
hu

rc
h 

S
tre

et
, S

t 
N

eo
ts

 

60
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 4
0m

ph
 li

m
it 

an
d 

ga
te

d 
ca

lm
in

g 
fe

at
ur

e 
ne

ar
 S

aw
try

 W
ay

 b
e 

se
cu

re
d?

 
Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ee
d 

lim
it 

an
d 

ga
te

w
ay

 fe
at

ur
e 

ar
e 

fo
r t

he
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 

3 

 
 

 
61

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 S
un

da
y 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
av

e 
no

t f
ea

tu
re

d 
in

 S
10

6 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 
O

m
it 

re
fe

re
nc

es
 to

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

 
1 

R
ic

ha
rd

 A
lle

n 
14

 
36

 T
en

te
rle

as
 

62
 

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 5
0%

 to
 m

ee
t S

tru
ct

ur
e 

P
la

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 H
D

C
 p

ol
ic

y 
re

qu
ire

s 
29

%
 

3 

 
 

 
63

 
N

ot
 c

le
ar

 w
he

re
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
A

gr
ee

d.
 T

ex
t o

n 
th

is
 is

su
e 

w
ill 

be
 

cl
ar

ifi
ed

. S
ee

 a
nn

ex
2 

1 

 
 

 
64

 
R

ep
la

ce
 ‘p

ep
pe

r-
po

tte
d’

 w
ith

 ‘d
is

tri
bu

te
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
’. 

 
A

gr
ee

d.
 T

ex
t a

m
en

de
d.

 
1 

 
 

 
65

 
P

ar
a 

6.
6 

an
d 

ot
he

rs
 –

 o
m

it 
su

gg
es

tio
n 

th
at

 
on

ly
 th

os
e 

in
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

 
w

al
k,

 c
yc

le
, b

us
. 

A
gr

ee
d.

 T
ex

t o
m

itt
ed

. 
1 

 
 

 
66

 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

to
 m

ar
ke

t m
ix

 
po

lic
y 

A
gr

ee
d.

 R
ef

er
en

ce
 a

dd
ed

 
1 

 
 

 
67

 
C

hi
ld

re
ns

’ p
la

y 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 m

ee
t N

at
io

na
l 

P
la

yi
ng

 F
ie

ld
s 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

A
gr

ee
d 

bu
t s

pe
ci

fic
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

no
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

he
re

 
3 

 
 

 
68

 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 re

m
ov

al
 o

f h
ed

ge
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

bu
s 

la
ne

 is
 p

re
m

at
ur

e.
 L

an
d 

co
ul

d 
be

 ta
ke

n 
on

 n
or

th
 s

id
e.

 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 L
an

d-
ta

ke
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rth
 s

id
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
oa

ffe
ct

 h
ed

ge
ro

w
s 

an
d 

tre
es

, 
an

d 
th

er
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 le
ss

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t p

la
nt

in
g 

du
e 

to
 

lim
ite

d 
fro

nt
 g

ar
de

n 
de

pt
hs

. 

3 

M
rs

 P
. M

ul
es

 
15

 
53

 E
lm

 D
riv

e 
69

 
O

bj
ec

t t
o 

ne
w

 h
ou

se
s 

Th
e 

th
re

e 
si

te
s 

ar
e 

al
re

ad
y 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

A
lte

ra
tio

n.
  

3 

 
 

 
70

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

tra
ffi

c 
on

 1
12

3 
an

d 
A

14
. 

Th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l t

ra
ffi

c 
on

 th
es

e 
ro

ad
s 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 H

ig
hw

ay
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 

ad
vi

si
ng

 o
n 

w
ha

t c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
la

yo
ut

 
of

 th
e 

ro
ad

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
at

er
 fo

r 
th

es
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l v
eh

ic
le

s.
 

3 

 
 

 
71

 
H

ou
si

ng
 b

et
te

r a
t t

op
 o

f H
ill 

R
is

e 
Th

e 
th

re
e 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
al

re
ad

y 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

ho
us

in
g.

 
3 

83



 
 

 
72

 
H

ou
si

ng
 s

ho
ul

d 
on

ly
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

ilt
 

up
 a

re
as

 
Th

e 
th

re
e 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
al

re
ad

y 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

ho
us

in
g.

 
3 

 
 

 
73

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

flo
od

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
A

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
em

an
ds

 o
n 

su
rfa

ce
 

w
at

er
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

w
ill 

be
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f d
et

ai
le

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

3 

 
 

 
74

 
Im

pr
ov

e 
fo

ot
w

ay
 u

p 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

Th
is

 is
 a

lre
ad

y 
an

 in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t, 
as

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 fi

gu
re

 4
.4

 
3 

M
r P

. H
ill

 
16

 
5 

H
ig

h 
Le

ys
 

75
 

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
is

tri
bu

te
d 

an
d 

no
t l

um
pe

d 
ne

ar
 H

ig
h 

Le
ys

 
Th

is
 is

 a
lre

ad
y 

th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n,
 b

ut
 th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ill 
be

 
m

or
e 

cl
ea

rly
 e

xp
la

in
ed

, i
n 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 

co
m

m
en

t 6
3 

1 

 
 

 
76

 
Tr

af
fic

 w
ill

 d
iv

er
t t

hr
ou

gh
 H

ig
h 

Le
ys

 
Tr

af
fic

 w
ill

 d
is

pe
rs

e 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 it

s 
de

st
in

at
io

n,
 n

ot
 a

ll 
ea

st
w

ar
ds

. T
he

 re
-

de
si

gn
 o

f t
he

 H
ig

h 
Le

ys
/H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
ju

nc
tio

n 
is

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 to

 u
se

 H
ou

gh
to

n 
R

oa
d.

 T
he

 
ex

is
tin

g 
ra

t-r
un

ni
ng

 p
ro

bl
em

 in
 H

ig
h 

Le
ys

 w
ill 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

fo
rth

co
m

in
g 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r S
t I

ve
s.

 

3 

 
 

 
77

 
V

eh
ic

le
s 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 jo

in
 ro

un
da

bo
ut

 n
ea

r 
sc

ho
ol

 
A

gr
ee

d.
 F

ig
ur

e 
6.

3 
am

en
de

d 
to

 re
m

ov
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

lin
k 

to
 ro

un
da

bo
ut

 a
nd

 re
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 p
ed

es
tri

an
 li

nk
. 

1 

 
 

 
78

 
O

nl
y 

w
ay

 to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

vi
ew

s 
is

 n
ot

 to
 b

ui
ld

 a
t 

al
l 

Th
e 

th
re

e 
si

te
s 

ar
e 

al
re

ad
y 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g.
 

3 

 
 

 
79

 
C

yc
le

 tr
ac

k 
st

op
s 

to
o 

so
on

 a
t S

aw
try

 W
ay

 
ju

nc
tio

n 
C

yc
le

w
ay

 e
xt

en
de

d 
to

 S
aw

try
 W

ay
 

ju
nc

tio
n 

in
 fi

gu
re

 4
.4

. 
1 

 
 

 
80

 
B

ui
ld

 o
n 

ch
ic

ke
n 

fa
ct

or
y 

si
te

 in
st

ea
d 

Th
is

 is
 n

ot
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 th
is

 
do

cu
m

en
t. 

Th
es

e 
th

re
e 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
al

re
ad

y 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r h

ou
si

ng
. 

3 

M
r a

nd
 M

rs
 J

. 
R

al
ph

 
17

 
31

 W
hi

te
cr

os
s 

81
 

S
ew

er
ag

e,
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 a
nd

 ro
ad

 s
ys

te
m

s 
w

ill
 a

ll 
st

ru
gg

le
 to

 c
op

e 
w

ith
 e

xt
ra

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

as
 p

ar
t o

f 
de

ta
ile

d 
de

si
gn

 w
or

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

/h
ig

hw
ay

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. 

3 

M
r a

nd
 M

rs
 

18
 

48
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

82
 

S
ew

er
s 

al
re

ad
y 

ba
ck

 u
p 

w
ith

 h
ea

vy
 ra

in
. W

ill 
It 

is
 a

 p
re

re
qu

is
ite

 th
at

 a
ny

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
3 

84



M
as

on
 

R
oa

d 
it 

be
 u

pg
ra

de
d?

 
w

ill
 n

ot
 c

om
po

un
d 

ex
is

tin
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s.
 

A
de

qu
at

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 

se
w

er
ag

e 
w

ill 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e,

 to
 th

e 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 
au

th
or

ity
 

 
 

 
83

 
S

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
is

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

su
rfa

ce
 w

at
er

 is
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
co

nt
ro

lle
d.

 
Te

xt
 a

dd
ed

 to
 c

la
rif

y 
th

is
 is

su
e.

 S
ee

 
an

ne
x 

2 
co

m
m

en
t r

ef
er

en
ce

 3
1.

 

1 

 
 

 
84

 
A

11
23

 is
 g

rid
lo

ck
ed

 in
 th

e 
m

or
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

af
te

rn
oo

n.
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ne

ed
ed

. 

Th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
as

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

in
 c

ap
ac

ity
 te

rm
s 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 a
llo

ca
tio

n.
 

H
ig

hw
ay

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l v

eh
ic

le
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 U
D

F 
an

d 
fu

rth
er

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
M

ar
ke

t T
ow

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 

3 

M
rs

 L
. W

eb
b 

19
 

82
 P

et
tis

 R
oa

d 
85

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

vo
lu

m
es

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
w

ill
 c

au
se

 
da

ng
er

 to
 s

ch
oo

lc
hi

ld
re

n.
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l v

eh
ic

le
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

fo
ot

w
ay

s 
an

d 
cr

os
si

ng
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 U
D

F.
 T

he
 

si
tu

at
io

n 
w

ill 
be

 im
pr

ov
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt.

 

3 

P
 &

 J
 S

ea
rle

 
T 

&
 J

 W
rig

ht
 

20
 

G
re

en
 L

ey
s,

 S
t 

Iv
es

 
86

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill 
co

m
po

un
d 

ra
t-r

un
 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
H

ig
h 

Le
ys

 
N

ot
 a

gr
ee

d.
 T

he
 ju

nc
tio

n 
on

to
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 im

pr
ov

ed
 to

 a
vo

id
 th

is
 

si
tu

at
io

n.
 E

xi
st

in
g 

ra
t-r

un
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

w
ill

 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t 

To
w

n 
S

tra
te

gy
, t

o 
w

hi
ch

 th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ill 
co

nt
rib

ut
e.

 

3 

 
 

 
87

 
S

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
ca

nn
ot

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

m
or

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
P

ro
vi

si
on

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
su

rfa
ce

 w
at

er
 is

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

co
nt

ro
lle

d.
 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 to

 c
la

rif
y 

th
is

 is
su

e.
 S

ee
 

an
ne

x 
2 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
31

 

1 

M
r P

 L
aw

 
21

 
M

an
de

ra
, 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
R

oa
d 

88
 

O
bj

ec
ts

 to
 d

em
ol

iti
on

 o
f t

re
es

 a
nd

 re
m

ov
al

 o
f 

he
dg

er
ow

 
Th

e 
th

re
e 

ho
us

in
g 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

al
re

ad
y.

 T
he

y 
re

qu
ire

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 

3 

85



in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
th

at
 m

ay
 in

cu
r v

eg
et

at
io

n 
re

m
ov

al
. T

he
 e

xt
en

t o
f v

eg
et

at
io

n 
lo

ss
 is

 
no

t k
no

w
n 

at
 p

re
se

nt
 b

ut
 th

e 
U

D
F 

se
ek

s 
to

 m
in

im
is

e 
re

m
ov

al
 a

nd
, w

he
re

 
un

av
oi

da
bl

e,
 e

ns
ur

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
re

-p
la

nt
in

g 
in

 th
at

 e
ve

nt
 

 
 

 
89

 
R

ec
om

m
en

ds
 re

m
ov

al
 o

f b
us

 la
ne

 fr
om

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

Th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
is

he
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

bu
s 

la
ne

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

 
tra

ns
po

rt.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 th
e 

m
ot

or
 c

ar
. T

he
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 la
ne

 is
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r t

he
 to

w
n 

3 

 
 

 
90

 
V

al
ue

 o
f g

re
en

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 S
t I

ve
s 

no
t g

iv
en

 
su

ffi
ci

en
t w

ei
gh

t w
ith

in
 tr

af
fic

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 F
re

qu
en

t r
ef

er
en

ce
s 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
an

d 
to

 m
in

im
is

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

lo
ss

. 

3 

 
 

 
91

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

da
ng

er
 w

he
n 

eg
re

ss
in

g 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

al
on

g 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
Th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r s
af

et
y 

of
 th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l b

us
-la

ne
 w

ill
 in

flu
en

ce
 th

e 
C

C
C

’s
 d

et
ai

le
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r t
hi

s 
ar

ea
. 

3 

 
 

 
92

 
U

D
F 

do
es

 n
ot

 s
ho

w
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
ot

w
ay

 o
n 

no
rth

 s
id

e 
of

 H
ou

gh
to

n 
R

oa
d 

A
dd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 g

ra
ph

ic
 to

 fi
gu

re
 4

.4
 

1 

 
 

 
93

 
La

te
st

 a
dv

ic
e 

of
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

is
 n

ot
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 d

oc
um

en
t. 

E
A

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
su

lte
d 

on
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 th

em
 

co
nt

in
ue

. T
he

y 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 o

bj
ec

te
d 

to
 th

e 
ou

tli
ne

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 

3 

 
 

 
94

 
R

em
ai

ni
ng

 g
ol

f c
ou

rs
e 

la
nd

 is
 in

su
ffi

ci
en

t f
or

 
pu

rp
os

e 
an

d 
w

ill
 th

er
ef

or
e 

co
m

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
fo

r 
fu

rth
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

Th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 g

ol
f c

ou
rs

e 
la

nd
 is

 n
ot

 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 th

e 
U

D
F 

se
ek

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 o

pe
n 

ar
ea

s 
 

3 

 
 

 
95

 
H

D
C

 s
ho

ul
d 

pr
es

en
t i

ts
 v

is
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

he
 g

ol
f c

ou
rs

e 
la

nd
 in

 th
is

 
do

cu
m

en
t 

Th
e 

vi
si

on
 is

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t, 
in

 th
at

 it
 fo

rm
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
im

po
rta

nt
 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ga

p 

3 

A
 F

au
ss

et
 

22
 

51
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
96

 
N

on
e 

of
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

di
re

ct
ly

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

ed
 d

ire
ct

ly
 b

y 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 n
ot

ic
es

 fo
rm

ed
 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 lo

ca
l p

la
n 

in
qu

iry
 a

t 
3 

86



H
D

C
 o

r w
er

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

pu
bl

ic
ity

 
th

e 
tim

e 
of

 a
llo

ca
tio

n.
 O

ut
lin

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r t
he

 a
re

a 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 
ad

ve
rti

se
d 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
. S

ub
se

qu
en

t a
dv

er
ts

, n
ot

ic
es

 
an

d 
di

re
ct

 le
af

le
tin

g 
ha

ve
 p

re
ce

de
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
dr

af
t U

D
F.

 
 

 
 

97
 

W
ha

t e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

dr
ai

na
ge

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
po

se
d 

on
 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
? 

Th
e 

de
ta

il 
of

 th
e 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

w
or

ks
 is

 
no

t f
in

al
is

ed
. I

t w
ill 

be
 a

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t, 

ho
w

ev
er

, t
ha

t a
de

qu
at

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 a

nd
 

ba
la

nc
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
 s

ite
 to

 
en

su
re

 c
on

tro
l o

f s
ur

fa
ce

 w
at

er
 

3 

 
 

 
98

 
R

eq
ui

re
s 

de
ta

ils
 o

f t
ra

ffi
c 

su
rv

ey
 re

su
lts

 a
nd

 
re

po
rts

 w
hi

ch
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 ro
ad

/ju
nc

tio
n 

pr
op

os
al

s 

Th
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

f t
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

 w
or

ks
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

fin
al

is
ed

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
of

 th
is

 
na

tu
re

 is
 th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 C

C
C

. T
he

 
U

D
F 

se
ek

s 
to

 a
gr

ee
 g

en
er

al
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

, 
no

t t
he

 d
et

ai
l o

f h
ig

hw
ay

 a
lte

ra
tio

ns
. 

2 

 
 

 
99

 
R

eq
ui

re
s 

de
ta

ils
 o

f h
ow

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill 

im
pa

ct
 u

po
n 

lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
eg

 d
oc

to
rs

, 
de

nt
is

ts
 a

nd
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

 

Th
e 

de
ta

il 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 to
 b

e 
ne

go
tia

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

S
10

6 
ag

re
em

en
t 

is
 n

ot
 fi

na
lis

ed
. F

in
an

ci
al

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
w

ill
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r t
he

se
 lo

ca
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

s 
ad

vi
se

d 
by

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 
au

th
or

iti
es

.  

3 

M
r a

nd
 M

rs
 

B
rid

gw
at

er
 

23
 

24
 A

ud
le

y 
C

lo
se

 
10

0 
C

on
ce

rn
ed

 th
at

 fl
at

s 
or

 to
w

nh
ou

se
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 re

ar
 o

f p
ro

pe
rty

. L
im

it 
he

ig
ht

 a
nd

 
en

su
re

 p
riv

ac
y.

 

P
ro

pe
r r

eg
ar

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

 
am

en
ity

 a
nd

 p
riv

ac
y 

as
 d

et
ai

le
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ev

ol
ve

. 

3 

 
 

 
10

1 
R

eq
ui

re
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

 e
xi

st
in

g 
he

dg
er

ow
 a

t 
re

ar
 o

f p
ro

pe
rty

 w
ill 

no
t b

e 
di

st
ur

be
d 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
co

nc
ep

t f
ig

ur
e 

7.
4 

w
ill

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 s

ho
w

 h
ed

ge
 o

n 
ea

st
 

bo
un

da
ry

 

1 

A
no

n 
24

 
 

10
2 

Tr
af

fic
 is

su
es

 o
n 

A
14

 m
us

t b
e 

re
so

lv
ed

 
be

fo
re

 a
ny

 fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

N
ot

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t  

2 

 
 

 
10

3 
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
on

 A
10

96
 in

 b
ot

h 
di

re
ct

io
ns

 w
ill

 
be

 m
ad

e 
w

or
se

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

S
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
m

en
t  

84
 

3 

 
 

 
10

4 
Lo

ng
 q

ue
ue

s 
of

 tr
af

fic
 to

 a
nd

 fr
om

 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 o
n 

A
11

23
 a

t v
ar

io
us

 ti
m

es
 o

f t
he

 
da

y 
w

ill 
be

 m
ad

e 
w

or
se

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

S
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
m

en
t  

84
 

3 

87



 
 

 
10

5 
B

ui
ld

 u
p 

of
 tr

af
fic

 a
t R

am
se

y 
R

oa
d 

tra
ffi

c 
lig

ht
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
w

or
se

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

Th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 a
dv

is
in

g 
w

ha
t 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l v
eh

ic
le

s.
 

Th
es

e 
w

ill
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 th
e 

R
am

se
y 

R
oa

d 
ju

nc
tio

n 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
se

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. 

3 

M
r B

. H
. M

is
so

n 
25

 
O

rc
ha

rd
 H

ou
se

, 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
10

6 
P

ar
a 

7.
2 

re
fe

rs
 to

 ‘r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 O
rc

ha
rd

 
H

ou
se

’. 
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l w

or
di

ng
 to

 
en

su
re

 a
m

el
io

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

m
en

ity
 to

 
th

e 
re

ar
 g

ar
de

ns
 o

f O
rc

ha
rd

 H
ou

se
 in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 a
ny

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.’
 

A
gr

ee
d.

 T
ex

t a
m

en
de

d 
to

 re
ad

 ‘O
rc

ha
rd

 
H

ou
se

, t
he

 w
es

te
rn

m
os

t p
ro

pe
rty

 o
n 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
R

oa
d,

 a
nd

 it
s 

re
ar

 g
ar

de
n 

ar
ea

.’ 
 

1 

 
 

 
10

7 
W

ha
t p

ro
vi

si
on

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 
pr

ot
ec

t/r
ep

la
nt

 h
ed

gi
ng

/la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

al
on

g 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
d 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
f N

or
th

 o
f H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
si

te
. 

B
ul

le
t 3

 u
nd

er
 p

ar
a 

7.
4 

ex
pl

ai
ns

 th
at

 a
 

pl
an

te
d 

be
lt 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
ed

 if
/w

he
re

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

he
dg

er
ow

 is
 lo

st
.  

3 

 
 

 
10

8 
S

er
io

us
 c

on
ce

rn
 o

ve
r f

un
ct

io
na

lit
y 

of
 d

itc
he

s 
an

d 
dr

ai
na

ge
 o

f f
ie

ld
 w

he
n 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

ne
w

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r s
ui

ta
bl

e 
su

rfa
ce

 w
at

er
 

dr
ai

na
ge

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f f

ut
ur

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

3 

 
 

 
10

9 
Im

pa
ct

 o
f r

oa
d 

w
id

en
in

g 
on

 d
itc

he
s.

 
W

he
re

 a
ffe

ct
ed

, s
ui

ta
bl

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

w
ill 

be
 m

ad
e.

 T
hi

s 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
si

tu
at

io
n 

3 

D
. H

et
he

rin
gt

on
 

26
 

20
 A

ud
le

y 
C

lo
se

, 
St

 Iv
es

 
11

0 
H

ou
si

ng
 m

ix
 –

 a
pp

ea
rs

 to
 b

e 
a 

bi
as

 to
w

ar
ds

 
ex

pe
ns

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

at
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

G
ra

ng
e 

w
ith

 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

, d
en

se
ly

-p
ac

ke
d 

la
yo

ut
 a

t N
or

th
 o

f 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d.
 T

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 a

 p
ro

pe
r m

ix
 a

nd
 

w
ill 

cr
ea

te
 a

 g
he

tto
.  

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 T
he

 la
yo

ut
s 

ar
e 

illu
st

ra
tiv

e.
 

Th
e 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
G

ra
ng

e 
pr

op
os

al
 s

ho
w

s 
a 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
m

or
e 

co
m

pl
ex

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 

an
d 

co
ns

tra
in

ts
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

. A
s 

su
ch

, 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
or

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

, b
ut

 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
on

 
th

e 
th

re
e 

si
te

s.
 

3 

 
 

 
11

1 
D

ra
in

ag
e 

– 
di

tc
h 

ru
nn

in
g 

so
ut

h 
to

w
ar

ds
 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
R

oa
d 

ov
er

flo
w

s 
in

 h
ea

vy
 ra

in
. 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

re
so

lv
e 

th
is

 k
no

w
n 

pr
ob

le
m

. 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r s
ui

ta
bl

e 
su

rfa
ce

 w
at

er
 

dr
ai

na
ge

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f f

ut
ur

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

3 

M
 &

 D
. S

ol
da

n 
27

 
S

w
an

bo
ur

ne
, 

M
ea

do
w

 L
an

e,
 

H
ou

gh
to

n 

11
2 

P
la

ns
 s

ug
ge

st
 th

at
 th

er
e 

w
ill 

be
 n

o 
ga

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

an
d 

S
t I

ve
s 

Th
is

 is
 n

ot
 th

e 
ca

se
. I

t i
s 

th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 
th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t t

o 
pr

ot
ec

t t
he

 n
on

-
al

lo
ca

te
d 

ar
ea

s 
as

 a
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ga
p 

3 

88



 
 

 
11

3 
A

11
23

 is
 v

er
y 

co
ng

es
te

d 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 w
he

n 
A

14
 b

lo
ck

ed
. 

S
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
m

en
t 8

4.
  

3 

 
 

 
11

4 
W

id
en

in
g 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
R

oa
d 

w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

ne
fit

 a
 

bu
s 

la
ne

 
N

ot
 a

gr
ee

d.
 T

he
 w

id
en

in
g 

al
so

 a
llo

w
s 

fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f t
he

 H
ig

h 
Le

ys
/H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
ju

nc
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d/
H

ill 
R

is
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

 

3 

 
 

 
11

5 
Fi

gu
re

 3
.3

 is
 in

ac
cu

ra
te

. T
he

 3
5 

m
ph

 s
pe

ed
 

lim
it 

is
 n

ot
 d

ef
in

ed
 n

or
 o

be
ye

d.
 T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
sp

ee
d 

lim
it 

on
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

H
ill 

ye
t t

he
re

 is
 o

n 
B

10
90

.  

A
gr

ee
d.

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 te

xt
 a

dd
ed

 to
 

‘a
dv

is
or

y’
 3

5m
ph

 
1 

 
 

 
11

6 
A

11
23

 c
ar

rie
s 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
tra

ffi
c 

no
w

 a
nd

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
ro

ut
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
fo

un
d,

 s
uc

h 
as

 
di

ve
rti

ng
 tr

af
fic

 a
lo

ng
 B

10
90

 to
 A

14
1 

w
ith

 
ca

lm
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

al
on

g 
A1

12
3.

 

Th
is

 is
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

is
 s

tu
dy

. 
S

ee
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 c
om

m
en

t 8
4.

 
3 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

E
na

bl
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
28

 
H

D
C

 H
ou

si
ng

 
11

7 
P

ep
pe

r p
ot

tin
g 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 is

 
pr

ef
er

re
d 

m
et

ho
d 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 h
ow

 fu
nd

in
g 

is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 If
 n

ot
 p

os
si

bl
e 

th
en

 m
us

t b
e 

in
 a

t 
le

as
t 2

 d
iff

er
en

t l
oc

at
io

ns
 o

n 
ea

ch
 s

ite
. 

N
ot

ed
. S

ee
 a

nn
ex

 2
 re

sp
on

se
 6

3 
1 

U
rb

an
 D

es
ig

n 
O

ffi
ce

r 
29

 
H

D
C

 P
la

nn
in

g 
11

8 
Fi

gu
re

 1
.1

 –
 d

is
tin

gu
is

h 
be

tw
ee

n 
co

lo
ur

s 
m

or
e 

cl
ea

rly
. 

A
gr

ee
d.

 C
ol

ou
rs

 v
ar

ie
d 

1 

 
 

 
11

9 
S

ec
tio

n 
4.

2 
– 

im
pr

ov
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ga

p 
di

ag
ra

m
. 

A
gr

ee
d.

 D
ia

gr
am

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
1 

 
 

 
12

0 
Fi

gu
re

 4
.3

 –
 m

ar
k 

on
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ite
s 

in
 

re
d.

 R
em

ov
e 

er
ro

ne
ou

s 
pu

rp
le

 a
rr

ow
 

A
gr

ee
d.

  
1 

 
 

 
12

1 
Fi

gu
re

 4
,4

 –
 m

ar
k 

on
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ite
s 

in
 

re
d.

 A
m

en
d 

ca
pt

io
n 

to
 re

ad
 ‘p

ro
po

se
d 

ne
w

 
fo

ot
pa

th
 li

nk
s’

 

A
gr

ee
d 

1 

 
 

 
12

2 
Fi

gu
re

 6
.1

 –
 a

dj
us

t ‘
gr

ee
n 

ed
ge

’ c
ap

tio
n 

to
 

be
tte

r r
el

at
e 

to
 h

ed
ge

ro
w

/tr
ee

s.
 

G
ra

ph
ic

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
12

3 
Fi

gu
re

 6
.3

 –
 re

m
ov

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 jo
in

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
 ro

un
da

bo
ut

 a
nd

 c
re

at
e 

as
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 
ro

ut
e 

on
ly

 a
nd

 o
m

it 
co

rre
sp

on
di

ng
 te

xt
 in

 4
.4

. 
A

ls
o 

re
m

ov
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
lin

k 
in

 c
en

tre
 a

s 
it 

le
ad

s 
no

w
he

re
.  

G
ra

ph
ic

 a
m

en
de

d 
an

d 
te

xt
 o

m
itt

ed
 

1 

 
 

 
12

4 
Fi

gu
re

 6
.4

 –
 a

dd
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 li
nk

 to
 H

ill
 R

is
e 

G
ra

ph
ic

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

89



ju
nc

tio
n 

 
 

 
12

5 
Fi

gu
re

 6
.6

 –
 a

dd
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 li
nk

 to
 H

ill
 R

is
e 

G
ra

ph
ic

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
12

6 
Fi

gu
re

 7
.6

 –
 s

ho
w

 O
rc

ha
rd

 H
ou

se
 a

nd
 

ga
rd

en
 a

t S
W

 c
or

ne
r. 

G
ra

ph
ic

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
12

7 
Fi

gu
re

 8
.6

 –
 s

ho
w

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
cc

es
s 

po
in

t o
nt

o 
A

11
23

. 
G

ra
ph

ic
 a

m
en

de
d 

1 

H
ew

its
on

s 
S

ol
ic

ito
rs

 
29

 
Sh

ak
es

pe
ar

e 
H

ou
se

, 4
2 

N
ew

m
ar

ke
t R

oa
d,

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 

12
8 

P
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 n
ew

 a
cc

es
s 

po
in

ts
 d

o 
no

t t
ak

e 
ac

co
un

t o
f a

cc
es

s 
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

 o
nt

o 
th

e 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
fro

m
 

B
10

90
. 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 S
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
m

en
t 

33
. 

3 

 
 

 
12

9 
Tr

af
fic

 li
gh

ts
 w

ill
 in

cu
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 ta
ilb

ac
ks

 –
 

su
gg

es
t r

ou
nd

ab
ou

t a
s 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e.

 
Th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 a

dv
is

in
g 

on
 th

e 
m

os
t s

ui
ta

bl
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

de
si

gn
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 
to

 th
e 

ro
ad

 c
on

di
tio

ns
. R

ou
nd

ab
ou

ts
 

te
nd

 to
 c

om
pr

om
is

e 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

e 
cr

os
si

ng
. 

3 

 
 

 
13

0 
H

ill
 R

is
e 

w
ill

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
ra

t-r
un

 to
 a

vo
id

 tr
af

fic
. 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 H
ill

 R
is

e 
is

 a
lre

ad
y 

a 
m

ai
n 

ro
ad

 s
er

vi
ng

 a
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
dw

el
lin

gs
 a

t t
he

 n
or

th
 o

f t
he

 to
w

n.
 

3 

M
r M

. U
tle

y 
30

 
5 

Fa
rm

 C
lo

se
, 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
13

1 
B

lo
ck

ag
es

 o
n 

A
14

 c
au

se
 h

ea
vy

 tr
af

fic
 a

lo
ng

 
A

11
23

. N
o 

m
or

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 u
nt

il 
A

14
 is

 im
pr

ov
ed

. 

S
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
m

en
t 8

4.
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
A

14
 a

re
 n

ot
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

is
 s

tu
dy

. 

2 

 
 

 
13

2 
S

ew
ag

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 p

oo
r a

nd
 b

ac
k 

up
 ri

sk
 

is
 h

ig
h 

w
he

n 
th

e 
riv

er
 le

ve
l r

is
es

 
D

et
ai

le
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r s
ew

ag
e 

di
sp

os
al

 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

al
on

gs
id

e 
fu

tu
re

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
. S

ui
ta

bl
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ill 
be

 
m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 
au

th
or

ity
 a

nd
 w

ill
 n

ot
 c

om
po

un
d 

ex
is

tin
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s.
  

3 

 
 

 
13

3 
E

le
ct

ric
ity

 s
up

pl
y 

in
 th

is
 a

re
a 

is
 u

ns
ta

bl
e 

D
et

ai
le

d 
is

su
es

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
el

ec
tri

ci
ty

 
su

pp
ly

 a
re

 n
ot

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

is
 

do
cu

m
en

t. 
It 

fa
lls

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

  

2 

 
 

 
13

4 
Th

e 
fu

tu
re

 o
f A

lc
on

bu
ry

 a
nd

 W
yt

on
 a

irf
ie

ld
s 

re
m

ai
ns

 u
nc

er
ta

in
 

Th
e 

th
re

e 
si

te
s 

in
 th

is
 U

D
F 

ar
e 

al
re

ad
y 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fo

r h
ou

si
ng

. T
he

 fu
tu

re
 o

f 
A

lc
on

bu
ry

 a
nd

 W
yt

on
 is

 n
ot

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t 

2 

90



 
 

 
13

5 
H

ar
d 

to
 s

ee
 h

ow
 s

uc
h 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ill 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 

in
 th

is
 a

re
a.

 

In
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t t
ha

t t
he

se
 s

ite
s 

ar
e 

al
re

ad
y 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fo

r h
ou

si
ng

, t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t s

ee
ks

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 th

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

be
st

 q
ua

lit
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 

3 

M
r I

 L
an

e 
31

 
36

 W
es

tb
ur

y 
R

oa
d,

 S
t I

ve
s 

13
6 

 
D

et
ai

ls
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ar

e 
m

is
si

ng
 

Th
e 

U
D

F 
is

 a
 p

la
nn

in
g 

to
ol

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

D
et

ai
le

d 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ar

e 
no

t 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 th
e 

st
ud

y.
 

3 

 
 

 
13

7 
S

ew
ag

e:
 is

 th
er

e 
su

ffi
ci

en
t c

ap
ac

ity
 fo

r 3
00

 
pl

us
 h

ou
se

s?
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

be
 a

dv
is

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

3 

 
 

 
13

8 
S

ch
oo

ls
: c

an
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
ab

so
rb

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

w
ill

 th
er

e 
be

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 b

ur
de

n 
fo

r t
he

 c
ou

nc
il-

ta
x 

pa
ye

r?
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

be
 a

dv
is

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

 F
in

an
ci

al
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

w
ith

in
 a

 le
ga

l 
ag

re
em

en
t 

3 

 
 

 
13

9 
Fl

oo
di

ng
: a

dd
iti

on
al

 ru
n-

of
f w

ill
 ru

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 

th
e 

sc
ho

ol
, b

ur
ge

ss
 h

al
l a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

. 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
be

 a
dv

is
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
 D

et
ai

le
d 

so
lu

tio
ns

 a
re

 
no

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t 

3 

 
 

 
14

0 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 b
us

 la
ne

 w
ill

 c
au

se
 m

or
e 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
fo

r g
ar

de
ns

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 H

ill
 R

is
e 

Th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
ill 

al
lo

w
 fo

r s
ui

ta
bl

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 

3 

 
 

 
14

1 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 tr
af

fic
 w

ill
 le

ad
 to

 m
or

e 
ra

t-r
un

ni
ng

 
th

ro
ug

h 
H

ig
h 

Le
as

/G
re

en
 L

ea
s/

P
ar

ag
on

 
R

oa
d.

 

M
ea

su
re

s 
to

 a
lle

vi
at

e 
th

is
 p

ro
bl

em
 w

ill 
be

 fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 th

es
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
M

ar
ke

t T
ow

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 

3 

 
 

 
14

2 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 tr
af

fic
 w

ill
 w

or
se

n 
th

e 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
A

14
 a

nd
 w

ill
 le

ad
 to

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r a

 n
or

th
er

n 
by

pa
ss

. 

S
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
m

en
t 8

4.
 

3 

C
llr

 I 
B

at
es

 
32

 
 

14
3 

A
 4

0m
ph

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
fro

m
 

th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

H
ar

tfo
rd

 
ro

un
da

bo
ut

 

W
id

er
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
ill 

fo
llo

w
 fr

om
 

th
e 

fo
rth

co
m

in
g 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

S
tra

te
gy

. 
Th

is
 is

su
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
as

se
d 

to
 th

e 
C

C
C

 
fo

r t
he

ir 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n.

 

3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

91



92

This page is intentionally left blank



H
ou

gh
to

n 
&

 W
yt

on
 

P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

33
 

 
14

4 
S

ec
tio

n 
5 

re
fe

rs
 to

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 d

ef
in

e 
ur

ba
n 

ed
ge

. S
t I

ve
s 

al
re

ad
y 

ha
d 

a 
de

fin
ed

 
ur

ba
n 

ed
ge

 o
n 

w
es

t s
id

e 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ill 

w
or

se
n 

th
e 

de
fin

iti
on

. 

Te
xt

 a
lte

re
d 

to
 re

m
ov

e 
am

bi
gu

ity
, a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 ‘t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
a 

su
ita

bl
e 

ur
ba

n 
ed

ge
 

an
d 

a 
de

fin
iti

ve
 li

m
it 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
w

es
t o

f S
t I

ve
s.

’ 

1 

 
 

 
14

5 
S

ec
tio

n 
5 

re
fe

rs
 to

 p
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
of

 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ga
p.

 P
ro

po
sa

ls
 d

o 
pr

ec
is

el
y 

th
e 

op
po

si
te

. P
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ou
ld

 re
su

lt 
in

 
rib

bo
n 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

Th
e 

th
re

e 
si

te
s 

ar
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fo

r h
ou

si
ng

. 
Th

e 
U

D
F 

se
ek

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ga

p 
th

at
 re

m
ai

ns
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
ck

no
w

le
dg

es
 th

e 
ar

ea
’s

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r a

s 
m

uc
h 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 

3 

 
 

 
14

6 
S

ec
tio

n 
9.

1 
– 

qu
es

tio
na

bl
e 

w
he

th
er

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

ar
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
w

ith
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

hi
gh

w
ay

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
 

Th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
an

d 
its

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 h
ig

hw
ay

 im
pa

ct
 w

as
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 a
t t

he
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
In

qu
iry

, 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n.
 T

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

bu
s 

la
ne

 a
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 b

us
 s

to
ps

 to
 

se
rv

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill 

as
si

st
 in

 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

no
n-

ca
r o

pt
io

ns
. 

3 

 
 

 
14

7 
R

eq
ue

st
 tr

af
fic

 fi
gu

re
s 

fo
r w

ith
 a

nd
 w

ith
ou

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ce

na
rio

s,
 a

nd
 w

ith
 a

nd
 

w
ith

ou
t s

in
gl

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
 

Th
es

e 
fig

ur
es

 a
re

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 T

he
 h

ig
hw

ay
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
sk

ed
 to

 s
up

pl
y 

th
es

e 
fig

ur
es

. 

3 

 
 

 
14

8 
A

re
 th

er
e 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

ac
ci

de
nt

 fo
re

ca
st

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e?

 
Th

es
e 

fig
ur

es
 a

re
 th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
 A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 T
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

sk
ed

 to
 s

up
pl

y 
th

es
e 

fig
ur

es
. 

3 

 
 

 
14

9 
A

ny
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

n 
th

e 
G

ra
ng

e 
si

te
 m

us
t 

be
 s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t. 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
w

ild
lif

e 
in

te
re

st
s 

on
 th

e 
si

te
 a

nd
 w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
 im

po
si

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
on

di
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

ou
tli

ne
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. S
ee

 c
om

m
en

t i
n 

A
nn

ex
 2

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

3 

1 

 
 

 
15

0 
R

um
ou

r o
f c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n 
on

 s
ite

 
P

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill 

ha
ve

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f P

P
S

23
 w

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n 

3 

 
 

 
15

1 
P

le
as

ed
 th

at
 fo

ot
pa

th
 to

 re
ar

 o
f G

ra
ng

e 
is

 
pa

ra
lle

l t
o 

C
C

 w
ild

lif
e 

si
te

, n
ot

 d
ia

go
na

l 
no

te
d 

3 

 
 

 
15

2 
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
35

 a
dv

is
or

y 
lim

it 
is

 re
pl

ac
ed

 
by

 o
bl

ig
at

or
y 

40
m

ph
 li

m
it 

fro
m

 S
aw

try
 

W
ay

 to
 H

ar
tfo

rd
 ro

un
da

bo
ut

.  

N
ot

ed
. S

ug
ge

st
io

n 
pa

ss
ed

 to
 C

C
C

 a
lth

ou
gh

 
th

is
 d

oe
s 

no
t f

al
l w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t 

3 

93



E
ng

lis
h 

N
at

ur
e 

34
 

 
15

3 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

M
ea

do
w

s 
S

S
S

I i
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
2.

1.
 C

ou
nt

y 
W

ild
lif

e 
si

te
 to

 s
ou

th
 

of
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

M
ea

do
w

s 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

A
gr

ee
d.

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ad
de

d 
to

 fi
gu

re
 2

.1
 

1 

 
 

 
15

4 
S

up
po

rt 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 g

re
en

sp
ac

es
 

ad
vo

ca
te

d 
by

 A
cc

es
si

bl
e 

N
at

ur
al

 G
re

en
 

S
pa

ce
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

no
te

d 
3 

 
 

 
15

5 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t m

ay
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

W
ild

lif
e 

si
te

. G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

is
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 P

PG
9.

 

no
te

d 
3 

 
 

 
15

6 
E

N
 d

oe
s 

no
t h

av
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 li

st
 o

f 
le

ga
lly

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 s

pe
ci

es
 in

 th
is

 a
re

a.
 

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

co
nt

ac
t b

e 
m

ad
e 

w
ith

 
C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

 W
ild

lif
e 

Tr
us

t f
or

 m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

C
on

ta
ct

 m
ad

e 
as

 a
dv

is
ed

. F
in

di
ng

s 
to

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 n
ew

 e
co

lo
gy

 s
ec

tio
n 

un
de

r 
pa

ra
 4

.1
 w

he
re

 re
le

va
nt

. S
ee

 c
om

m
en

t 3
 in

 
an

ne
x 

2.
 

1 

M
r B

ro
ad

ba
nk

 
35

 
 

15
7 

La
ck

 o
f g

oo
d 

qu
al

ity
 d

et
ac

he
d 

bu
ng

al
ow

s 
fo

r d
ow

n-
si

zi
ng

 o
cc

up
an

ts
. R

ec
om

m
en

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

un
its

 o
n 

on
e 

or
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 s
ite

s.
 

B
un

ga
lo

w
s 

ar
e 

no
t p

ro
m

ot
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 
de

ns
ity

 a
nd

 u
rb

an
 fo

rm
.  

3 

C
llr

 J
. D

av
ie

s 
36

 
 

15
8 

S
up

po
rts

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 g
re

en
 

co
rr

id
or

 b
ut

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 lo
ss

 o
f 

tre
es

. A
ll 

tre
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

pl
ac

ed
 p

lu
s 

ne
w

 p
la

nt
in

g.
 

no
te

d 
3 

 
 

 
15

9 
S

up
po

rts
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 o
f m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 g

re
en

 
se

pa
ra

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

S
t I

ve
s 

an
d 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
no

te
d 

3 

 
 

 
16

0 
S

af
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
cc

es
s 

m
us

t b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 in
 s

ym
pa

th
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
sa

fe
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
cr

os
s 

A
11

23
 a

nd
 to

 W
yt

on
-o

n-
th

e-
hi

ll.
 

A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
M

ar
ke

t T
ow

n 
S

tra
te

gy
, 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

is
 ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r  
sa

fe
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
cr

os
si

ng
 in

 th
is

 lo
ca

tio
n.

 

3 

 
 

 
16

1 
A

11
23

 h
as

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
ve

ry
 b

us
y 

ro
ad

. I
t i

s 
es

se
nt

ia
l t

ha
t C

C
C

 ta
ke

 th
is

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 
w

he
n 

de
si

gn
in

g 
hi

gh
w

ay
 la

yo
ut

 

A
gr

ee
d 

3 

 
 

 
16

2 
P

os
si

bl
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 ra

t-r
un

ni
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

G
re

en
 le

as
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 a

t a
n 

ea
rly

 s
ta

ge
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

N
ot

ed
. T

hi
s 

is
su

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
M

ar
ke

t T
ow

n 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r 
S

t I
ve

s,
 fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. 

3 

94



 
 

 
16

3 
S

up
po

rts
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
N

ot
ed

 
3 

 
 

 
16

4 
D

ra
in

ag
e 

m
us

t b
e 

ca
re

fu
lly

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
on

 
ea

ch
 s

ite
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t 
re

ly
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
sy

st
em

s.
 

N
ot

ed
 

3 

C
ou

nt
y 

A
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

st
 

37
 

B
ox

 E
LH

 1
10

8 
C

as
tle

 C
ou

rt 
16

5 
S

ite
s 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 a

n 
ar

ea
 o

f h
ig

h 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

ic
al

 p
ot

en
tia

l. 
P

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

cc
om

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f a

n 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

ic
al

 fi
el

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 

N
ot

ed
 

3 

M
r J

. M
. P

ag
e 

38
 

C
la

yt
ile

s,
 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
R

oa
d,

 S
t 

Iv
es

 

16
6 

Th
re

e 
ho

us
in

g 
si

te
s 

w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

tra
ffi

c 
vo

lu
m

es
, f

ai
lu

re
 o

f 
ut

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t d
eg

ra
da

tio
n,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

no
is

e 
an

d 
at

m
os

ph
er

ic
 p

ol
lu

tio
n.

 

Th
e 

th
re

e 
si

te
s 

ar
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fo

r h
ou

si
ng

. I
t 

is
 im

po
rta

nt
 th

at
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t a

nd
 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

ar
e 

m
in

im
is

ed
 a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

pr
ov

id
ed

. 

3 

 
 

 
16

7 
W

es
t b

ou
nd

 tr
af

fic
 w

ill
 b

e 
sl

ow
ed

 b
y 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
ra

ffi
c 

lig
ht

s 
Th

is
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
th

e 
ca

se
 if

 th
e 

lig
ht

s 
ar

e 
pr

op
er

ly
 s

eq
ue

nc
ed

. 
3 

 
 

 
16

8 
E

xi
t f

ro
m

 d
riv

es
 o

n 
no

rth
 s

id
e 

of
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
w

ill 
be

 v
irt

ua
lly

 im
po

ss
ib

le
 

A
cc

es
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

dr
iv

ew
ay

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 a

 s
af

et
y 

au
di

t o
n 

an
y 

fu
tu

re
 d

et
ai

le
d 

hi
gh

w
ay

 s
ch

em
es

. T
he

 
co

nc
er

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

as
se

d 
to

 th
e 

LH
A

 

3 

 
 

 
16

9 
Ta

ilb
ac

ks
 w

ill 
w

or
se

n,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 w
ith

 
ad

di
tio

na
l v

ol
um

es
 fr

om
 A

14
. 

S
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
m

en
t 8

4.
  

3 

 
 

 
17

0 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 
m

ak
e 

th
ei

r w
ay

 th
ro

ug
h 

tra
ffi

c 
ja

m
s.

 
N

ot
 a

gr
ee

d.
  

3 

 
 

 
17

1 
Ju

nc
tio

n 
in

to
 H

ig
h 

Le
ys

 is
 e

xt
ra

or
di

na
ry

 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
ch

ao
tic

 a
t p

ea
k 

sc
ho

ol
 ti

m
es

. 
Th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

al
lo

w
 fo

r i
m

pr
ov

ed
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
an

d 
sa

fe
r v

eh
ic

le
 m

an
oe

uv
re

s.
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 
th

e 
w

id
er

 c
yc

le
 a

nd
 fo

ot
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

ar
e 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 re
du

ce
d 

ca
r u

sa
ge

 
at

 p
ea

k 
sc

ho
ol

 ti
m

es
.  

3 

 
 

 
17

2 
G

ui
de

d 
bu

s 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

fla
w

ed
, b

y 
re

as
on

 o
f 

de
si

gn
, c

os
t a

nd
 li

m
ite

d 
be

ne
fit

. 
N

ot
 w

ith
in

 re
m

it 
of

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
Th

e 
bu

s 
la

ne
 

is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t u

se
, 

w
he

th
er

 o
r n

ot
 th

e 
gu

id
ed

 b
us

 p
ro

ce
ed

s.
 

3 

 
 

 
17

3 
D

ra
in

ag
e 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
w

ill 
no

t b
e 

ab
le

 to
 

Th
e 

de
ta

il 
of

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

3 

95



co
pe

 w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
es

en
te

d 
at

 a
 la

te
r s

ta
ge

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 th
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 

au
th

or
ity

 
 

 
 

17
4 

Fo
ot

pa
th

/c
yc

le
w

ay
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

is
 

in
ad

eq
ua

te
. T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

be
fo

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ta
rts

. 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

be
ne

fit
s 

ne
go

tia
te

d 
w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

3 

 
 

 
17

8 
S

t I
ve

s 
by

-p
as

s 
is

 n
ee

de
d 

be
fo

re
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

om
m

en
ce

s 
Th

es
e 

si
te

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
3 

 
 

 
17

9 
La

ck
 o

f c
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

th
in

ki
ng

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 

re
so

lv
in

g 
is

su
es

 e
g 

dr
ai

na
ge

, t
ra

ffi
c 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

ta
ke

 th
e 

ad
vi

ce
 

of
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
at

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

tim
e 

an
d 

w
ill 

en
su

re
 th

at
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
is

 m
ad

e 
fo

r i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
th

at
 

th
es

e 
si

te
s 

ha
ve

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 a
llo

ca
te

d.
 

3 

 
 

 
18

0 
P

ro
po

se
d 

ho
us

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 in

 k
ee

pi
ng

 w
ith

 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l n
at

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
ar

ea
. 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 T
he

 U
D

F 
pr

op
os

es
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

ha
t r

es
pe

ct
s 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r o
f 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ar
ea

.  
 

3 

 
 

 
18

1 
R

ep
ly

 to
 le

tte
r o

f 2
00

2 
ha

s 
no

t b
ee

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
. 

N
ot

ed
. M

at
te

r p
as

se
d 

to
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

P
la

ns
 M

an
ag

er
 fo

r r
es

po
ns

e 
3 

 
 

 
18

2 
P

la
ns

 s
ho

w
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

an
d 

S
t I

ve
s 

vi
rtu

al
ly

 
jo

in
ed

 u
p.

 T
hi

s 
co

nt
ra

di
ct

s 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
to

 re
ta

in
 ru

ra
l i

de
nt

ity
. 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 In
 th

e 
ev

en
t t

ha
t t

he
se

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
al

re
ad

y 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r h

ou
si

ng
, t

he
 U

D
F 

pr
op

os
es

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 
un

al
lo

ca
te

d 
la

nd
 is

 p
ro

m
ot

ed
 a

s 
an

 
im

po
rta

nt
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ga
p.

 

3 

S
t I

ve
s 

To
w

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
39

 
 

18
3 

S
up

po
rts

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 g
re

en
 

co
rr

id
or

 b
ut

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 lo
ss

 o
f 

tre
es

. A
ll 

tre
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

pl
ac

ed
 p

lu
s 

ne
w

 in
di

ge
no

us
 p

la
nt

in
g.

 

ag
re

ed
 

3 

 
 

 
18

4 
S

tro
ng

ly
 s

up
po

rts
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 o
f 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 g
re

en
 s

ep
ar

at
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
St

 
Iv

es
 a

nd
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

no
te

d 
3 

 
 

 
18

5 
S

af
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
cc

es
s 

m
us

t b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 in
 s

ym
pa

th
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
sa

fe
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
cr

os
s 

A
11

23
 a

nd
 to

 W
yt

on
-o

n-
th

e-
hi

ll.
 

S
ee

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

om
m

en
t 1

60
. 

3 

 
 

 
18

6 
A

11
23

 h
as

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
ve

ry
 b

us
y 

ro
ad

. I
t i

s 
no

te
d 

3 

96



es
se

nt
ia

l t
ha

t C
C

C
 ta

ke
 th

is
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

w
he

n 
de

si
gn

in
g 

hi
gh

w
ay

 la
yo

ut
 

 
 

 
18

7 
Th

e 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 tr
af

fic
 m

ay
 

st
re

ng
th

en
 th

e 
ca

se
 fo

r p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f a
 

no
rth

er
n 

by
pa

ss
 

N
ot

ed
 b

ut
 n

ot
 w

ith
in

 re
m

it 
of

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t 
2 

 
 

 
18

8 
P

os
si

bl
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 ra

t-r
un

ni
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

G
re

en
 L

ea
s.

 P
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r t
ra

ffi
c 

ca
lm

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

 

N
ot

ed
, b

ut
 th

is
 w

ill 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 w
ith

 s
ite

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
ve

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 to

w
ar

ds
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
en

ef
its

, 
se

cu
re

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

2 

 
 

 
18

9 
S

up
po

rts
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 
no

te
d 

3 
 

 
 

19
0 

S
ec

ur
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r w
et

la
nd

 a
re

a 
to

 
so

ut
h 

of
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

G
ra

ng
e 

A
ss

um
in

g 
th

at
 th

is
 c

om
m

en
t r

el
at

es
 to

 th
e 

ar
ea

 to
 th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 th

e 
Th

ic
ke

t, 
th

is
 fa

lls
 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
. 

3 

 
 

 
19

1 
D

ra
in

ag
e 

m
us

t b
e 

ca
re

fu
lly

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
on

 
ea

ch
 s

ite
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t 
re

ly
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
sy

st
em

s.
 

ag
re

ed
 

3 

 
 

 
19

2 
C

as
e 

fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 b
us

 la
ne

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
en

 
N

ot
ed

. I
t i

s 
th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 a

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
in

te
nt

io
n 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 b
us

 la
ne

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

tra
ns

po
rt 

us
e.

 

3 

C
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 A
ge

nc
y 

40
 

 
19

3 
R

ef
er

 to
 C

A
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 p

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

y 
st

at
em

en
t. 

no
te

d 
3 

R
og

er
 S

ar
ge

nt
 

41
 

R
P

S
 G

ro
up

 
19

4 
W

hy
 is

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 G

ol
f c

ou
rs

e 
si

te
 fr

om
 a

 
si

de
 ro

ad
 w

he
re

as
 o

th
er

 tw
o 

si
te

s 
m

ee
t 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
ro

ad
 a

t a
 ro

un
da

bo
ut

? 

Th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
do

ne
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

pl
an

te
d,

 
gr

ee
n 

ed
ge

 to
 th

e 
go

lf 
co

ur
se

 a
nd

 to
 a

vo
id

 
ur

ba
ni

si
ng

 th
is

 a
re

a.
 

R
ou

nd
ab

ou
ts

 a
re

 n
ot

 s
ho

w
n 

at
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

ju
nc

tio
ns

: t
he

 k
ey

 e
xp

la
in

s 
th

em
 a

s 
‘s

ig
na

lle
d 

ju
nc

tio
ns

’. 
A

 ro
un

da
bo

ut
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

al
lo

w
 fo

r e
as

y 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

e 
cr

os
si

ng
 

3 

 
 

 
19

5 
Lo

gi
ca

l s
ol

ut
io

n 
to

 g
ol

f c
ou

rs
e 

ac
ce

ss
 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
to

 fo
rm

 a
 s

ig
na

lle
d 

cr
os

s-
ro

ad
s 

w
ith

 H
ig

h 
Le

ys
. 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d,

 a
s 

co
m

m
en

t 1
94

. 
3 

 
 

 
19

6 
N

ew
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 g
ol

f c
ou

rs
e 

si
te

 fr
om

 H
ig

h 
Le

ys
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 c
au

se
 m

or
e 

tra
ffi

c 
pr

ob
le

m
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
t p

ea
k 

sc
ho

ol
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

o 
fo

ot
w

ay
, c

yc
le

w
ay

 a
nd

 
cr

os
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 is
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 c

ar
 

us
e 

at
 p

ea
k 

tim
es

. 

3 

97



tim
es

. 
 

 
 

19
7 

P
ro

po
se

d 
ac

ce
ss

 fr
om

 H
ig

h 
Le

ys
 w

ou
ld

 
ca

us
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
at

-r
un

ni
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

G
re

en
 L

ea
s 

an
d 

P
ar

ag
on

 R
oa

d 

Th
e 

H
ig

h 
Le

ys
/H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
ju

nc
tio

n 
is

 to
 

be
 im

pr
ov

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

is
 li

ke
lih

oo
d.

 A
ls

o,
 

ra
t r

un
ni

ng
 w

ill 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 w

ith
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 s
ec

ur
ed

 to
 th

e 
M

ar
ke

t T
ow

n 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

tra
te

gy
. 

3 

 
 

 
19

8 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 ra
t-r

un
ni

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
G

re
en

 L
ey

s 
ar

ea
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

of
f-s

tre
et

 p
ar

ki
ng

 w
ou

ld
 c

au
se

 a
 h

ig
hw

ay
 

da
ng

er
. 

R
at

-ru
nn

in
g 

w
ill 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
tra

te
gy

. 
3 

 
 

 
19

9 
C

re
at

io
n 

of
 s

ig
na

lle
d 

cr
os

sr
oa

ds
 o

pp
os

ite
 

H
ill

 R
is

e 
w

ou
ld

 re
m

ov
e 

on
ly

 s
m

al
l, 

no
n 

sp
ec

im
en

 tr
ee

s.
  

Th
is

 m
ay

 b
e 

th
e 

ca
se

, b
ut

 it
 w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
ad

d 
a 

la
rg

e 
ar

ea
 o

f h
ar

d 
su

rfa
ce

, b
e 

to
o 

cl
os

e 
to

 
th

e 
H

ig
h 

Le
ys

 ju
nc

tio
n 

an
d 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 re
su

lt 
in

 fu
rth

er
 ‘u

rb
an

is
at

io
n’

 o
f t

hi
s 

ar
ea

 

3 

 
 

 
20

0 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ro

hi
bi

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 H
ig

h 
Le

ys
/G

re
en

 L
ea

s 
w

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
20

m
ph

 
sp

ee
d 

lim
it 

an
d 

ot
he

r s
pe

ed
 re

st
ra

in
t 

m
ea

su
re

s 
(ra

m
ps

, p
in

ch
-p

oi
nt

s 
et

c)
 to

 
de

te
r t

hr
ou

gh
 tr

af
fic

.  

N
ot

ed
. D

et
ai

le
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
M

ar
ke

t T
ow

n 
S

tra
te

gy
. 

3 

M
rs

 L
. B

ar
ne

s 
42

 
 

20
1 

Tr
af

fic
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

al
on

g 
A

11
23

 w
ill

 w
or

se
n 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
sp

ee
d 

lim
it 

pr
op

os
al

s.
 

Th
e 

si
te

s 
w

er
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
th

at
 

ad
di

tio
na

l c
ap

ac
ity

 e
xi

st
s.

 
3 

 
 

 
20

2 
W

ha
t m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
A

11
23

 w
he

n 
th

e 
A

14
 is

 
cl

os
ed

? 
 

Th
is

 d
oe

s 
no

t f
al

l w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

is
 

do
cu

m
en

t b
ut

 th
e 

is
su

e 
w

ill 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
S

tra
te

gy
. T

he
 s

ite
s 

w
er

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

on
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

th
at

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
 e

xi
st

s.
 

3 

 
 

 
20

3 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 th
e 

A
11

23
 w

ill 
ca

us
e 

gr
ea

te
r d

an
ge

r t
o 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 ju

nc
tio

ns
, f

oo
tw

ay
s 

an
d 

cr
os

si
ng

s 
ar

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 to

 a
ss

is
t r

es
id

en
ts

 
an

d 
ot

he
r u

se
rs

. T
he

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r s

af
et

y 
w

ill 
in

flu
en

ce
 th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
de

si
gn

 o
f h

ig
hw

ay
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 

3 

 
 

 
20

4 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f s

ec
on

da
ry

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r a

t S
t I

vo
. I

s 
th

er
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 L
E

A
? 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

is
 ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
LE

A
 

an
d 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 w
he

n 
de

ta
ile

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

re
 re

ce
iv

ed
. T

he
 L

E
A

 

3 

98



pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r c
op

in
g 

w
ith

 th
es

e 
nu

m
be

rs
? 

w
ill

 a
dv

is
e 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l o

f r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

. 
 

 
 

20
5 

W
ha

t p
la

ns
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
E

A
 fo

r 
dr

ai
na

ge
 a

nd
 fl

oo
d 

pr
ev

en
tio

n?
 H

ow
 w

ill
 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
af

fe
ct

 lo
w

er
 p

ar
ts

 o
f S

t I
ve

s?
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

is
 ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
 E

A
 a

nd
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 w

he
n 

de
ta

ile
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
re

 re
ce

iv
ed

. E
A

 w
ill 

ad
vi

se
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l o
f r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 w
ill 

ne
go

tia
te

 
ad

eq
ua

te
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 

3 

 
 

 
20

6 
G

re
en

 e
dg

e 
al

on
g 

G
ol

f c
ou

rs
e 

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
 

ha
ve

 a
 ro

ad
 p

ro
po

se
d 

al
on

g 
it 

Th
is

 is
 a

 m
is

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

le
ge

nd
. 

O
nl

y 
fo

ot
pa

th
s 

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 
fo

ot
pa

th
s 

ar
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
gr

ee
n 

ed
ge

 a
re

a.
 

3 

H
uw

 N
ic

ho
la

s 
43

 
C

C
C

 
20

7 
U

D
F 

co
nt

ai
ns

 s
ur

pr
is

in
g 

am
ou

nt
 o

f d
et

ai
l 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
pr

ej
ud

ic
ia

l t
o 

ev
en

tu
al

 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
  

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 
th

e 
ad

va
nc

ed
 s

ta
ge

 o
f o

ut
lin

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
. 

It 
is

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
at

 th
is

 w
ill 

co
m

pr
om

is
e 

fu
tu

re
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 o

r m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
.  

3 

 
 

 
20

8 
S

up
po

rts
 a

re
a-

w
id

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 fo
r e

ac
h 

si
te

 
N

ot
ed

 
3 

 
 

 
20

9 
S

up
po

rts
 m

ov
em

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

ks
 fo

r e
ac

h 
si

te
 

N
ot

ed
 

3 

Je
nn

y 
C

ar
lile

 
44

 
E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
 

21
0 

Th
e 

si
te

 a
na

ly
si

s 
an

d 
pr

op
os

ed
 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
de

qu
at

el
y 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 a

ss
et

 

N
ot

ed
 

3 

C
am

br
id

ge
 W

at
er

 
45

 
41

 R
us

ta
t R

oa
d,

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 
21

1 
W

el
co

m
es

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ith

in
 it

s 
ar

ea
 o

f s
up

pl
y 

N
ot

ed
 

3 

 
 

 
21

2 
S

t I
ve

s 
B

oo
st

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
(lo

ca
te

d 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 to

 th
e 

ea
st

 o
f H

ou
gh

to
n 

G
ra

ng
e 

si
te

) w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

 

N
ot

ed
 

3 

H
un

tin
gd

on
sh

ire
 

P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t 

46
 

Th
e 

P
rio

ry
, P

rio
ry

 
R

oa
d,

 S
t I

ve
s 

21
3 

Im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 S
10

6 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 to
 

en
su

re
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
S

10
6 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 a

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

in
g 

ne
go

tia
te

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
is

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

w
ill 

be
 m

et
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

3 

 
 

 
21

4 
D

oc
um

en
t p

ro
po

se
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 o
f 

go
od

 la
yo

ut
 a

nd
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 w

ith
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 le

is
ur

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
  

no
te

d 
3 

 
 

 
21

5 
P

re
se

rv
at

io
n 

of
 fo

ot
w

ay
 a

nd
 c

yc
le

w
ay

s 
no

te
d 

3 

99



en
co

ur
ag

es
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

ity
 

 
 

 
21

6 
B

us
 li

nk
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 a
vo

id
 is

ol
at

io
n,

 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 o
ld

 
pe

op
le

 

B
us

 s
to

ps
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
3 

 
 

 
21

7 
G

ui
de

d 
bu

s 
m

ay
 re

du
ce

 s
af

et
y 

an
d 

gr
ee

n 
le

is
ur

e 
ar

ea
s 

Th
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r s

af
et

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
bu

s 
la

ne
’s

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

si
gn

. A
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 la

nd
-ta

ke
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
th

e 
bu

s 
la

ne
 w

ill 
no

t b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 
th

e 
de

pt
h 

of
 th

e 
gr

ee
n 

ar
ea

s 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

. 

3 

 
 

 
21

8 
S

up
po

rt 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 ‘p

ep
pe

re
d’

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g 

at
 2

9%
 fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 

no
te

d 
3 

 

100



A
N

N
EX

 2
 

 
ST

 IV
ES

 W
ES

T 
U

R
B

A
N

 D
ES

IG
N

 F
R

A
M

EW
O

R
K

  
 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
S 

  C
om

m
en

t N
o.

 3
 

A
dd

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 a

fte
r 4

.1
 h

ea
de

d 
‘E

co
lo

gy
’: 

 
‘T

he
re

 is
 k

no
w

n 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f i
m

po
rta

nt
 h

ab
ita

ts
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 o
r a

ffe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
G

ra
ng

e 
si

te
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 G
re

at
 C

re
st

ed
 

N
ew

ts
 a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 b

at
 ro

os
tin

g.
 F

or
 th

is
 re

as
on

, a
nd

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
an

y 
fu

rth
er

 w
ild

lif
e 

im
pa

ct
s,

 a
n 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 s

ur
ve

y 
w

ill
 

be
 a

 c
on

di
tio

n 
at

ta
ch

ed
 to

 fu
tu

re
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

.  
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, d
ev

el
op

m
en

t m
us

t n
ot

 c
au

se
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

et
rim

en
t t

o 
th

e 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

H
ou

gh
to

n 
M

ea
do

w
s 

S
S

S
I o

r C
ou

nt
y 

W
ild

lif
e 

S
ite

, e
ith

er
 b

y 
di

re
ct

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
r a

s 
a 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
e 

of
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
or

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s.

’ 
 

 C
om

m
en

t N
o.

 3
1,

 8
3 

&
 8

7 
A

dd
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 w
ith

in
 4

.1
: 

  
‘T

he
re

 a
re

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
al

on
g 

th
e 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d 
no

rth
 o

f t
he

 G
ol

f C
ou

rs
e 

an
d 

at
 th

e 
H

ou
gh

to
n 

R
oa

d/
H

ill
 R

is
e 

ju
nc

tio
n.

 T
he

se
 m

ay
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 w
or

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. I

n 
or

de
r n

ot
 to

 c
om

po
un

d 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
si

tu
at

io
n,

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
cc

om
pa

ni
ed

 b
y 

de
ta

ile
d 

sc
he

m
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

at
te

nu
at

io
n 

of
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

ite
s.

   
 C

om
m

en
t N

o.
 4

5 
O

m
it 

‘T
hi

s 
in

vo
lv

es
 re

in
fo

rc
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rim
et

er
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 to
 th

e 
no

rth
, e

as
t a

nd
 w

es
t.’

 T
ex

t a
m

en
de

d 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 
 

‘T
hi

s 
m

ay
 in

vo
lv

e 
so

m
e 

re
in

fo
rc

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 p
er

im
et

er
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

, 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 t
o 

re
pl

ac
e 

an
y 

de
ad

, 
dy

in
g 

or
 d

an
ge

ro
us

 
tre

es
. 

Fu
rth

er
m

or
e,

 n
ew

 s
cr

ee
n 

pl
an

tin
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

al
on

gs
id

e 
th

e 
ne

w
 a

cc
es

s 
fro

m
 t

he
 A

11
23

 a
nd

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 
ne

ed
ed

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
no

rth
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

if 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ro

ad
 w

id
en

in
g’

.  
 

C
om

m
en

t N
o.

 5
6 

Te
xt

 a
m

en
de

d 
in

 8
.2

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
  

‘T
hi

s 
w

ill
 in

vo
lv

e 
th

e 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 e
xt

en
si

on
s 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ho
us

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t w

ith
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 th
at

 h
el

p 
to

 re
in

fo
rc

e 
th

e 
G

ra
ng

e’
s 

fo
ca

l p
os

iti
on

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ve

nu
e.

’  
  

101



C
om

m
en

t N
o.

 6
3,

 6
6 

&
 7

5 
O

m
it 

6.
6 

an
d 

co
m

bi
ne

 w
ith

in
 a

 n
ew

 9
.5

 h
ea

de
d 

‘H
ou

si
ng

 ty
pe

s’
, a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

  
‘P

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 s
ite

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 M

ar
ke

t H
ou

si
ng

 M
ix

 S
P

G
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 

si
ze

s.
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 to
 m

ee
t t

hi
s 

gu
id

an
ce

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
si

te
-s

pe
ci

fic
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n.

 
  

29
%

 o
f 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
on

 e
ac

h 
si

te
. 

Th
is

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 a
t 

le
as

t 
tw

o 
di

ffe
re

nt
 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 w
ith

in
 e

ac
h 

si
te

, o
r i

de
al

ly
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

. I
t s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

gr
ou

pe
d 

to
ge

th
er

.’ 
 

  

102



 

   
 
 
 
CABINET 

 
17TH MARCH 2005 

 
 

ANGLIAN HOUSE, HUNTINGDON  
URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK AND MASTERPLAN 

(Report by Head of Planning Services) 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Cabinet of the responses to 

the draft Urban Design Framework for Anglian House, Huntingdon and 
to consider the Council’s response.  A revised document is 
recommended for adoption as Interim Planning Guidance (IPG). 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The site to which the Framework applies includes the offices currently 

occupied by the Anglian Water Group and associated land mainly used 
for car parking. For the purposes of considering this site in context, the 
Framework also includes an area to the rear of High Street, the small St 
Germain Street car park and the courtyard area in front of the County 
Council’s Probation Service. The Framework looks closely at the 
advantages that re-development would allow and makes 
recommendations for proposed uses, ensuring that proposals enhance 
the vitality and viability of the town centre. 

 
2.2 The adoption of the Framework and Masterplan as Interim Planning 

Guidance is an important step towards achieving the most appropriate 
form of re-development for this important town centre site and it will 
ensure that forthcoming schemes will be of a high architectural and 
urban design quality. 

 
2.1 The draft document was approved for a period of public consultation on 

16th December 2004. As part of the consultation exercise, a public 
exhibition was held over a 2-day period in the Commemoration Hall in 
January 2005. Residents and businesses in the immediate area were 
informed of the proposals by a leaflet delivered to each premises. In 
addition, formal consultation with the statutory agencies and the Town 
Council was undertaken.  

  
3. THE CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
3.1 7 written responses have been received from statutory agencies, local 

organisations and members of the public, raising 60 separate issues. A 
summary of the respondents and their comments is contained within 
Annex 1.  A number of comments have expressed positive interest in the 
benefits of developing the land but a number of concerns have also 
been raised. The majority of concerns have resulted in minor re-wording, 
text or graphic changes. The Council’s response to comments is noted 
in Annex 1 and continued in Annex 2. 

 

Agenda Item 9

103



 

3.2 The most significant concerns relate to issues of building height, tree 
loss and traffic impact. Both these and the other concerns expressed 
have been fully considered and addressed either in the form of 
amendments to the document or, where amendments are not 
considered appropriate, in the form of a reasoned response.   

 
3.3 If the proposed responses and amendments contained within Annex 1 

and 2 are acceptable to Cabinet, they will then be incorporated into the 
revised, adopted document. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 That the Cabinet considers the responses to comments presented in 

Annex 1 and 2 and agrees to adopt the revised Urban Design 
Framework, incorporating the specified changes, as Interim Planning 
Guidance. 

 
4.2 That the Cabinet authorizes the Head of Planning Services to make any 

minor consequential amendments to the text and illustrations necessary 
as a result of these changes, after consultation with the Executive 
Member for Planning Strategy. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Draft Anglian House, Huntingdon Urban Design Framework and Masterplan 
Report to Cabinet 16th December 2004 
Civic Trust Regeneration Unit ‘Huntingdon Town Centre: A Vision and Strategy 
for Growth and Quality’ 2000 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Chris Surfleet 

Urban Design Officer 
  01480 388476 
 

104



A
N

N
EX

 1
 

 
A

N
G

LI
A

N
 H

O
U

SE
, H

U
N

TI
N

G
D

O
N

 U
R

B
A

N
 D

ES
IG

N
 F

R
A

M
EW

O
R

K
  

R
ES

PO
N

SE
S 

  1 
– 

ac
tio

n 
ta

ke
n 

2 
– 

no
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t 
3 

– 
no

 a
ct

io
n 

ta
ke

n 
  R

es
po

nd
en

t 
R

es
p 

no
. 

A
dd

re
ss

 
C

om
m

 
N

o.
 

C
om

m
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e 

A
ct

io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

no
n 

1 
 

1 
A

cc
es

s 
do

w
n 

pa
ss

ag
ew

ay
 b

et
w

ee
n 

10
1 

an
d 

10
3 

H
ig

h 
S

tre
et

 to
 C

ro
m

w
el

l M
ew

s 
an

d 
Ll

oy
ds

 B
an

k 
ca

r p
ar

k 
is

 v
er

y 
po

or
. P

le
as

e 
im

pr
ov

e 
si

tu
at

io
n 

by
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 b
et

te
r m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f L

lo
yd

s 
B

an
k 

ca
r 

pa
rk

. 

Th
is

 is
su

e 
is

 n
ot

ed
 b

ut
 

do
es

 n
ot

 fa
ll 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t. 

2 

 
 

 
 

2 
R

et
ai

n 
fo

ot
pa

th
 b

eh
in

d 
C

ro
m

w
el

l M
ew

s 
Th

is
 is

 n
ot

 a
 p

ub
lic

 ri
gh

t 
of

 w
ay

 b
ut

 it
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 
to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
fo

ot
w

ay
 li

nk
 

fro
m

 G
ra

m
m

ar
 S

ch
oo

l 
W

al
k 

in
to

 th
e 

si
te

. 

3 

M
r &

 M
rs

 E
. 

P
ow

er
 

2 
 

3 
2 

st
or

ey
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill 
ha

ve
 le

ss
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ou
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 th
an

 2
/3

 s
to

re
y 

pr
op

os
ed

. 
D

oc
um

en
t a

lre
ad

y 
re

fle
ct

s 
ne

ed
 to

 re
sp

on
d 

to
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 p
ro

pe
rty

 in
 

te
rm

s 
of

 s
ca

le
 

3 

 
 

 
4 

A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
S

ou
th

: c
on

ge
st

ed
 d

ue
 to

 re
du

ce
d 

w
id

th
 b

y 
ca

r p
ar

ki
ng

 h
in

de
rin

g 
2 

w
ay

 tr
af

fic
 o

n 
bl

in
d 

co
rn

er
 

A
ny

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
ac

ce
ss

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ill
 

ne
ed

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
hi

gh
w

ay
 

us
ag

e 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

of
f-s

ite
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
he

re
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
  

3 

 
 

 
5 

A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
S

ou
th

: D
el

iv
er

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 ta

ke
 u

p 
m

os
t o

f r
oa

d 
w

he
n 

tu
rn

in
g 

in
to

 H
ig

h 
S

tre
et

 
pr

em
is

es
 

A
ny

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
ac

ce
ss

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ill
 

ne
ed

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
hi

gh
w

ay
 

3 

105



us
ag

e 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

of
f-s

ite
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
he

re
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
  

 
 

 
6 

A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
S

ou
th

: s
up

er
m

ar
ke

t d
el

iv
er

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 m

is
ta

ke
 th

is
 ro

ad
 fo

r S
t G

er
m

ai
n 

S
tre

et
 

an
d 

th
en

 h
av

e 
to

 re
ve

rs
e 

ba
ck

 o
nt

o 
th

e 
rin

g-
ro

ad
 

Th
is

 is
su

e 
w

ill 
be

 p
as

se
d 

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l H

ig
hw

ay
 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
fo

r t
he

ir 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

1 

 
 

 
7 

A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
S

ou
th

:c
on

ge
st

ed
 d

ue
 to

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 

flo
w

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
se

rv
in

g 
se

ve
ra

l p
re

m
is

es
 

A
ny

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
ac

ce
ss

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ill
 

ne
ed

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
hi

gh
w

ay
 

us
ag

e 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

of
f-s

ite
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
he

re
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
 

3 

 
 

 
8 

A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
S

ou
th

: v
eh

ic
le

s 
us

in
g 

N
at

 W
es

t 
ba

nk
 c

ar
 p

ar
k 

as
 s

ho
rt-

cu
t i

nt
o 

H
ig

h 
S

tre
et

  
Th

is
 is

su
e 

w
ill 

be
 p

as
se

d 
to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l H
ig

hw
ay

 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

fo
r t

he
ir 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 

1 

 
 

 
9 

A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
S

ou
th

: b
lin

d 
co

rn
er

 n
ee

ds
 c

le
ar

er
 

ro
ad

-m
ar

ki
ng

s 
to

 a
vo

id
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 
Th

is
 is

su
e 

w
ill 

be
 p

as
se

d 
to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l H
ig

hw
ay

 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

fo
r t

he
ir 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 

1 

 
 

 
10

 
A

m
bu

ry
 R

oa
d 

S
ou

th
: P

ed
es

tri
an

s 
an

d 
cy

cl
is

ts
 

ha
ve

 n
o 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
al

on
g 

so
ut

h 
w

al
l o

f A
ng

lia
n 

H
ou

se
, o

r s
tre

et
 li

gh
tin

g 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f t
hi

s 
si

tu
at

io
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
hi

s 
si

te
 

3 

 
 

 
11

 
 

 
 

B
en

 W
rig

ht
on

, 
D

on
al

ds
on

s 
3 

48
 W

ar
w

ic
k 

S
tre

et
, L

on
do

n 
12

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
 –

 p
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 ro
ad

 n
am

es
 a

nd
 

id
en

tif
ie

s 
th

re
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 p
ar

ts
 o

f t
he

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ar
ea

. 

D
et

ai
ls

 a
dd

ed
 

1 

 
 

 
13

 
P

ar
a 

1.
2 

– 
w

hi
ls

t a
ck

no
w

le
dg

in
g 

th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

pp
ro

ac
h,

 a
 s

ta
te

m
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

‘a
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
1 

106



m
ad

e 
w

hi
ch

 d
oe

s 
no

t p
re

cl
ud

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fro
m

 p
ro

ce
ed

in
g 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

ar
ea

. 

pr
om

ot
es

 a
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

hi
s 

ar
ea

, i
t d

oe
s 

no
t 

pr
ec

lu
de

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
th

at
 c

on
fo

rm
 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 fr

om
 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
.’ 

 
 

 
14

 
P

ar
a 

1.
2 

– 
AW

G
 o

ffi
ce

 h
as

 a
 g

ro
ss

 a
re

a 
of

 5
70

00
ft 

Te
xt

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
15

 
P

ar
a 

2.
1 

– 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

sh
ou

ld
 re

ad
 ‘p

la
nn

in
g 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
’ a

t t
hi

s 
st

ag
e 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 p

ar
a 

6.
5 

A
gr

ee
d.

 T
ex

t r
el

oc
at

ed
 

1 

 
 

 
16

 
P

ar
a 

2.
3 

– 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 T
P

O
 o

n 
th

e 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

la
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 e

xp
la

in
ed

. 
Te

xt
 a

dd
ed

: ‘
th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 b
ui

lt 
fo

rm
 m

us
t 

re
sp

on
d 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y 

to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
tre

e 
is

 
no

t a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
-

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.’

  

1 

 
 

 
17

 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 tr

ee
s 

co
ul

d 
be

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
fo

r c
la

rit
y.

 
A

ls
o,

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 B
S

 5
83

7 
is

 n
ee

de
d.

  
A

gr
ee

d.
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 
ad

de
d.

 
1 

 
 

 
18

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
5 

ha
s 

no
 k

ey
 fo

r t
he

 g
re

en
-c

irc
le

d 
do

ts
. 

D
ia

gr
am

 re
-d

ra
fte

d 
an

d 
ke

y 
ad

de
d.

 
1 

 
 

 
19

 
P

ar
a 

3.
1 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

ar
ea

 b
eh

in
d 

A
m

bu
ry

 H
ou

se
 

as
 ‘p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 im

po
rta

nt
’ a

lth
ou

gh
 th

is
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

fe
ed

 in
to

 la
te

r p
ro

po
sa

ls
. W

ha
t i

s 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e?

 

A
m

en
d 

te
xt

 to
 

‘p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
te

re
st

in
g’

 
1 

 
 

 
20

 
P

ar
a 

3.
2 

- F
ig

ur
e 

gr
ou

nd
. T

he
 s

ite
 d

oe
s 

no
t o

nl
y 

re
la

te
 to

 th
e 

re
ar

 o
f H

ig
h 

S
tre

et
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 b
ut

 a
ls

o 
to

 la
rg

er
 s

ite
s 

to
 th

e 
no

rth
. A

 w
id

er
 c

on
te

xt
 p

la
n 

w
ou

ld
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

ex
pl

ai
ni

ng
 th

is
. 

Fi
gu

re
 g

ro
un

d 
pl

an
 

ex
te

nd
ed

 to
 h

el
p 

cl
ar

ify
 

th
is

 is
su

e 

1 

 
 

 
21

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
0 

su
gg

es
ts

 th
at

 h
is

to
ric

 p
lo

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
ca

rri
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
Th

is
 is

 n
ot

 th
e 

m
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

ay
 o

f a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 a

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 

Th
is

 is
 n

ot
 th

e 
in

te
nt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
gr

ap
hi

c.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

to
 a

vo
id

 c
on

fu
si

on
, t

he
 

di
ag

ra
m

 w
ill 

be
 a

m
en

de
d 

1 

107



an
d 

th
e 

ke
y 

cl
ar

ifi
ed

 
 

 
 

22
 

P
ar

a 
3.

5 
– 

th
e 

fig
ur

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
8,

 n
ot

 6
. 

Te
xt

 c
or

re
ct

ed
 

1 
 

 
 

23
 

P
ar

a 
3.

5 
– 

co
lo

ur
 re

nd
iti

on
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pu
bl

ic
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
s 

is
 n

ot
 c

le
ar

. 
D

ia
gr

am
 a

m
en

de
d 

1 

 
 

 
24

 
S

ec
on

d 
st

an
za

 o
f p

ar
a 

3.
6 

sh
ou

ld
 c

la
rif

y 
th

at
 th

e 
A

W
G

 li
es

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

E
nv

 A
ge

nc
y 

flo
od

 z
on

e.
 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
: ‘

Th
e 

la
nd

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
ar

ea
 li

es
 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

A
ge

nc
y 

flo
od

 z
on

e.
’ 

1 

 
 

 
25

 
P

ar
a 

4.
3 

– 
‘c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d’

. 
P

ar
ki

ng
 ra

tio
na

lis
at

io
n 

is
 n

ot
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 s

ite
.  

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
: ‘

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 fu
tu

re
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
’ 

1 

 
 

 
26

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
2 

– 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

po
se

d 
sp

ac
es

 s
ee

m
s 

to
 

re
ly

 o
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

A
W

G
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g.
 T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

ily
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 b
ui

lt 
fo

rm
. 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 M
at

ur
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

is
 a

 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l c
on

tri
bu

to
r 

to
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f t
hi

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

to
w

n.
 It

 
sh

ou
ld

 th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 a
 

st
ar

tin
g 

po
in

t f
or

 la
yo

ut
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

he
re

 tr
ee

s 
ar

e 
of

 m
er

it 
an

d 
he

al
th

y,
 

an
d 

do
 n

ot
 re

st
ric

t 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

m
or

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
bu

ilt
 fo

rm
. 

3 

 
 

 
27

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
2 

– 
fu

rth
er

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

es
e 

sp
ac

es
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
. 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 to

 e
xp

la
in

 
ra

tio
na

le
 fo

r e
ac

h 
pr

op
os

ed
 s

pa
ce

 –
 s

ee
 

an
ne

x 
2 

1 

 
 

 
28

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
2 

– 
ex

te
nt

 o
f c

en
tra

l s
pa

ce
 a

pp
ea

rs
 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
an

d 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r s

ite
 

co
ve

ra
ge

 a
nd

 v
ia

bi
lit

y.
 T

hi
s 

re
qu

ire
s 

cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n.

 

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

ar
ea

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, d

ia
gr

am
 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
lte

re
d 

to
 

re
du

ce
 c

en
tra

l s
pa

ce
 

1 

 
 

 
29

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
8 

– 
zo

ne
 E

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
th

at
 th

e 
sp

ac
e 

ru
ns

 
fro

m
 th

e 
no

rth
 to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
bo

un
da

rie
s.

 T
oo

 la
rg

e.
 

A
gr

ee
d.

 D
ia

gr
am

 a
lte

re
d 

to
 m

or
e 

cl
ea

rly
 id

en
tif

y 
1 

108



co
ur

ty
ar

d 
sp

ac
e 

 
 

 
30

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
2 

– 
su

gg
es

t t
ha

t f
oc

us
 o

f p
ub

ic
 s

pa
ce

 is
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 S

t G
er

m
ai

n 
W

al
k 

in
st

ea
d 

of
 

ce
nt

ra
lly

. 

N
ot

 a
gr

ee
d.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 

tw
o 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

he
re

, 
bo

th
 o

f w
hi

ch
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ev

ol
ve

 

3 

 
 

 
31

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
4 

– 
qu

es
tio

n 
ne

ce
ss

ity
 o

f ‘
po

si
tiv

e 
fro

nt
ag

e’
 a

lo
ng

 A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
la

ne
. T

hi
s 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 

re
d 

lin
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 o

r r
e-

la
be

lle
d.

 

A
gr

ee
d.

 T
ex

t a
m

en
de

d 
to

 ‘p
os

iti
ve

 e
dg

e 
tre

at
m

en
t’ 

1 

 
 

 
32

 
P

ar
a 

4.
8 

– 
B

1 
of

fic
e 

an
d 

liv
e-

w
or

k 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
vi

ab
le

 in
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n,
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

de
m

an
d.

 

It 
is

 n
ot

 c
er

ta
in

 th
at

 th
is

 
is

 th
e 

ca
se

, t
he

re
fo

re
 th

e 
la

nd
 u

se
 p

ro
po

sa
l s

ta
nd

s 

3 

 
 

 
33

 
P

ar
a 

4.
8 

– 
id

en
tif

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 s

m
al

l s
ca

le
 A

3 
or

 
po

ss
ib

ly
 re

ta
il 

A
1 

cl
os

e 
to

 th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 c
or

ne
r o

f 
th

e 
si

te
. T

he
se

 u
se

s 
w

ou
ld

 a
ni

m
at

e 
fro

nt
ag

es
 a

nd
 

dr
aw

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pa
rk

. 

A
gr

ee
d.

 R
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 A
3 

or
 A

1 
ad

de
d 

1 

 
 

 
34

 
P

ar
a 

5 
– 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 u

nh
el

pf
ul

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

es
ig

n 
op

tio
ns

 in
 a

 U
D

F 
as

 th
ey

 m
ay

 re
st

ric
t s

ol
ut

io
ns

. I
f 

th
es

e 
ar

e 
to

 re
m

ai
n 

th
en

 th
ei

r s
ta

tu
s 

as
 il

lu
st

ra
tiv

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

cl
ar

ifi
ed

. 

G
ra

ph
ic

s 
w

hi
ch

 
en

ca
ps

ul
at

e 
th

e 
fo

re
go

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 a

re
 

he
lp

fu
l t

o 
al

l p
ar

tie
s 

in
 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 
Th

ey
 d

o 
no

t r
es

tri
ct

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

. 
Te

xt
 a

dd
ed

 to
 c

la
rif

y 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

st
at

us
. S

ee
 

an
ne

x 
2.

 

1 

 
 

 
35

 
P

ar
a 

7 
– 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
ll 

or
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

pp
ro

ac
h,

 a
nd

 th
at

 a
ny

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
ly

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

lly
 v

ia
bl

e.
 

A
gr

ee
d.

 T
ex

t a
dd

ed
. S

ee
 

an
ne

x 
2.

 
1 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t D
iv

is
io

n 
4 

H
D

C
 

36
 

S
t G

er
m

ai
n 

St
re

et
 c

ar
 p

ar
k 

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 fi
gu

re
 1

 
bu

t n
ot

 th
er

ea
fte

r. 
It 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
sh

ow
n 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

A
gr

ee
d.

 C
ar

 p
ar

k 
in

cl
ud

ed
 m

or
e 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
in

 fi
gu

re
s 

1 

 
 

 
37

 
S

ho
ul

d 
fig

ur
e 

1 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
P

ro
ba

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 
bu

ild
in

g 
its

el
f?

 
N

o.
 T

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 th
e 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
2 

109



 
 

 
38

 
Fi

gu
re

 2
 –

 is
 th

e 
w

al
l t

o 
th

e 
ca

r p
ar

k 
lis

te
d?

 
N

o 
bu

t t
he

 w
al

l a
lo

ng
 th

e 
no

rth
 s

id
e 

of
 A

m
bu

ry
 

R
oa

d 
is

 li
st

ed
. G

ra
ph

ic
 

ad
de

d 

1 

 
 

 
39

 
Fi

gu
re

 4
 c

ap
tio

n 
 –

 c
or

re
ct

 s
pe

llin
g 

co
rr

ec
te

d 
1 

 
 

 
40

 
P

ar
a 

3.
6 

flo
od

 ri
sk

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
: ‘

a 
flo

od
 ri

sk
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
w

ith
 a

ny
 fu

tu
re

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

. 

1 

 
 

 
41

 
Fi

gu
re

 5
 –

 a
m

en
d 

ca
pt

io
n 

fro
m

 F
ig

ur
e 

7 
am

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
42

 
Fi

gu
re

 6
 –

 a
dd

 c
ar

 p
ar

k 
us

e 
ad

de
d 

1 
 

 
 

43
 

Fi
gu

re
 1

0 
– 

in
cl

ud
e 

lin
ks

 to
 ri

ng
 ro

ad
/A

m
bu

ry
 R

oa
d 

(n
or

th
)/H

ig
h 

S
tre

et
 (n

or
th

 w
es

t) 
Li

nk
s 

ad
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
44

 
1.

1 
ad

d 
te

xt
 ‘d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
se

ek
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

, t
ow

n 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
nd

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
/e

du
ca

tio
na

l/r
ec

re
at

io
na

l a
re

as
 o

f 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 to
 m

ee
t b

ro
ad

er
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 
in

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
tra

te
gy

 (M
TT

S
) ‘

 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 a

s 
st

at
ed

 
1 

 
 

 
41

 
2.

1 
am

en
d 

w
or

di
ng

 to
 re

ad
 ’i

t i
s 

hi
gh

ly
 li

ke
ly

 th
at

 a
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 w
ill 

be
 re

qu
ire

d;
 w

hi
ls

t t
ra

ffi
c 

im
pa

ct
 is

 o
f c

ou
rs

e 
a 

m
at

er
ia

l c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

w
ill 

al
w

ay
s 

be
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

in
 th

is
 c

on
te

xt
, t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

in
 g

en
er

al
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

tra
ve

l b
y 

ca
r. 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 a

s 
st

at
ed

 
1 

 
 

 
42

 
3.

3 
ad

d 
te

xt
 ‘p

er
ce

pt
ua

l b
ar

rie
r b

et
w

ee
n 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

, p
ar

k 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rth
 s

id
e 

of
 th

e 
rin

g 
ro

ad
.’ 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 a

s 
st

at
ed

 
1 

 
 

 
43

 
3.

3 
G

ra
m

m
ar

 S
ch

oo
l W

al
k 

ha
s 

no
 le

ga
l 

de
si

gn
at

io
n 

as
 a

 c
yc

le
w

ay
 a

nd
 m

us
t b

e 
up

gr
ad

ed
 

if 
it 

is
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

su
ch

 

N
ot

ed
 

2 

 
 

 
44

 
M

TT
P

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
S

ou
th

 
N

ot
ed

 
2 

110



fo
r c

yc
le

 u
se

. 
 

 
 

45
 

3.
4 

th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

m
ov

em
en

t 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

to
 c

at
er

 fo
r a

 d
iff

er
en

t f
or

m
s 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill 
ha

ve
 to

 b
e 

te
st

ed
 in

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f a

 
M

ul
ti 

M
od

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 s

co
pe

d 
by

 
C

C
C

. 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 M
M

TA
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 4

.4
 

1 

 
 

 
46

 
3.

4 
pa

rts
 o

f A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
S

ou
th

 c
lo

se
 to

 H
ig

h 
S

tre
et

 a
re

 to
o 

na
rr

ow
 fo

r c
yc

le
 u

se
 

P
oi

nt
 m

ad
e 

in
 3

.4
 

3 

 
 

 
47

 
3.

4 
ad

d 
te

xt
 ‘n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ro
ad

/p
ed

es
tri

an
 a

nd
 

cy
cl

e 
ne

tw
or

ks
’. 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 

1 

 
 

 
48

 
4.

3 
to

o 
ea

rly
 to

 s
pe

cu
la

te
 o

n 
th

e 
fo

rm
 a

nd
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 a
cc

es
se

s 
in

to
 th

e 
si

te
. T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 

by
 e

ve
nt

ua
l b

ui
lt 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 h
ig

hw
ay

 s
tu

di
es

. 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 –

 s
ee

 a
nn

ex
 

2 
1 

 
 

 
49

 
Is

 th
er

e 
an

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l a

cc
es

s 
in

to
 th

e 
si

te
 fr

om
 S

t 
G

er
m

ai
n 

S
tre

et
? 

N
ot

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 d
ue

 to
 

co
nf

lic
t w

ith
 p

ed
es

tri
an

s 
 

3 

 
 

 
50

 
4.

4 
A

m
bu

ry
 R

oa
d 

S
ou

th
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 e
xa

m
in

ed
 fo

r 
po

si
tiv

e 
w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g 
lin

ks
 

N
ot

ed
 

2 

 
 

 
51

 
6.

3 
– 

ad
d 

‘th
e 

fo
rm

/a
de

qu
ac

y 
of

 th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 
la

yo
ut

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 th
e 

M
M

TA
’ 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 

1 

 
 

 
52

 
6.

5 
ch

an
ge

 M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 to
 M

ar
ke

t T
ow

n 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

tra
te

gy
’ 

Te
xt

 a
m

en
de

d 
1 

 
 

 
53

 
6.

6–
 c

la
rif

y 
th

at
 ‘a

 m
ul

ti-
m

od
al

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
o 

C
C

C
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 s
co

pe
d 

w
ith

 
C

C
C

 o
ffi

ce
rs

’ w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 a

s 
st

at
ed

 
1 

 
 

 
54

 
6.

6 
– 

gr
ee

n 
tra

ve
l p

la
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

M
M

TA
 b

ul
le

t p
oi

nt
.  

Te
xt

 re
lo

ca
te

d 
1 

E
m

m
a 

Th
or

nt
on

 
5 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 

M
an

ag
er

 
55

 
S

up
po

rt 
fo

r d
es

ig
n 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
no

te
d 

3 

 
 

 
56

 
Im

po
rta

nt
 th

at
 th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 im

pr
ov

es
 v

is
ua

l a
nd

 
ph

ys
ic

al
 li

nk
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
is

 a
re

a 
an

d 
th

e 
to

w
n 

an
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ne

w
 b

ui
ld

 is
 in

 s
ym

pa
th

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
to

w
n 

pa
rk

. 

no
te

d 
3 

M
r. 

P
. B

en
st

ea
d 

6 
9 

P
rio

ry
 G

ar
de

ns
, 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 

57
 

M
at

ur
e 

tre
es

 m
us

t b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

 to
 e

nh
an

ce
 lo

ca
l 

ar
ea

 
ag

re
ed

 
3 

111



 
 

 
58

 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t b
ui

ld
in

gs
 c

om
pl

em
en

t t
he

 
hi

st
or

ic
 n

at
ur

e 
an

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f t
he

 to
w

n 
ag

re
ed

 
3 

C
ou

nt
y 

A
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

st
 

7 
B

ox
 E

LH
11

08
 S

hi
re

ha
ll 

59
 

S
ite

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 a
n 

ar
ea

 o
f h

ig
h 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

no
te

d 
3 

 
 

 
60

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

cc
om

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f a

n 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

ic
al

 fi
el

ds
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
Te

xt
 a

dd
ed

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

112



A
N

N
EX

 2
 

 
A

N
G

LI
A

N
 H

O
U

SE
, H

U
N

TI
N

G
D

O
N

 U
R

B
A

N
 D

ES
IG

N
 F

R
A

M
EW

O
R

K
  

R
ES

PO
N

SE
S 

  C
om

m
en

t N
o.

 2
7 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

 
‘F

ou
r p

ot
en

tia
l s

pa
ce

s 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 fi

gu
re

 1
2,

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
 

1)
 

a 
ci

vi
c 

sq
ua

re
, a

s 
en

vi
sa

ge
d 

by
 th

e 
C

iv
ic

 T
ru

st
 in

 th
ei

r V
is

io
n 

do
cu

m
en

t. 
 

2)
 

a 
lo

ng
itu

di
na

l s
pa

ce
 a

lo
ng

 G
ra

m
m

ar
 S

ch
oo

l W
al

k,
 fo

cu
ss

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
m

at
ur

e 
tre

es
. 

3)
 

a 
ce

nt
ra

l c
ou

rty
ar

d 
lin

ke
d 

to
 th

e 
pa

rk
, t

o 
en

su
re

 a
 b

re
ak

 in
 th

e 
bu

ilt
 fo

rm
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

pa
rk

 e
dg

e,
 a

llo
w

in
g 

su
nl

ig
ht

 to
 

pe
rm

ea
te

. T
he

 c
ou

rty
ar

d 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

cr
ea

te
 a

 fo
ca

l s
pa

ce
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. 

4)
 

a 
lo

ng
itu

di
na

l s
pa

ce
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 s
of

t e
dg

e 
to

 th
e 

pa
rk

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

e 
he

al
th

 o
f p

ar
k 

tre
es

 a
lo

ng
 th

is
 b

ou
nd

ar
y.

’ 
 C

om
m

en
t N

o.
 3

4 
Te

xt
 a

dd
ed

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
  

‘T
he

se
 d

ia
gr

am
s 

ar
e 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
on

ly
; t

he
y 

do
 n

ot
 p

re
sc

rib
e 

a 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t a
nd

 a
re

 w
ith

ou
t p

re
ju

di
ce

 to
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

do
cu

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n.
’ 

  C
om

m
en

t N
o.

 3
5 

Te
xt

 a
dd

ed
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

 
‘A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

pr
om

ot
es

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
tra

te
gy

 fo
r t

he
 a

re
a,

 it
 d

oe
s 

no
t p

re
cl

ud
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
th

at
 c

on
fo

rm
 w

ith
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
rin

ci
pl

es
 fr

om
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

g 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

es
 th

at
 fu

tu
re

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 m

us
t b

e 
bo

th
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
ly

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

lly
 v

ia
bl

e.
’ 

 
C

om
m

en
t N

o.
 4

8 
Te

xt
 a

dd
ed

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 o
f f

irs
t s

ta
nz

a 
at

 4
.3

: 
  

‘T
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
A

W
G

 o
ffi

ce
 is

 s
er

ve
d 

by
 a

 o
ne

-w
ay

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ith

 a
cc

es
s 

fro
m

 A
m

bu
ry

 R
oa

d 
S

ou
th

 a
nd

 e
xi

t 
in

to
 t

he
 la

ne
 

be
hi

nd
 H

ig
h 

S
tre

et
. A

lth
ou

gh
 th

es
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 m
ay

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 a
cc

es
s 

in
to

 th
e 

si
te

, d
ec

is
io

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
fo

rm
 a

nd
 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

cc
es

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

a 
M

ul
ti-

M
od

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r c

re
at

in
g 

po
si

tiv
e 

bu
ilt

 fo
rm

.’ 

113



114

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

      
 
CABINET      17th March 2005 
 
 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
Biological Records Centre 

(Report by Head of Planning Services) 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for the Director of Operational 

Services to sign a Memorandum of Understanding setting out the management 
arrangements for the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Biological Records Centre. 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Biodiversity Steering Group came into being 

in 1997. The steering group comprises a partnership of key stakeholder 
organisations and HDC is an active member. The local Biodiversity Action Plans 
(BAP) were subsequently produced and launched in 2000 to focus attention on local 
habitats and species requiring particular actions to ensure their conservation and 
further enhancement. This represented the local delivery of a national commitment 
to biodiversity, stemming from the Earth Summit in Rio in 1992.  

 
2.2 Huntingdonshire District Council has been an active partner in the BAP process 

since its inception. The BAPs exist to safeguard and promote the county’s wildlife, 
and to encourage local people to become involved in the process. 

 
2.3 The Steering Group identified the establishment of an effective and independent 

Biological Records Centre (BRC) as an essential requirement of the BAP process. 
There is a need to know where wildlife is, if it can be protected or enhanced, and 
how people can fully appreciate the biodiversity that surrounds them. 

 
2.4 Many counties have had BRCs since the 1970s.  Cambridgeshire is currently a 

serious gap in the network. The National Biodiversity Network (NBN) is a major 
initiative promoted by a consortium of organisations including English Nature, the 
Environment Agency and the Natural Environment Research Council, with funding 
from DEFRA. The NBN seeks to establish a comprehensive network of Local 
Record Centres across the UK. 

 
2.5 A number of benefits will arise from setting up the BRC, principally these are: 

•  Giving the natural environment a similar factual basis to the built environment. 

•  Creation of a single reliable and independent source of the best and most up-to-
date information for planning and conservation.  The centre could be used to get 
information to help determine planning applications, for example. 

•  Facilitating rapid, soundly based, sustainable decision making in relation to 
biodiversity, with a consensus on facts. 

•  Improved access to the natural heritage and enhanced understanding of the 
district/county and its wildlife. 

•  Creating a mechanism for the targeting of scarce resources 

Agenda Item 10

115



 2

2.6 The major source of funding for the BRC will be a £224,000 grant which has been 
offered towards the initial three year project by the Heritage Lottery Fund.  As part of 
the bid for this grant the Biodiversity Partnership produced a business plan which 
describes how the BRC will operate and deliver the following: 

•  The operational set-up of the Centre, which will necessitate the bringing 
together of a wide range of data on local wildlife. 

•  The provision of a quick and efficient system for the collection of new 
information from volunteers and professional bodies alike.  

•  The training of volunteers in biological recording and data capture. 

•  The process of accessing information by user organisations and the public. 

•  The interpretation of data for educational uses (thereby linking local schools and 
students to the biodiversity of Cambridgeshire). 

•  The encouragement of wider participation in the recording of local wildlife. 
 
2.7 Although the BRC will be an independent company, it is proposed to be run and be 

managed by a partnership of the Cambridgeshire Local Authorities, English Nature, 
the Environment Agency and a variety of voluntary organisations.  The management 
arrangements are being established through a Memorandum of Understanding 
(attached as Appendix 1).  The BRC is to be based in the Wildlife Trust offices in 
Cambourne. 

 
2.8 The aim is that the BRC will maintain itself after an initial three year set-up period 

through the following means: 

a) Keeping annual running costs to a minimum. 

b) Establishment of Service Level Agreements with the partners who will be the 
primary users of Information. 

c) Income from pay-as-you-use services to developers, utilities and other 
commercial users. 

d) Funding for specific surveys and projects (e.g. water vole survey, butterfly 
atlas, county flora). 

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 A funding contribution for the capital set-up costs has been sought from all the 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Biodiversity Partners to provide match funding 
for the successful lottery bid. 

 
3.2 Huntingdonshire District Council’s initial capital contribution towards the BRC will be 

£14,480 for the set up period.  This will comprise three annual grant contributions of: 
£5,604 (for 2004-5), £4,468 (05-06) and £4,408 (06-07). These sums are below the 
Council’s de minimis level for capital expenditure and so can be funded from the 
revenue Planning Delivery Grant (therefore having no impact on the Council’s 
budget). 

 
3.3 The following table shows the financial contributions of the other Cambridgeshire 

Authorities (all of whom are already signed up to the BRC). Half of the contribution 
required from the local authorities is being met by the County Council and 
Peterborough City Council; the residual is being met by district council contributions, 
the level of which is related to the population of each authority. 

116



 3

 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

 % £ £ £ 

Cambridge City Council 10 3,996 3,186 3,144 

East Cambridgeshire DC 6 2,374 1,893 1,868 

Fenland DC 7 2,904 2,316 2,284 

Huntingdonshire DC 14 5,604 4,468 4,408 

South Cambridgeshire DC 12 4,621 3,684 3,635 

Peterborough City Council 13 5,007 3,992 3,938 

Cambs. County Council 37 14,493 11,555 11,400 

Total 100 39,000 31,095 30,678 

 
 
3.4 After the initial three year set up period it is anticipated that Huntingdonshire District 

Council will enter into a Service Level Agreement with the centre.  The cost of this 
will be dependent on the level of service required and met from the existing planning 
budget. This will be considered further once the new centre is up and running. 

 
 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 Cabinet is recommended to: 

 (a) Support the establishment of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Biological 
Records Centre and approve the use of funds from the Planning Delivery 
Grant as detailed in paragraph 3.2 of this report; 

 (b) Authorise the Director of Operational Services to sign a Memorandum of 
Understanding setting out the management arrangements for the Records 
Centre. 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Biological Records Centre Business Plan (2001) 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER - enquiries about this report to Julia Wilkinson, Planning Officer, on 
01480 388432. 
 

117



118

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
(PLANNING & FINANCE) 
 
CABINET 

8 MARCH 2005

17 MARCH 2005

 
WASTE PFI UPDATE AND RECYCLING BUDGET 

(Report by Head of Environment & Transport) 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This reports outlines the most recent developments in Cambridgeshire 

County Council’s application for Private Finance Initiative (PFI) credits to 
support future waste disposal arrangements in the county. 

 
1.2 The report on the Budget and Medium Term Plan 2005-2010 considered by 

the Cabinet at their meeting on 3 February 2005 included reference to a 
variation which had a arisen because of changes in gate fees and recycling 
credits.  Further details of the £120k shortfall is given in this report. 

 
2. WASTE PFI 
 
2.1 Cabinet will be aware from previous reports that CCC need to invest in 

alternative waste treatment facilities if they are to avoid significant financial 
penalties for depositing too much waste in landfill from 2010.  
Notwithstanding the substantial improvement this council and other waste 
collection authorities in the county have made in their recycling 
performance, and hence a reduction in waste for final disposal, the County 
Council will need to spend some £80+ millions on treatment facilities. 

 
2.2 If the County Council do not make that investment the scale of the financial 

burden that will fall on Cambridgeshire Council Tax payers can be gauged 
by figures previously reported to Cabinet on 13 January 2005.  These 
confirmed that the collection systems now in use will ensure that around 
50% of the waste collected by the District Council will be recycled from 
2005/06 onwards.  Even so the waste for final disposal will still exceed the 
landfill targets in 2010 and the penalty would amount to £1.4 million per 
annum, equivalent to £21 for every household in Huntingdonshire, if 
alternative treatment facilities are not provided.  This would be replicated 
across the county. 

 
2.3 The County Council have now been advised by DEFRA that they have 

secured PFI credits amounting to £35 million.  This has allowed them to 
initiate the procurement process for the waste treatment facilities.   Key 
milestones in the procurement programme are as follows – 

 
• February 2005 – advertise for bidders 
• June 2005 – agree list of bidders 
• December 2005 – bids returned 
• August 2006 – preferred bidder confirmed 
• December 2006 – final business case submitted to DEFRA 
• March 2007 – Treasury approval and contract signed. 

 

Agenda Item 11

119



2.4 Following the award of the contract the successful bidder will need to secure 
planning permissions, design, construct and commission the treatment 
facilities before they can be brought into use.  It is anticipated that the 
programme allows the minimum time required to complete the procurement 
and implementation before the first nationally imposed targets come into 
force in 2010. 

 
2.5 The outline business case, essentially the bidding document for the PFI 

credits, evaluated a range of treatment processes and concluded that 
energy from waste represented the front runner using DEFRA’s evaluation 
model.  However, bidders can advance their own preferred approaches and 
these will be evaluated through the procurement process.  The preferred 
bidder’s proposal will form the basis of the final business case submission to 
secure the release of the PFI credits. 

 
2.6 In order to reduce contractual risk and associated costs the County Council 

are now keen to start the process of negotiating a ‘partnering agreement’ 
with each of the waste collection authorities which will detail the types and 
manner of delivery of waste to be processed by the treatment facilities.  The 
District Council, for example, currently collects three waste streams (dry 
recyclable, garden waste and residual waste) and achieves a high level of 
recycling.  In sizing the future treatment facilities the operator will want some 
certainty that this will continue and that existing levels of performance will be 
maintained, notwithstanding growth in the number of properties served. 

 
2.7 The ‘partnering agreement’ will build on the Statement of Understanding 

previously signed by the councils.  A key aspect of this agreement also will 
be the future treatment of recycling credits which currently provides financial 
support to the District Council’s expenditure on recycling services.  
Negotiations already have begun between the waste collection authorities 
and the County Council on this matter, prompted by government proposals 
to review the current national arrangement. 

 
2.8 Taking forward the ‘partnering agreement’ and contributing to the selection 

of the bidder for the PFI contract will require the following inputs from the 
District Council either directly or via our representation on the 
Cambridgeshire Councils Association’s Waste Forum (CCAWF) – 

 
• March 2005 – representation at bidders’ conference 
• June 2005 – CCAWF confirm agreement to short list of bidders  
• July 2005 – Cabinet agree heads of terms for partnering agreement 
• February 2007 – Cabinet authorise signature of ‘partnering agreement’ 

 
2.9 The joint authorities’ service specific officer groups (i.e. technical, legal and 

financial) and the District Council’s internal multi-disciplinary officer group 
will support the process.  Appropriate update reports will be submitted to 
Members at key milestones in the process. 

 
2.10 Under the government’s new Waste Performance and Efficiency Grant the 

District Council will receive £52k in 2005/06.  It is proposed that this revenue 
funding is used, as necessary, to support the negotiations and to retain 
independent advice to ensure that the District Council secures the most 
advantageous ‘partnering agreement’ for local Council Tax payers.  This 
funding will replace the £50k of MTP capital funding provided for Joint 

120



Waste Procurement (MTP 279/B) currently available in 2004/05, which it is 
now proposed be transferred to scheme MTP 602, to contribute to the cost 
of optional wheeled bins. 

 
3. RECYCLING BUDGET 
 
3.1 Recycling services have undergone significant improvement since 2002/03.  

Individual changes have been reported to and authorised by Cabinet as 
appropriate and these have included – 

 
• the harmonisation of dry recycling collections across the district; 
• expansion of dry recycling collections to all households; 
• introduction of fortnightly wheeled bin garden waste collection 

service; and  
• introduction of wheeled bins to replace green boxes at the 

householders discretion. 
 
3.2 Concurrently with these service improvements we have had two externally 

imposed changes in the arrangements for the disposal of the collected 
materials.  Peterborough City Council withdrew access to their materials 
recycling facility (MRF) requiring a temporary arrangement with 
Northampton Borough Council’s MRF.  This has now been replaced by a 
five-year contract with a Milton Keynes based commercial MRF following a 
competitive tendering exercise.  This has resulted in a small reduction in 
gate fee compared with the fee charged by Peterborough in 2003/04. 

 
3.3 The initial arrangement with Marshalls at Ellington for the windrow (open air) 

composting of garden waste was superseded by a new contract, tendered 
by the County Council, for an Animal By Products Regulation compliant in-
vessel composting process.  This has the advantage of allowing kitchen 
waste to be collected with garden waste, but resulted in the gate fee more 
than doubling.  The County Council have increased the recycling credit to 
match the gate fee (so that there is a net zero cost to the District Council) 
but estimates prepared in 2003/04 based on the charges/credits at that time 
forecast a net income of around £15 per tonne. 

 
3.5 A further consequence of the new refuse and recycling services has been a 

marked increase (a forecast increase of 50% from 2003/04 to 2005/06) in 
the weight of material passing through the District Council’s mini-recycling 
centres.  As a consequence Parish Councils and other voluntary sector 
organisations providing sites are forecast to receive £49k from the District 
Council in 2005/06, more than double the 2003/04 figure.  In the 
circumstances Cabinet may wish to consider capping these payments, 
possibly to the 2003/04 levels. 

 
3.6 It is only now that the relationship between the service changes and the 

external influences are stabilising that the full impact is becoming obvious.  It 
is now clear that the estimated net surplus on this area of the recycling 
budget, originally estimated for 2005/06 at £359k, now is forecast to be only 
£240k.  This gives rise to the £120k shortfall referred to in the report 
considered by Cabinet, at their meeting on 3 February 2005, on the Budget 
and Medium Term Plan 2005-2010. 

 

121



3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1 Cabinet are recommended to – 
 

(a) note the award of £35 million in PFI credits and the procurement 
programme contained in paragraph 2.3 of this report;  

(b) note that further reports will be submitted to Cabinet in accordance 
with the programme at paragraph 2.8; 

(c) approve the changes to the Medium Term Plan detailed in paragraph 
2.10;  

(d) consider capping the payments (referred to in paragraph 3.5) to Parish 
Councils and voluntary organisations providing site for mini-recycling 
centres; and 

(e) note the further clarification of the previously approved variation to the 
MTP referred to at paragraph 3.6. 

 

 

 
Background papers 
 
The Strategy for Dealing with Municipal Solid waste 2002-2022 in Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough – November 2002 
Letter from DEFRA dated 9 December 2004 – Managing Waste Sustainably:  
DEFRA Announces Help for Councils 
Outline Business Case: Integrated Waste Management Project Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Waste Partnership – December 2004 

 
Contact Officer: Richard Preston, Head of Environment & Transport 
  01480 388340 
 

122



 

 
 

CABINET 17 MARCH 2005
 

CAR PARKING CHARGES 
(Report by the Head of Environment & Transport) 

 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 At their meeting held on 14 October 2004, Cabinet approved the 

implementation of the Car Parking Strategy and the consequential 
amendments to car parking charges and changes in designations of car 
parks.  New Orders under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 now have 
been prepared and advertised in the local press.  Copies of the Orders have 
been sent to the Town Councils of Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives and 
Ramsey and other statutory bodies, as well as being displayed in the car 
parks. 

 
1.2 Two Orders have been created to deal with the car parks.  The first is for the 

paid and controlled car parks in the town centres, and the Order No 2 is for 
the free car parks in the town centres, parks, and leisure centres. 

 
1.3 The Act allows a local authority to decide whether to convene a local inquiry 

before determining an Order.  This report outlines the objections and 
requires the Cabinet to decide whether to determine the Orders without a 
local inquiry. 

 
2. CAR PARKING STARTEGY 
 
2.1 The approved car parking strategy generally is demand-led and contains 

proposals for meeting the forecast demand for parking in the district’s town 
centres which are funded in the approved MTP.  However, the strategy also 
recognises the need to promote alternative modes to the car and includes 
the following objectives:- 

 
• The Council will assist in securing measures to promote integrated, 

sustainable and accessible transport and will direct surplus income 
derived from car parking charges to the furtherance of these objectives. 

• The Council will support the development of car parking provision serving 
villages on transport corridors where these will facilitate use of public 
transport and support the economy of villages. 

 
2.2 When they approved the strategy in October 2004 the Cabinet 

acknowledged that in setting the level of charges for car parking the Council 
has the opportunity to raise further income and the strategy provides for this 
to be hypothecated to promote integrated, sustainable and accessible 
transport.  Cabinet took the view that in setting the level of car parking 
charges they would seek to achieve a surplus of income over expenditure 
that makes a contribution to – 

 

Agenda Item 12

123



 

(a)   the Council’s current commitments in respect of transportation 
projects;  and/or  

(b) accessibility and transportation developments in future years. 
 
3. PROPOSED NEW CHARGES 
 
3.1 The proposed new charges approved by Cabinet in October 2004 are shown 

in the following table together with the existing level of charges – 
 
 

 Current Proposed 

Shoppers’ Car Park  (charges include VAT)  
0 to 60 minutes £0.20 £0.30 
1 to 2 hours £0.50 £0.60  
2 to 3 hours £0.90 £1.50 
3 to 4 hours ----- £2.50 
Maximum Stay 3 hours 4 hours 
Excess / Penalty Charge  £20/£40 £30/£40 

Edge of Centre  (charges include VAT)  
0 to 60 minutes £0.70 £0.25 
1 to 2 hours £0.70 £0.50 
2 to 3 hours £0.70 £0.80 
3 to 4 hours £0.70 £1.00 
over 4 hours £0.70 £1.50 
Pathfinder House/ 
Castle Hill House (Sats Only) 
(Barrier machine) 

£0.70 £0.80 

Maximum Stay 24 hours 23 hours 
Excess /Penalty Charge  £20/£40 £30/£40 
Season Ticket  £110 £175/£250  
Residents’ Permits free £40 

Out of Centre / Village / 
Leisure  

  

Up to 23 Hours No charge No charge 
Maximum Stay 24 hours 23 hours 
Excess / Penalty Charge  £20/£40 £30/£40 

 
3.2 Details of car park designation are included in Annex B. 
 
3.3 The On Street Orders are being progressed by the County Council with an 

implementation of May / June for the existing areas and September for the 
new areas.   

 
4. COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RECEIVED 
 
4.1 As a result of the advertisement of the Orders, representations have been 

received on Order No 1(the charged town centre car parks) from: 
 
  Waitrose PLC  
  St Ives Chamber of Commerce 
  Huntingdon Town Council 
  Huntingdon Town centre Initiative 
  Tindalls Ltd 
  Residents of Huntingdon, Chatteris, St Ives and Lt Paxton 

124



 

 
 These are summarised on the attached Annex A together with Officers’ 

comments on the points raised. 
 
4.2 The main concerns raised are increase in costs of the all day long-term 

parking and the increase in costs for short term parking over 2 hours.  The 
proposed level of charges reflects Cabinet’s wish to provide funding to 
support the transportation policies and schemes that it is pursuing. 

 
4.3 There has also been a request to allow residents parking permits to be valid 

in all other specific Edge of Centre car parks. 
  
4.4 No objections have been received to Order No 2. 
 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The Act enables a local authority to decide whether to convene a local 

inquiry before determining an Order but, dependent upon any further 
representations received prior to the meeting, it is not considered that the 
scale and content of the objections to the first Order are sufficient to warrant 
this course of action.  Order No. 2 received no objections. 

 
5.2 The extension of the use of Resident Permits to other specific Edge of 

Centre car parks should be considered as this gives a better facility to our 
customers.  The restrictions on the issuing of residents permits are as the 
previous Order.  Resident Parking will now also be available in 

 
• Huntingdon– Mill Common and St Germain Minor         
• St Ives – Cattle Market (EoC) 
• St Neots – Priory and TanYard 

 
6. RECOMMENDATION 
 
6.1 Cabinet are recommended to 
 
  (a) determine that a local inquiry to consider the objections received 

be not held; and 
 
  (b) confirm the Orders as advertised with the inclusion of the extra 

car parks for Resident Permits as para. 5.2 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:- 
 
1. ‘Huntingdonshire Car Parking Study; Final Report’ prepared by Transportation 

Planning (International) on behalf of the District Council 

2. Consultation on priorities and budgets 

3. Environment and Transport files. 

4.      The District of Huntingdonshire (Off-street Parking Places) Order 2005 and  
Order No 2. 

 
 
Contact Officer: R Preston, Head of Environment and Transport 
   01480 388340 

125



126



 

 
ANNEX A – OBJECTIONS RECEIVED: 
 
NATURE OF OBJECTION COMMENT 
  
St Ives Chamber of Commerce 
 
(1a)  How can such a large increase 

from 70p to 150p be justified - 
£1-00 per day would be more 
acceptable.  Alternative 
methods of travel must be 
encouraged, but no viable 
alternatives exist for most 
people 

 
 
(1a)  The cost increases were considered as part of the 

customer consultation and the Cabinet felt that in the 
context of its committed expenditure on 
transportation developments, it wished to secure the 
additional revenue income associated with the 
adoption of the parking charges.  The additional 
income comes from the increased charges for 
staying over two hours and will not, therefore, impact 
on the shorter shopping trips that form the vast 
majority of the car park usage 

  
(1b)  If Ramsey has been made free 

this shows that trading is 
difficult in towns and it is 
unjustifiable to pass on 
increase at this time 

(1b) The Council recognises that trading in the towns is 
important and has given more flexibility for short 
term parking in areas which were only long stay. 

 
 

 

Tindalls Ltd 
 
(2a)  Workers in the town will have to 

pay £1.50 per day, which is 
more than double the existing.  
How can this be justified? 

 
 
(2a)   See 1(a) above 

 
 

 

Waitrose Plc 
 
(3a) Do not consider there should 

be a differentiation in cost 
between Shoppers car parks 
and Edge Of Centre car parks 
as they can be close together.  

 
 
(3a)  The Car Parking Strategy has been based on the 

fact that customers have to pay a premium to park 
nearest to the town centre. Good signing will be 
provided to make the situation clear. 

  
(3b) They feel that the Edge of 

Centre car parks should have 
the proposed 3-4 hour banding 
change to 3-5 hours to help 
part time workers. 

(3b) The time bands have been set to allow short term 
parking in the Edge of Centre car parks at a 
reasonable cost, but it is considered that 4-5 hours 
then becomes long term and should be priced 
accordingly. 

  
(3c)  Waitrose agree to keep Sunday 

parking free 
(3c) Charges are made on car parks from Monday to 

Saturday for all year except Christmas Day.  In 
discussions with Waitrose, Sunday charging was 
discussed and they do not wish to see it imposed at 
this time. This is as the Strategy and is not proposed 
at this time. 

127



 

NATURE OF OBJECTION COMMENT 
  
Resident of Lt Paxton 
 
(4a) Considers that the increase of 

the long stay charge from 70p 
to £1-50 is excessive, as it is 
more than double the cost of a 
days parking 

 
 
(4a) See 1a above 

 
 

 

Resident of Huntingdon 
 
(5a) Requests that resident permits 

be available for use in all edge 
of Centre car parks 

 
 
(5a) This had been discussed previously but was not 

included in the Order as advertised.  It is considered 
that this is an appropriate request and that the Order 
be amended to reflect this. Resident Parking will 
also be available in 

• Huntingdon– Mill Common and St Germain 
Minor 

• St Ives – Cattle Market (EoC) 
• St Neots – Priory and TanYard 

 
 

 

Resident of Chatteris 
 
(6a) Why have prices risen by over 

100%.  

 
 
(6a) See 1a above 

 
 

 

Resident of St Ives  
 
(7a) The increases in short term 

parking are considerable and 
long term is exorbitant.  HDC 
already penalise businesses 
with considerable parking 
charges and too few parking 
spaces. 

 
 
7(a) See 1(a) above. 
 Also the Order now allows for short term parking in 

the previous long stay car parks at a rate similar to 
the existing.  Our surveys show that at the present 
time there is sufficient capacity on the average day.  
Extra parking will be provided as part of the Guided 
Bus scheme. 

  
(7b)  People use St Ives to park and 

ride to Cambridge. The costs 
should not be increased until 
the County Council guided bus 
is in place. 

7(b) See 7(a) above 

  
(7c)  Land on Meadow Lane should 

be provided as a free long term 
car park now as there is limited 
parking in the town.  

7(c) See 7(a) above 

  

128



 

NATURE OF OBJECTION COMMENT 
Huntingdon Town Centre Initiative 
 
(8a) Long Stay – an change from 

70p to £1.50 represents an 
increase of 115%. This is a 
substantial increase for those 
working in the town especially 
as Riverside is not sufficient to 
meet demands.  £1.20 for all 
day would be more reasonable. 

 
 
(8a) See 1(a) and 7(a) above. 
  Extra parking is planned as part of the Chequers 

Court development. 

  
8(b) Short stay – an increase of 90p 

to £1.50 is proposed with 4 
hours for £2-50.  This is a 
substantial leap and risks 
alienating shoppers.  It also 
brings the charges the same as 
Peterborough.  £1.20 for 3 
hours and £1.80 for 4 hours 
would be more reasonable. 

(b) The Order now allows for short term parking in the 
previous long stay car parks at a rate similar to the 
existing.   

 The Car Parking Strategy has been based on the 
fact that customers have to pay a premium to park 
nearest to the town centre 

  
Huntingdon Town Council 
 
(9a)  This Council is deeply 

concerned that the market 
towns of Huntingdon, St Ives 
and St Neots will have to 
sustain increases in parking 
charges to subsidise the 
proposal to remove car parking 
charges in Ramsey. 

 
 
(9a) The car parking in Ramsey did not run at a surplus 

due to the costs of the machines and enforcement.  
The charges in the towns have not been increased 
since 1998. 

  
(9b) In noting the District Council’s 

intention to introduce these 
charges to fund transportation 
schemes, members sought 
further clarification on what 
these projects are, where they 
are to be introduced and when 
we can expect these initiatives 
to be delivered. 

. 

(9b) This Council contributes to the Market Towns 
Transport strategies in joint schemes with the 
County Council.  These have included cycleways, 
community transport, new bridges, bus infrastructure 
and shelters, crossings etc. 

 

129



 
ANNEX B:  DESIGNATION OF CAR PARKS 2005 

 
 

 Shoppers’ Car 
Park 
SH 

Edge of Centre 
 

EC 

Out of Centre 
 

OC 

GODMANCHESTER   Bridge Place 

HUNTINGDON 
 
 
 
 
(** Saturday Only) 

Princes Street 
Sainsburys 

St Germain St 
(Disabled) 

Chequers Way 
(Disabled) 
Waitrose 

Trinity Place 

Gt Northern St 
Mill Common 
St Germain 
Street Minor 
Pathfinder 
House **  

Ingram Street 
 

Riverside 

RAMSEY   Mews Close 
New Road 

(not charged) 

ST IVES Cattle Market 
(part) 

Cattle market 
(part) 

Darwoods Pond 
Globe Place 

 

 

ST NEOTS Waitrose 
Brook Street 
Priory Lane 

Priory 
Tan Yard 

Tebbutts Road 
 

Cambridge St 
 Riverside 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

130



 

 

 
NAME OF PARKING PLACES INCLUDED IN ORDER NO 2: 
 
 (a) Church Street, Somersham 

(b) High Street, Earith 
(c) High Street, Warboys 

 (d) Mews Close, Ramsey 
 (e) New Road, Ramsey 
 (f) Bridge Place, Godmanchester 

(g)    Mill Yard, Post Street, Godmanchester 
(h)    Park Lane, Godmanchester 

 (i) Riverside Park, Huntingdon 
(j)    Church Lane, Hartford, Huntingdon 
(k)    Mayfield Road, Huntingdon 
(l)    Sapley Park, Stoney Close, Huntingdon 
(m)    Sapley park, Kings Ripton Rd, Huntingdon 

 (n) Priory Park, St Neots 
(o)    Riverside Park, St Neots 
(p)    Cambridge St, St Neots 

 (q) Coneygeare, St Neots 
(r)     Church Street, Fenstanton 
(s)     Little Paxton Nature Reserve 
(t)     Hinchingbrooke Country Park  
(u)     Diddington Car Park 
(v)     Hill Rise Park, St Ives 
(w)     St Ivo Outdoor Leisure Centre, California Rd, St Ives 
(x)     St Ivo Indoor Leisure Centre, Westwood Rd, St Ives. 
(y)     Ramsey Leisure Centre, Hollow Lane, Ramsey 
(z)     Huntingdon Leisure Centre, St Peters Rd, Huntingdon 
(aa)     Huntingdon Swimming Pool, St Peters Rd, Huntingdon 

 

131



132

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
CABINET 17TH MARCH 2005

 
MEMBERS’ ADVISORY GROUP FOR PUBLIC CONVENIENCES 

(Report of the Advisory Group) 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Advisory Group was re-constituted by the Cabinet at its meeting on 4th 

November 2004 to consider “the present position in relation to the Council’s 
public conveniences, their future maintenance and the revised financial 
implications thereof” (Minute No. 82 refers). 

 
1.2 A meeting of the Advisory Group took place on 2nd February 2005 and 

Councillors I C Bates, Mrs J Chandler, R L Clarke and N J Guyatt were 
present. 

 
1.3 Councillor I C Bates was elected Chairman and Councillor Mrs J Chandler, 

Vice-Chairman of the Advisory Group for the remainder of the Municipal 
Year. 

 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 To assist their deliberations, the Advisory Group considered a report by the 

Head of Environment and Transport which had drawn together recent 
decisions and relevant issues in respect of the provision of public 
conveniences in the District.  The Advisory Group also received a briefing 
note of existing Town Centre public conveniences and a further copy of the 
original report considered by the Cabinet on 4th November 2004. 

 
2.2 Members also had visited the public conveniences throughout the District 

prior to the meeting.  
 
3. PRINCIPLES 
 
3.1 To progress their debate, the Advisory Group acknowledged that it was 

essential to establish whether the District Council as an authority was 
committed to the provision and retention of public conveniences in town 
centre locations given that there was no statutory duty to provide such a 
service. 

 
3.2 Following discussion and having made reference to the contribution made 

by the service to the local economy and the wellbeing of local people and 
visitors, the need to provide best value for the council tax payer in terms of 
service standards and cost and the District Council’s aspirations for 
encouraging increased tourism, the Advisory Group – 

 
 RECOMMENDED 
 
  that the District Council’s commitment to the provision of public 

conveniences in Town Centres be continued. 
 

Agenda Item 13

133



  (In accordance with paragraph 14.5 of the Council Procedure 
Rules, Councillor R L Clarke requested that his decision to 
dissent from support of this principle be recorded in the report of 
the meeting). 

 
4. EVALUATION OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCES IN THE TOWNS 
 
4.1 With the benefit of their recent visits, the Advisory Group considered 

standards of provision in each of the individual towns vis-à-vis the location of 
facilities and their general condition. 

 
4.2 Tebbutts Road, Riverside Park and South Street, St. Neots 
 
 The Advisory Group were unanimously of the view that the facilities at South 

Street, St. Neots were in poor condition, lacked baby changing facilities, 
would require significant investment to upgrade to an acceptable standard 
and were now inappropriately located having regard to the improved 
character of South Street.  As an alternative, the Advisory Group discussed 
the possibility of public use of the facilities at the Priory Centre in the short-
term and alternative provision, perhaps as part of the redevelopment east of 
the railway line in the long term.  In that light the Head of Environment and 
Transport was requested to – 

 
♦ seek to dispose of the facilities at South Street at the earliest 

opportunity; 
♦ open preliminary discussions with St. Neots Town Council to 

achieve agreement to public use of the Priory Centre facilities 
using in negotiations, if necessary, the funding currently available 
for maintenance and cleaning of the South Street facilities;  

♦ seek to improve signposting to the remaining public conveniences 
in the town; and 

♦ undertake a survey in the Market Square to ascertain customer 
requirements for public conveniences in St. Neots. 

 
 It was the view of the Advisory Group that the facilities at Tebbutts Road and 

the Riverside Park, St. Neots should be retained in their current form.   
 
4.3 New Street, Ramsey 
 
 Regarding the public conveniences in New Street, Ramsey, it was the view 

of the Advisory Group that, given their recent refurbishment and the 
condition of the fabric of the building, the facilities should be retained until 
such time as their location may require further review as part of the future 
development of the town.  Notwithstanding the possible requirement for the 
land upon which the facilities were currently located, the Advisory Group 
agreed that public conveniences should be retained in Ramsey especially in 
view of the occurrence of market days in the town.  Attention having been 
drawn to some unfinished maintenance tasks, the Head of Environment and 
Transport undertook to ensure these would be completed. 

 
4.4 Bus Station and Riverside Park, Huntingdon 
 
 The Advisory Group acknowledged that it would be premature to consider 

the future of facilities in the bus station in Huntingdon (and in the Cattle 

134



Market, St. Ives) given the potential for redevelopment of both locations in 
the medium term.  In terms of the Riverside Park, the Advisory Group were 
of the view that these facilities should be retained until such time as a 
private operator came forward with proposals for development of the Park. 

 
4.5 Other Locations 
 
 For completeness, the Advisory Group agreed to retain current facilities at 

School Hill, Godmanchester and West Street, St. Ives and were reminded 
that the District Council contributed to the upkeep of the public toilets at 
Waitrose supermarket in Huntingdon.  The Advisory Group – 

 
 RECOMMENDED 
 

  that the outcome of their review of provision in the towns be 
endorsed. 

 
5. SERVICE STANDARDS 
 
5.1 Having regard to a series of options for maintaining and enhancing service 

standards, the Advisory Group were of the view that public conveniences 
and their associated fittings should be maintained at the same standard and 
quality within existing buildings and configurations across the towns and 
provide for baby changing and disabled facilities in male and female toilets. 

 
5.2 Attention was drawn to community safety issues associated with communal 

spaces at some locations but without further detail the Advisory Group were 
unable to comment specifically.  It was 

 
 RECOMMENDED 
 
  that the Head of Environment and Transport be requested to 

assess and report to a future meeting of the Cabinet on the 
financial implications of the decision to bring facilities up to an 
agreed standard within existing configurations but to maintain 
some flexibility by considering, should there be a particular 
problem to overcome, whether it would be cost-effective to vary 
the structural configuration in a specific location.  

 
6. MAINTENANCE AND CLEANING 
 
6.1 With regard to future maintenance and cleaning operations, the Advisory 

Group, in the interests of consistency of standards, indicated a preference 
for an arrangement whereby one provider could deliver the service to all 
District Council public conveniences. 

 
6.2 Given that future provision in St. Neots was to be reviewed in discussion 

with St. Neots Town Council, the Advisory Group – 
 
 RECOMMENDED  
 
  (a) that the current arrangements with St. Neots Town Council 

and Turner Industrial Cleaning System Limited for the 
cleansing and maintenance of public conveniences in St. 
Neots and other town centres respectively be retained 

135



pending the outcome of further discussions on agency 
arrangements; and 

 
  (b) that, in light of the foregoing discussions, on the future 

arrangements for public conveniences in the District, the 
proposal, submitted to a meeting of the Cabinet to be held 
on 3rd February 2005, to consider agency arrangements 
with Huntingdon and St. Neots Town Councils be deferred. 

 
   [NB – The report by the Head of Environment & Transport, 

considered at their meeting on 3rd February 2005, was 
deferred.] 

 
 
 
 

Councillor I C Bates 
Chairman of the Advisory Group 

 
 

 

136



  
  
CABINET 17 MARCH 2005 
  

MEDIUM TERM PLAN 
REQUESTS FOR RELEASE OF FUNDS 

 
(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 

 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to request Cabinet to release funds for the 

MTP schemes detailed in the attached annexes.  
 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Council, at its meeting in December 2003, decided that specific prior 

approval be sought and obtained from the Cabinet before MTP 
schemes/projects are implemented. 

 
2.2 Officers have identified which schemes that they wish Cabinet to 

consider releasing funding for at this meeting and have discussed them 
with the relevant Executive Councillor.  

 
2.3 Annex A summarises and the succeeding Annexes detail, the schemes 

where release of funds is now requested.  
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATION  
 
3.1 The Cabinet is recommended to release the funding shown in Annex A. 
 

 
 
 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
Budget and MTP reports 
Previous requests for releases 
 
 
Contact Officer:  
Steve Couper 
Head of Financial Services      01480 388103

Agenda Item 14

137



 

A
N

N
EX

 A
    

 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 £
00

0 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l  
£0

00
  

 An
ne

x 
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/ 
20

10
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/ 
20

10
 

B 
Ca

r P
ar

ks
 – 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l  I

mp
ro

ve
me

nts
 P

ha
se

 5 
 

1 
1 

1 
1 

1 
 

21
 

 
 

 
 

C 
AJ

C 
Sm

all
 S

ca
le 

Sc
he

me
ss

 – 
Di

str
ict

 W
ide

 
 

3 
5 

5 
5 

5 
 

10
3 

 
 

 
 

D 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt 

Pl
an

 - 
20

05
/06

 
 

2 
4 

4 
4 

4 
 

85
 

 
 

 
 

E 
Sa

fe 
Cy

cle
 R

ou
tes

 – 
cre

ati
on

 of
 ne

w 
ro

ute
s t

o s
ch

oo
ls 

 
3 

5 
5 

5 
5 

 
10

5 
 

 
 

 
F 

Hu
nti

ng
do

n T
ra

ns
po

rt 
St

ra
teg

y 
 

2 
3 

3 
3 

3 
 

70
 

 
 

 
 

G 
Hu

nti
ng

do
n T

ow
n C

en
tre

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

 
Ph

as
e 2

 
 

14
 

27
 

27
 

27
 

27
 

 
54

1 
 

 
 

 

H 
Ox

mo
or

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 S
ch

em
es

 
 

2 
3 

3 
3 

3 
 

63
 

 
 

 
 

I 
Hu

nti
ng

do
n T

ow
n C

en
tre

 D
ev

elo
pm

t 
 

6 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
 

25
0 

 
 

 
 

J 
To

wn
 C

en
tre

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
ts 

 
2 

3 
3 

3 
3 

 
62

 
 

 
 

 
K 

He
ar

t o
f O

xm
oo

r 
 

6 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
 

25
0 

 
 

 
 

L 
Cr

im
e a

nd
 D

iso
rd

er
  -

 Li
gh

tin
g I

mp
ro

ve
me

nts
 

 
1 

1 
1 

1 
1 

 
21

 
 

 
 

 
M 

Bu
s S

he
lte

rs 
– e

xtr
a p

ro
vis

ion
 

 
2 

3 
3 

3 
3 

 
33

 
 

 
 

 
N 

Ra
ilw

ay
 S

tat
ion

s –
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
– P

ar
tne

rsh
ip 

wi
th 

Ra
il 

 
 

1 
1 

1 
1 

 
15

 
 

 
 

 
O 

Ac
ce

ss
ibi

lity
 Im

pr
ov

em
nts

 / S
ign

ag
e 

 
1 

1 
1 

1 
1 

 
30

 
 

 
 

 
P 

Hu
nti

ng
do

n B
us

 S
tat

ion
 

 
25

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Q 

Ra
ms

ey
 G

re
at 

W
hy

te 
– E

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
- 

Ph
as

e 2
 

 
6 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

 
17

0 
 

 
 

 

R 
Ra

ms
ey

 Li
ttle

 W
hy

te 
- E

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
 

5 
7 

7 
7 

7 
 

12
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
To

ta
l a

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

lea
se

 n
ow

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

81
 

98
 

98
 

98
 

98
 

 
1,9

43
 

 
 

 
 

 

138



 

A
N

N
EX

 B
   

 0
0/

01
4 

   
C

ar
 P

ar
ks

 –
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
h 

5 
 

 
C

hr
is

 A
lle

n 
– 

Pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 A

ss
et

s 
M

an
ag

er
 

 
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

2 
3 

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
30

 
21

 
21

 
 

 
 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

2 
3 

5 
5 

5 
5 

5 
20

 
31

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
le

as
e 

no
w

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

 
1 

1 
1 

1 
1 

 
 

21
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 S
ch

em
e 

is
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

vi
su

al
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
as

pe
ct

 o
f c

ar
 p

ar
ks

. T
he

 w
or

k 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

av
in

g,
 s

ur
fa

ci
ng

, s
ig

ni
ng

, b
in

s,
 n

ot
ic

e 
bo

ar
ds

 a
nd

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

 A
pp

ro
va

l i
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

so
 th

at
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 c
an

 b
e 

st
ar

te
d 

on
 th

e 
ne

xt
 p

ha
se

 o
f v

ill
ag

e 
ca

r p
ar

ks
 a

nd
 c

on
tra

ct
s 

so
ug

ht
 in

 th
e 

ne
w

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r. 

139



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

N
N

EX
 C

 
 23

1/
38

6/
43

1 
  A

JC
 S

m
al

l S
ca

le
 S

ch
em

es
 –

 D
is

tr
ic

t W
id

e 
 

C
hr

is
 A

lle
n 

– 
Pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 A
ss

et
s 

M
an

ag
er

 
 

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
2 

7 
15

 
20

 
25

 
31

 
36

 
1 

20
5 

10
3 

10
3 

10
3 

10
3 

10
3 

A
lre

ad
y 

re
le

as
ed

 
2 

7 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
1 

20
5 

 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

3 
5 

5 
5 

5 
 

 
10

3 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
is

 s
ch

em
e 

is
 m

ad
e 

up
 o

f s
ev

er
al

 d
iff

er
en

t p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t. 

 T
he

se
 a

re
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 s

ch
em

es
 w

ith
 C

ou
nt

y,
 T

ow
n 

or
 P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

ils
.  

A 
jo

in
t a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f s

ch
em

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

D
is

tri
ct

 M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
nd

 a
 re

po
rt 

w
as

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

A
JC

 m
ee

tin
g 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
05

 re
co

m
m

en
di

ng
 s

ch
em

es
 fo

r c
om

pl
et

io
n 

in
 2

00
5 

/0
6.

 
 E

ar
ly

 a
pp

ro
va

l i
s 

so
ug

ht
 a

s 
ag

re
em

en
t f

or
 jo

in
t f

un
di

ng
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
ac

he
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y,

 T
ow

n 
an

d 
P

ar
is

h 
co

un
ci

ls
 a

nd
 th

es
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

. 

140



 

A
N

N
EX

 D
 

 01
/0

95
/a

 a
nd

 3
89

   
 L

oc
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

- 2
00

5/
06

 
 

 
C

hr
is

 A
lle

n 
/ S

tu
ar

t B
el

l  
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
4 

8 
13

 
18

 
23

 
28

 
33

 
47

 
12

3 
85

 
10

0 
10

0 
10

0 
10

0 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

4 
8 

11
 

11
 

11
 

11
 

11
 

47
 

12
3 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

2 
4 

4 
4 

4 
 

 
85

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
is

 s
ch

em
e 

is
 m

ad
e 

up
 o

f s
ev

er
al

 d
iff

er
en

t p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t. 

 T
he

se
 a

re
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 s

ch
em

es
 w

ith
 C

ou
nt

y,
 T

ow
n 

or
 P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

ils
.  

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 to

w
n 

an
d 

pa
ris

h 
co

un
ci

ls
 fo

r s
ch

em
es

 fo
r n

ex
t f

in
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r (
20

05
/0

6)
 fo

r t
he

se
 jo

in
t f

un
de

d 
sc

he
m

es
 a

nd
 a

 d
ec

is
io

n 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

sh
or

tly
 a

s 
to

 w
he

th
er

 th
es

e 
ca

n 
be

 a
cc

ep
te

d.
 

 Th
er

ef
or

e,
 e

ar
ly

 a
pp

ro
va

l i
s 

so
ug

ht
 a

s 
ag

re
em

en
t f

or
 jo

in
t f

un
di

ng
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
re

ac
he

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
to

w
n 

an
d 

pa
ris

h 
co

un
ci

ls
 a

nd
 c

om
m

itm
en

ts
 w

ill
 

be
 m

ad
e 

to
 lo

ca
l u

se
rs

. 

141



 

A
N

N
EX

 E
 

 15
2 

/ 3
90

 / 
47

4 
   

Sa
fe

 C
yc

le
 R

ou
te

s 
– 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 ro

ut
es

 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

 

 
C

hr
is

 A
lle

n 
– 

Pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 A

ss
et

s 
M

an
ag

er
  

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

6 
11

 
19

 
24

 
29

 
35

 
37

 
5 

20
0 

10
5 

10
5 

11
0 

11
0 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

6 
11

 
16

 
16

 
16

 
16

 
16

 
5 

20
0 

 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

3 
5 

5 
5 

5 
 

 
10

5 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
is

 s
ch

em
e 

is
 a

 jo
in

tly
 fu

nd
ed

 s
ch

em
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l a

t p
ro

du
ci

ng
 s

af
e 

cy
cl

e 
ro

ut
es

 to
 s

ch
oo

ls
.  

Th
es

e 
ha

ve
 in

cl
ud

ed
 H

un
tin

gd
on

 to
 H

in
ch

in
gb

ro
ok

e,
 B

ra
m

pt
on

 to
 H

in
ch

in
gb

ro
ok

e 
an

d 
O

xm
oo

r t
o 

S
t P

et
er

s.
  I

n 
or

de
r t

ha
t C

ou
nt

y 
ca

n 
co

m
m

it 
to

 th
is

 
ye

ar
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e,

 a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

is
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 s
pe

nd
 th

is
 y

ea
rs

 m
on

ey
 s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 c
an

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
au

tu
m

n.
  T

he
re

 is
 a

 p
rio

rit
y 

lis
t o

f s
ch

em
es

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y.

 
  E

ar
ly

 a
pp

ro
va

l i
s 

so
ug

ht
 a

s 
ag

re
em

en
t f

or
 jo

in
t f

un
di

ng
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
ac

he
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
is

 c
om

m
itm

en
t n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
. 

142



 

A
N

N
EX

 F
 

 36
1 

  H
un

tin
gd

on
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
 

 
C

hr
is

 A
lle

n 
/ S

tu
ar

t B
el

l 
 

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
1 

4 
9 

12
 

14
 

14
 

14
 

12
 

12
8 

70
 

70
 

 
 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

1 
4 

7 
7 

7 
7 

7 
12

 
12

8 
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
le

as
e 

no
w

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

 
2 

3 
3 

3 
3 

 
 

70
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
is

 s
ch

em
e 

is
 a

 jo
in

tly
 fu

nd
ed

 s
ch

em
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
H

un
tin

gd
on

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
S

tra
te

gy
 s

ch
em

es
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 to

 th
e 

ag
re

ed
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
  T

hi
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 w
id

el
y 

pu
bl

ic
is

ed
 to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
s.

 

143



 

A
N

N
EX

 G
 

 49
   

 H
un

tin
gd

on
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

Ph
as

e 
2 

 
C

hr
is

 A
lle

n 
– 

Pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 A

ss
et

s 
M

an
ag

er
  

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

 
4 

19
 

44
 

55
 

55
 

55
 

4 
65

 
54

1 
45

0 
 

 
 

A
lre

ad
y 

re
le

as
ed

 
 

4 
5 

5 
5 

5 
5 

4 
65

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
le

as
e 

no
w

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

 
14

 
27

 
27

 
27

 
27

 
 

 
54

1 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
e 

fir
st

 p
ha

se
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ch
em

e 
in

 H
un

tin
gd

on
 H

ig
h 

S
tre

et
 is

 p
la

nn
ed

 to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 o
n 

si
te

 in
 e

ar
ly

 s
um

m
er

 2
00

5.
  I

ni
tia

l 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

he
ld

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 A

dv
is

or
y 

G
ro

up
 o

n 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 d
at

e.
   

Th
e 

m
on

ie
s 

re
qu

es
te

d 
ar

e 
to

 c
ov

er
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fir
st

 p
ha

se
 o

f t
he

 w
or

ks
. 

144



 

A
N

N
EX

 H
 

 10
4 

O
xm

oo
r E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

ch
em

es
 

 
C

hr
is

 A
lle

n 
/ R

ic
ha

rd
 P

ro
by

n 
 

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
4 

7 
11

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
30

 
11

0 
63

 
 

 
 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

4  
7 

9 
9 

9 
9 

9 
30

 
11

0 
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
le

as
e 

no
w

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

 
2 

3 
3 

3 
3 

 
 

63
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 O
xm

oo
r e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l s

ch
em

es
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

m
in

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 O
xm

oo
r t

o 
fo

ot
w

ay
s,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

re
as

, o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

, e
tc

.. 
  

R
el

ea
se

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 is

 re
qu

es
te

d 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

th
is

 w
or

k 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
fo

ot
w

ay
, c

yc
le

w
ay

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

145



 

A
N

N
EX

 I 
 77

 &
 4

01
 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 

R
ic

ha
rd

 P
ro

by
n 

/ C
hr

is
 A

lle
n  

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

6 
10

 
26

 
50

 
59

 
59

 
59

 
54

 
12

0 
52

0 
38

5 
 

 
 

A
lre

ad
y 

re
le

as
ed

 
6 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

54
 

12
0 

 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

6 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
 

 
25

0 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 M
aj

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 in
 H

un
tin

gd
on

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
rin

ce
s 

S
tre

et
 a

re
a,

 C
he

qu
er

s 
C

ou
rt,

 G
ui

de
d 

B
us

 a
nd

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
n 

St
ra

te
gy

.  
Th

is
 s

ch
em

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 m

on
ey

 fo
r d

es
ig

n 
w

or
k 

an
d 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

w
or

ks
 re

la
te

d 
to

 th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. 

 R
el

ea
se

 o
f f

un
ds

 is
 re

qu
es

te
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
de

si
gn

 w
or

k 
an

d 
ap

pr
ai

sa
ls

 to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

20
05

.  

146



 

A
N

N
EX

 J
 

 22
4 

 
To

w
n 

C
en

tr
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

 
R

ic
ha

rd
 P

ro
by

n  
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
 

1 
6 

11
 

13
 

13
 

13
 

 
62

 
10

3 
10

3 
 

 
 

A
lre

ad
y 

re
le

as
ed

 
 

1 
3 

3 
3 

3 
3 

 
62

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
le

as
e 

no
w

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

 
2 

3 
3 

3 
3 

 
 

62
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
is

 s
ch

em
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
ns

 a
nd

 fo
r t

he
 b

ui
ld

 o
f s

tra
te

gi
es

 fo
r t

he
se

 
to

w
ns

.  
M

on
ie

s 
ar

e 
us

ed
 to

 fu
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

w
or

k 
fo

r t
he

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. 
 B

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 m
an

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
th

at
 a

re
 h

ap
pe

ni
ng

 in
 th

e 
M

ar
ke

t T
ow

ns
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 in
 S

t I
ve

s,
 fu

nd
s 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
re

le
as

ed
 fo

r 2
00

5 
fo

r t
hi

s 
w

or
k 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
.  

R
el

ea
se

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

is
 w

or
k 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 in

 2
00

5,
 w

he
n 

it 
is

 re
qu

ire
d.

 

147



 

A
N

N
EX

 K
 

 24
1/

B
  

H
ea

rt
 o

f O
xm

oo
r 

 
R

ic
ha

rd
 P

ro
by

n 
/ C

hr
is

 A
lle

n  
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
-5

 
-2

 
4 

-3
1 

-2
7 

-2
7 

-2
7 

-2
11

 
34

2 
-1

21
 

14
1 

 
 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

-5
 

-2
 

6 
6 

6 
6 

6 
-2

11
 

34
2 

 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

6 
12

 
12

 
12

 
12

 
 

 
25

0 
 

 
 

 

   
 

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

ul
tip

le
 s

ch
em

es
 h

ap
pe

ni
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

O
xm

oo
r, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
B

ut
ts

gr
ov

e 
W

ay
 h

ou
si

ng
, S

ap
le

y 
S

qu
ar

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
A

co
rn

 C
en

tre
, 

C
on

ey
ge

ar
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
, e

tc
.. 

Th
is

 s
ch

em
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 w
or

k 
fo

r t
he

se
 s

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l m
on

ie
s 

fo
r o

th
er

s.
  T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
re

 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
ra

pi
dl

y 
an

d 
re

le
as

e 
of

 fu
nd

in
g 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
es

e 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

  T
he

re
 a

re
 m

an
y 

pa
rtn

er
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
w

or
ks

, w
ho

 h
av

e 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 m
on

ie
s 

an
d 

ne
ed

 th
ei

r p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 m
et

. 

148



 

A
N

N
EX

 L
 

  36
, 3

87
, 4

69
  C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r  
- L

ig
ht

in
g 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
 

So
ni

a 
H

an
se

n 
/ C

hr
is

 A
lle

n  
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
7 

17
 

21
 

21
 

21
 

21
 

21
 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

2 
3 

3 
3 

3 
3 

3 
17

 
21

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
le

as
e 

no
w

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

 
1 

1 
1 

1 
1 

 
 

21
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
is

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

ed
 li

gh
tin

g 
in

 a
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 h

av
in

g 
a 

C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r p

ro
bl

em
.  

D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

al
re

ad
y 

he
ld

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ov

er
 th

es
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
an

d 
si

te
s 

ag
re

ed
. 

 E
ar

ly
 re

le
as

e 
of

 fu
nd

in
g 

is
 s

ou
gh

t s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

lig
ht

in
g 

ca
n 

be
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

or
de

re
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

su
m

m
er

, a
nd

 in
st

al
le

d 
be

fo
re

 n
ex

t w
in

te
r. 

149



 

A
N

N
EX

 M
 

 40
0 

B
us

 S
he

lte
rs

 –
 e

xt
ra

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 

 
So

ni
a 

H
an

se
n/

 C
hr

is
 A

lle
n  

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

3 
7 

13
 

18
 

23
 

27
 

28
 

1 
65

 
33

 
33

 
33

 
33

 
 

A
lre

ad
y 

re
le

as
ed

 
3 

7 
10

 
10

 
10

 
10

 
10

 
1 

65
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

2 
3 

3 
3 

3 
 

 
33

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ew

 b
us

 s
he

lte
rs

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
P

rim
e 

S
ite

 a
dv

er
tis

in
g 

bu
s 

sh
el

te
r c

on
tra

ct
.  

Th
is

 m
on

ey
 w

ill
 e

re
ct

 s
he

lte
rs

 in
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

ad
ve

rti
si

ng
 fu

nd
 b

ut
 a

re
 n

ee
de

d 
du

e 
to

 th
ei

r u
se

.  
 

D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 to

w
n 

an
d 

pa
ris

h 
co

un
ci

ls
 o

ve
r p

os
si

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

. 
C

ab
in

et
 re

ce
nt

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

th
e 

w
or

k 
fo

r 2
00

4/
05

 a
nd

 th
is

 is
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
ith

 fu
rth

er
 s

ite
s 

R
el

ea
se

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

ta
rt 

th
is

 w
or

k 
w

hi
ch

 o
ur

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

. 

150



 

A
N

N
EX

 N
 

 13
2 

R
ai

lw
ay

 S
ta

tio
ns

 –
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 –

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
R

ai
l 

 
So

ni
a 

H
an

se
n/

 C
hr

is
 A

lle
n  

 Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

 
 

1 
2 

2 
2 

2 
 

15
 

15
 

15
 

 
 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

 
 

1 
1 

1 
1 

1 
 

15
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

 
1 

1 
1 

1 
 

 
15

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
e 

fir
st

 p
ha

se
 o

f t
he

 s
ch

em
e 

is
 s

ho
rtl

y 
 to

 c
om

m
en

ce
 a

t H
un

tin
gd

on
 R

ai
lw

ay
 S

ta
tio

n 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t t

he
 ra

ilw
ay

 s
ta

tio
ns

 to
 g

iv
e 

a 
be

tte
r c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 tr

an
sp

or
t m

od
es

.  
Th

is
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
flo

or
sc

ap
e,

 a
cc

es
s,

 s
ig

ni
ng

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
ro

gr
es

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

in
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
ra

il 
op

er
at

or
s 

an
d 

it 
is

 fe
lt 

th
at

 th
is

 m
us

t c
on

tin
ue

 to
 g

et
 th

e 
be

st
 re

su
lts

. 
 R

el
ea

se
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

ot
he

r p
ar

tie
s 

se
e 

ou
r c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 th

is
 s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
to

 g
et

 fu
rth

er
 w

or
k 

st
ar

te
d.

 

151



 

A
N

N
EX

 O
 

 3/
32

3/
38

5/
47

2 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 / 
Si

gn
ag

e 
 

C
hr

is
 A

lle
n  

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

3 
5 

8 
9 

10
 

12
 

12
 

21
 

69
 

30
 

30
 

30
 

30
 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

3 
5 

7 
7 

7 
7 

7 
21

 
69

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
le

as
e 

no
w

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

 
1 

1 
1 

1 
1 

 
 

30
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 w

or
ks

 o
n 

th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 a
nd

 c
ar

 p
ar

ks
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
nd

 fr
om

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

re
as

 to
 p

ub
lic

 p
la

ce
s,

 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 fo
r t

he
 d

is
ab

le
d.

  T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 s

ur
fa

ci
ng

, s
ig

na
ge

, d
ro

pp
ed

 c
ro

ss
in

gs
 e

tc
. 

 R
el

ea
se

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

ta
rt 

th
is

 w
or

k 
ov

er
 th

e 
su

m
m

er
 to

 g
et

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 b
en

ef
it.

 

152



 

A
N

N
EX

 P
 

   6
07

   
   

   
H

un
tin

gd
on

 B
us

 S
ta

tio
n 

 
R

ic
ha

rd
 P

re
st

on
  

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

 
 

15
 

45
 

45
 

45
 

45
 

 
 

22
6 

 
 

 
 

A
lre

ad
y 

re
le

as
ed

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

25
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 A
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 3
rd

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

05
, C

ab
in

et
 a

gr
ee

d 
th

at
 a

 s
tu

dy
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t o

n 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f c
on

ve
rti

ng
 th

e 
bu

s 
st

at
io

n 
to

 a
 m

or
e 

m
od

er
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 d

es
ig

n.
  I

t w
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

th
at

 th
e 

£2
26

k 
ca

pi
ta

l s
um

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

nv
er

te
d 

to
 a

 re
ve

nu
e 

su
m

 fo
r t

hi
s 

st
ud

y.
 A

 fu
rth

er
 re

po
rt 

an
d 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l w
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 a

t a
 la

te
r d

at
e 

on
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

st
ud

y.
 

Th
is

 re
qu

es
t i

s 
to

 re
le

as
e 

th
e 

fu
nd

s 
fo

r t
he

 s
tu

dy
 to

 c
om

m
en

ce
. 

153



 

A
N

N
EX

 Q
 

 50
   

   
R

am
se

y 
G

re
at

 W
hy

te
 - 

En
v 

Im
p 

- P
ha

se
 2

 
 

C
hr

is
 A

lle
n,

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 A
ss

et
s 

M
an

ag
er

  
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
 

1 
6 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

 
21

 
15

4 
 

 
 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5 
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
le

as
e 

no
w

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

 
6 

10
 

10
 

10
 

10
 

 
 

17
0 

 
 

 
 

   
 

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
e 

A
dv

is
or

y 
G

ro
up

 fo
r t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
th

e 
ou

tli
ne

 d
es

ig
n 

is
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 w

el
l. 

  R
el

ea
se

 o
f f

un
ds

 is
 n

ee
de

d 
so

 th
at

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ca
n 

be
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 fi
na

l d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

ou
t t

o 
te

nd
er

 w
ith

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

th
is

 s
um

m
er

. 

154



 

A
N

N
EX

 R
 

 51
   

   
R

am
se

y 
Li

ttl
e 

W
hy

te
 - 

En
v 

Im
p 

 
 

C
hr

is
 A

lle
n,

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 A
ss

et
s 

M
an

ag
er

  
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
20

03
/ 

20
04

 
20

04
/ 

20
05

 
20

05
/ 

20
06

 
20

06
/ 

20
07

 
20

07
/ 

20
08

 
20

08
/ 

20
09

 
20

09
/

20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t 
 

2 
5 

7 
7 

7 
7 

 
21

 
10

3 
 

 
 

 
A

lre
ad

y 
re

le
as

ed
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
m

ou
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 re
le

as
e 

no
w

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

 
5 

7 
7 

7 
7 

 
 

12
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Th
e 

A
dv

is
or

y 
G

ro
up

 fo
r t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
th

e 
ou

tli
ne

 d
es

ig
n 

is
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 w

el
l. 

  R
el

ea
se

 o
f f

un
ds

 is
 n

ee
de

d 
so

 th
at

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ca
n 

be
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 fi
na

l d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

ou
t t

o 
te

nd
er

 w
ith

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

th
is

 s
um

m
er

. 

155



156

This page is intentionally left blank



A
N

N
EX

 ?
 

 04
/4

95
/A

 C
or

po
ra

te
 E

D
M

 S
ys

te
m

 
Pa

ul
 W

oo
dr

uf
f 

 Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 Im

pa
ct

 
N

et
 C

ap
ita

l 
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

20
03

/ 
20

04
 

20
04

/ 
20

05
 

20
05

/ 
20

06
 

20
06

/ 
20

07
 

20
07

/ 
20

08
 

20
08

/ 
20

09
 

20
09

/
20

10
 

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t 

 
 

18
 

29
 

40
 

43
 

43
 

 
 

10
0 

35
0 

10
0 

 
 

A
lre

ad
y 

re
le

as
ed

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

18
 

29
 

40
 

42
 

43
 

 
 

10
0 

35
0 

10
0 

 
 

  Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 E

D
M

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 e
na

bl
e:

 
• 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r d
oc

um
en

t s
to

ra
ge

 s
pa

ce
 w

ith
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
sp

ac
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

do
cu

m
en

t s
to

ra
ge

 in
 a

ny
 n

ew
 o

ffi
ce

s;
 

• 
ra

pi
d 

&
 c

on
tro

lle
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 h

el
d 

el
ec

tro
ni

ca
lly

; 
• 

th
e 

sh
ar

in
g 

of
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
w

or
k 

gr
ou

ps
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
; 

• 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 h
an

dl
in

g 
of

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

au
to

m
at

ic
 a

ud
iti

ng
 o

f a
cc

es
s;

 
• 

th
e 

se
tti

ng
 u

p 
do

cu
m

en
t w

or
kf

lo
w

 –
 th

e 
ro

ut
in

g 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

; 
 Th

e 
re

le
as

e 
is

 re
qu

ire
d 

no
w

 b
ec

au
se

: 
• 

C
al

l C
en

tre
 a

ge
nt

s 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
ca

nn
ed

 d
oc

um
en

ts
; 

• 
M

an
y 

ot
he

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

ve
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g 
ne

ed
 fo

r E
D

M
 in

cl
ud

in
g,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

. 

157



158

This page is intentionally left blank



 
A

N
N

EX
 R

 
 60

2 
   

  O
PT

IO
N

A
L 

W
H

EE
LE

D
 B

IN
 F

O
R

 D
R

Y 
R

EC
YC

LA
B

LE
S 

an
d 

 2
79

   
JO

IN
T 

W
A

ST
E 

PR
O

C
U

R
EM

EN
T 

 

 
R

ob
er

t W
ar

d,
 H

ea
d 

of
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

   
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

m
pa

ct
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 Im
pa

ct
 

N
et

 C
ap

ita
l 

 
20

03
/ 20

04
 

20
04

/ 20
05

 

20
05

/ 20
06

 

20
06

/ 20
07

 

20
07

/ 20
08

 

20
08

/ 20
09

 

20
09

/ 20
10

 

20
03

/ 20
04

 

20
04

/ 20
05

 

20
05

/ 20
06

 

20
06

/ 20
07

 

20
07

/ 20
08

 

20
08

/ 20
09

 

20
09

/ 20
10

 
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

£0
00

 
£0

00
 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

ud
ge

t (
60

2)
 

 
 

8 
16

 
16

 
16

 
16

 
 

 
32

6 
 

 
 

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

B
ud

ge
t (

27
9)

 
 

1 
3 

3 
3 

3 
3 

 
50

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
lre

ad
y 

re
le

as
ed

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

m
ou

nt
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 re

le
as

e 
no

w
 re

qu
es

te
d 

 
 

9 
19

 
19

 
19

 
19

 
 

 
37

6 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r R

el
ea

se
 

 A
t t

he
 C

ab
in

et
 o

f 3
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
05

, t
he

 fu
rth

er
 ro

ll 
ou

t o
f t

he
 d

ry
 b

in
 re

cy
cl

ab
le

 s
ch

em
e 

w
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
  T

he
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 th

e 
bi

ns
 n

ow
 n

ee
ds

 to
 

pr
oc

ee
d,

 s
o 

th
e 

re
le

as
e 

of
 fu

nd
s 

is
 n

ow
 re

qu
es

te
d,

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Jo

in
t W

as
te

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t b
id

, w
hi

ch
 is

 e
xp

la
in

ed
 in

 a
no

th
er

 
re

po
rt 

to
 th

is
 M

ee
tin

g.
 

   

159



160

This page is intentionally left blank



NEW BID REF  
 

Bid Title Optional Wheeled Bin for Dry Recyclables 
Head of Service Richard Preston, Head of Environment & Transport 
Brief Description of Bid 
 
 
PROPOSED START YEAR 

2005/06 

Capital funding for the purchase of 22,500 wheeled bins. To provide an optional wheeled bin for 
the collection of dry recyclables to households covered by phases 2 & 3 of the expansion of the 
Refuse & Recycling Service.  
Many households raised lack of capacity in the green boxes as an issue and 70% of households 
in garden waste trial area opted to have a bin in preference to a box. 
There are no extra revenue monies as the vehicles have the required equipment fitted and there 
are no extra staffing costs. 

 
If the start year is not 2009/10 
why is an earlier start 
necessary? 
 

To increase our recycling rate and achieve our BVPI targets for 
recycling 

 

Is the project unavoidable 
and why? 
Would a lower level of 
provision meet the 
requirement? 

  

 
Impact on Council’s priorities 

 
Which outcome(s) in the Scorecard? 

 
Which measure? 

Impact on measure as a result 
of this project and in what 

timescale? 
Clean, green, attractive environment  % satisfied that Huntingdonshire is a 

clean, green and attractive place 
0.1%  2007 

   
   

 
Key Assumptions made 
Including the practical life of 
assets, period for any non-
permanent revenue bids, 
usage, charging policy, staffing 
etc. 
 

 

Alternative Approaches 
to achieve similar outcomes 
which have been considered 
and discounted as less 
effective.  
 

Giving extra green boxes to householders requesting more space for dry recyclables 
has been tried but still does not offer as much storage space as a 240 litre wheeled 
bin 

 
Risk Assessment 
What are the risks to the impact 
quoted above not being 
achieved within the time frame 
proposed? 
 
 

 

 
 

161



 
Sources of External funding  
Conditional 
Scheme can only go ahead if 
received 

 
 

Possible 
 

 

Considered and discounted  
 

 
 

Capital Resources £000 
 Pre 

04/05 
 

04/05 
 

05/06 
 

06/07 
 

07/08 
 

08/09 
 

09/10 
Post 
9/10 

Total 

Gross Cost          
Non-staff related   378      378 
Staff Related          
Gross Total   378      378 
Conditional grants   52      52 
Net Total   326      326 
 Cash prices Outturn 2005/06 prices  

 
Revenue Implications £000 

 Pre 
04/05 

 
04/05 

 
05/06 

 
06/07 

 
07/08 

 
08/09 

 
09/10 

 
10/11 

 
 

Gross Revenue Cost          
Income          
Savings          
Net Revenue Cost   0       
Capital Charges   19 38 37 36 35 34  
Loss of Interest   8 16 16 16 16 16  
NET REVENUE IMPACT  
• With Capital Charges   19 38 37 36 35 34  
• With Lost Interest   8 16 16 16 16 16  
 Cash prices Outturn 2005/06 prices 

 
 

Remember: 
• to include any accommodation costs if staff cannot be housed in the Council’s existing 

accommodation. 
• To identify any revenue staff time charged to capital projects as it will result in a 

compensating saving 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

162



  
 
 
        
 
CABINET          17 MARCH 2005 
         

CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS – COUNCIL TAX AND NON DOMESTIC RATES 
(Report by the Head of Revenue Services) 

 
1.       INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 On 11 April 2002, Members agreed to accept payment by credit and debit cards 

for council debts.  Minute 01/201 (c) specifically excluded payment by credit 
cards for Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates. 

 
1.2 Customers and staff would like the opportunity to pay these debts by credit card, 

especially with the planned expansion of telephone payments and introduction of 
Internet payments.  Additionally, the Council’s bailiffs already take payments in 
this way, and officers believe that offering this service could prevent some 
accounts being sent to the bailiffs and so incurring extra fees and charges. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Council Tax is collected by the District Council on behalf of the County, Fire, 

Police and parish councils.  The average band D tax for 2005/06 is £1190.99.  Of 
this, only £106.54 remains with Huntingdonshire DC (almost 9%). 

 
2.2 Similarly, National Non Domestic Rates are collected by the District Council and 

sent to the Treasury for inclusion in the National Non Domestic Rates pool.  
Money from the pool is distributed to all councils using a formula based on the 
population of the area.  Effectively, the Council acts as the agent for the 
government in the collection of Rates.  Non Domestic Rates instalments are likely 
to be higher than Council Tax instalments.  Any costs incurred fall to be paid by 
the District Council.  

 
2.3 The average Council Tax instalment is around £120.  The district council retains 

£10 of this.  The fees for the credit card company and the secure Internet service 
provider are currently 3.5% of the whole instalment amount.  Effectively, the 
Council would pay £4.50 in administration fees and keep only £5.50 of its own 
income.  The precepting authorities would not contribute to the cost of collection. 

 
2.4 As part of improving customer services and the Customer First programme, the 

Council is implementing an electronic payments facility. This will enable staff 
handling calls or members of the public to make payments over the phone or 
Internet.  This facility is due to go live in April 2005 and will be introduced into the 
Call Centre when it goes live.   The e-payments computer software enables a 
handling charge to be added to the payment amount.  This would mean that 
Huntingdonshire DC could recoup the cost of handling credit card payments from 
the person or company making the payment.   

 
2.5 There is no suggestion that handling charges be introduced for other payments at 

the present time. 

Agenda Item 15

163



 2

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
  
3.1 The additional software to enable the addition of a handling fee on Council Tax 

and Non Domestic rates payments is £1500.  This can be met from existing 
budgets.  

 
 

4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1 It is therefore 
 

RECOMMENDED  
 
That Cabinet approves the introduction of Credit Card payments for Council Tax 
and Non Domestic Rates, subject to the addition of a handling fee equivalent to 
that charged by the banking and Internet service providers. 
 

 
Backgrounds papers 
 
Cabinet minutes 11 April 2002.  Minute 01/201 (c)  
 
Contact Officer: Julia Barber, Head of Revenue Services  [01480] 388105 
 
 
 

164



 

 
CABINET 17TH MARCH 2005
 
 

LEISURE CENTRE LINE UPGRADES 
(Report by David Ward – ICT Services Manager) 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The Council’s IT Network includes connections to each of our Leisure 

Centres to enable them to communicate with other officers and 
members, as well as each other.  There is a need to provide a new link 
to the improved Ramsey Community Information Centre (CIC). 

 
1.2 Developments in the Leisure software and the move to an integrated 

system have put additional burdens on existing links, which are having a 
detrimental effect on response times for staff.  This is likely to increase 
as further integration comes on line (e.g. Impressions Fitness Studios). 

 
1.3 A mixture of Capital and Revenue Funding has been identified which will 

allow us to provide the new link to the CIC and improve the data 
communications links to Leisure Centres. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The cost of providing a dedicated link to the Ramsey CIC would be free 

installation with an ongoing annual rental of £6.9k. 
 
2.2 The cost of upgrading the link to Ramsey Leisure Centre, with a 

connection speed 4 times current speed, and providing a new local link 
to the CIC is £7.2k more expensive to install, but the increase in rental is 
only £0.9k – an ongoing annual revenue saving of £6k compared with 
the 50% slower dedicated link. 

 
2.3 The cost of providing high speed links to all Leisure Centre, including 

Ramsey, is £32.8k.  The increased annual rentals can be met from the 
existing Network budget.   

 
 
3. FUNDING 
  
3.1 Discussions between Leisure Services, Community Initiatives and ICT 

Services have identified funds to carry out the upgrades from existing 
approved budgets as follows:- 

 

Existing Budget Revenue 
or Capital 

 
£000s 

Ramsey CIC Project Capital   4.5 
Leisure Centres R & R Fund Revenue 10.0 
Leisure System Development Project Capital   9.0 
Network Budget Revenue   9.3 
Total  32.8 

 
 

Agenda Item 16

165



 

 
3.2 The upgrades are classed as capital expenditure and so approval is 

requested to a supplementary capital estimate of £19,300, a reduction in 
the revenue budget of the same sum and the budget transfers between 
services. 

 
3.3 The financial impact is as follows: 
 
 

 Revenue impact 
 2005/06 2006/07 

onwards 
 £000 £000 
Additional capital spending 0.5 1.0 
Revenue budget given up -19.3  

Net Impact -18.8 +1.0 
 
 
4.  RECOMMENDATION 

 
Cabinet is requested to approve the variations and budget transfers 
outlined in section 3 above. 

 
   
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Quote from BT dated 19th January 2005 
Quote from NTL dated 28th January 2005 – amended 10th February 2005 
 
 
Contact Officer: David Ward – ICT Services Manager 
  01480-388117 
 

166



CABINET 17TH MARCH 2005 
 

REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION 
(Report by the Head of Administration) 

 
  
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The requirements of the Local Government Act 2000 were 

implemented fully in the Constitution as from the Annual Meeting in 
May 2002. Since then the Standards Committee has undertaken an 
annual review of the Constitution in the light of the experience of 
individual Councillors, the Cabinet and all Panels and Chief Officers 
and Heads of Service over the preceding year. 

 
1.2 Members may recall that the Corporate Governance Panel was 

established by the Council in July 2004 to deal principally with the 
non-executive issues of audit, governance and finance. Because of 
impending changes to the workload of the Standards Committee it 
was considered, at that time, that some of the duties within that 
Committee’s terms of reference might more appropriately lay with the 
Corporate Governance Panel. This included responsibility for 
‘Oversight of the Council’s Constitutional arrangements and 
advising the Council of any changes that may be desirable’. 

 
 
1.3 Accordingly it is for the Corporate Governance Panel to undertake the        

forthcoming review of the Constitution. Any changes recommended 
for adoption to the Council would take effect from the Annual Meeting 
to be held on 18th May 2005. 

 
1.4 All Members of the Council have been supplied with a copy of the 

Constitution. This can also be found electronically on the Council’s 
website and intranet. A paper copy is available in the Members 
Room.  

 
2. REVIEW 
 
2.1 The Council may amend their Constitution at any time, subject to 

regard being paid to formal guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State. Any change will require reference to the Secretary of State only 
if the Council proposed to change significantly the present form of 
Executive and Scrutiny arrangements.  

 
2.2 In 2004, constitutional changes resulting from the review enabled an 

Independent Member to be elected to chair the Standards Committee 
and concluded other matters relating to the appointment of 
Independent Members. 

 
 
2.3 With the Constitution operating satisfactory for almost three years 

now, it is arguable whether there is any requirement for significant 
change to its content. However, several minor amendments have 
been suggested during the course of the year and it is accepted that 
Members might also wish to propose some adjustments which could 

Agenda Item 17

167



 2

improve the effectiveness and operation of the Constitution as it 
manages the Councils business. Of course, there will also still be 
occasions when changes will be necessary as a result of updates in 
legislation and practice. 

 
2.4 The timetable for the review is as follows:- 
 
 

♦ the Cabinet and all Panels will be provided with an opportunity 
to comment collectively on those aspects of the Constitution 
which affect their terms of reference during February; 

♦ Members have been invited to submit comments individually by 
the end of January; 

♦ comments raised, plus any forthcoming from Officers will be 
considered at the Corporate Governance Panel meeting to be 
held on 23rd March; 

♦ Group Leaders will be invited to attend, if necessary, to present 
the views of their Group to the Corporate Governance Panel; 

♦ revisions to the Constitution recommended by the Corporate 
Governance Panel will be considered by the Council at their 
meeting to be held on 13th April; 

♦ revisions to the Constitution adopted by the Council will be 
implemented with effect from the Annual Meeting on 18th May 
2005. 

 
3 CONCLUSION 

 
3.1 The Cabinet are invited to submit any comments that they may wish 

to make on the present constitutional arrangements for consideration 
by the Corporate Governance Panel. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
COUNCIL CONSTITUTION 
 
Contact Officer: Christine Deller 
   Democratic Services Manager 
   (01480) 388007 

 
 

 

168



Agenda Item 19

169

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



170

This page is intentionally left blank



171

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



196

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20

197

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



198

This page is intentionally left blank


